
  
 

APOPKA CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
April 04, 2018 1:30 PM 

APOPKA CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

Agendas are subject to amendment through 

5:00pm on the day prior to City Council Meetings 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
INVOCATION - Pastor Larry Baucom of Park Avenue Church of God 
PLEDGE 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. City Council workshop meeting January 26, 2018. 
2. City Council regular meeting February 21, 2018 
3. City Council regular meeting March 07, 2018  

 
AGENDA REVIEW: 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT; STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Proclamations: 
1. April Water Conservation Month Proclamation                                  Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

 
Employee Recognition: 

 Five Year Service Award – Keith Tincher – Public Services/Cemetery 
 Five Year Service Award – Jason Brown – Public Services/Waste Water Plant 
 Ten Year Service Award – Andrew “Drew” Parkinson – Police/Support Services 

 
Public Comment Period:  
The Public Comment Period is for City-related issues that may or may not be on today’s Agenda. If you are here for a matter that 
requires a public hearing, please wait for that item to come up on the agenda. If you wish to address the Council, you must fill out an 
Intent to Speak form and provide it to the City Clerk prior to the start of the meeting. If you wish to speak during the Public Comment 
Period, please fill out a green-colored Intent-to-Speak form. If you wish to speak on a matter that requires a public hearing, please fill 
out a white-colored Intent-to-Speak form. Speaker forms may be completed up to 48 hours in advance of the Council meeting. Each 
speaker  will  have  four minutes to  give  remarks,  regardless  of  the  number  of  items  addressed.  Please refer to Resolution No. 
2016-16 for further information regarding our Public Participation Policy & Procedures for addressing the City Council. 
 
CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Approve the emergency purchase of a replacement standby generator for the Bradshaw Road Lift Station #77.   
2. Approve the purchase of a bypass pump for the Forest Avenue Lift Station 17. 
3. Award a Street Resurfacing Project to Orlando Paving Company.  
4. Approve the final extension for wastewater residuals transport and disposal with Shelley’s Environmental Systems.   

 
BUSINESS (Action Item) 

1. Final Development Plan – Self Help Credit Union Jean Sanchez 
Project:  Self Help Credit Union c/o Randy Chambers – Located at 667 West Orange Blossom Trail 
 

2. Final Development Plan/Plat – Zarabrooke Subdivision  Bobby Howell 
Project: Zarabrooke, LLC, c/o Barry Kalmanson – Located at 829 Paradiso Court 
  

PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION (Action Item) 

1. Ordinance No.  2635 – Second Reading - Comprehensive Plan Amendment – Small Scale – Legislative  Phil Martinez 
Project: Kenney Harry Charles McAllister - Located on the Northwest corner of North Hermit Smith Road, U.S. 441 intersection 
 

2. Ordinance No.  2636 – Second Reading - Change of Zoning – Quasi-Judicial Phil Martinez 
Project: Kenney Harry Charles McAllister - Located on the Northwest corner of North Hermit Smith Road, U.S. 441 intersection 
 

3. Ordinance No. 2637 – Second Reading - Change of Zoning  Bobby Howell 
 PUD Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan - Quasi-Judicial 

Project: City of Apopka, James D. & Deborah M. Lyda, & Citizens Bank of Florida - Located on Johns Road, west of S.R. 451 
 
 
 

1



  
 

4. Ordinance No. 2639 – First Reading - Change of Zoning – Oak Pointe  David Moon 
Project: Jason C. Revelle & Thompson Hills Estates, LLC - Located east of SR429, north of McCormick Road.   
  

5. Ordinance No. 2640 – First Reading – Annexation Jean Sanchez 
Project:  Janine R. & Richard D. Edmondson - Located at 3904 Plymouth Sorrento Road.   
 

6. Ordinance No. 2641 – First Reading – Annexation Jean Sanchez 
Project:  Lynn R. Fontaine - Located at 4353 McDonald Gley Road 

 
7. Ordinance No. 2642 – First Reading – Annexation Jean Sanchez 

Project:  SunTrust Bank - Located at 920 East Semoran Boulevard   
 

8. Ordinance No. 2643 – First Reading - Annexation – Right-of-Way  Pamela Richmond 
Project:  A – Orange County - King Street Right-of-Way 
Project:  B – Orange County – Peterson Road (east of SR 429) 
Project:  C – Orange County – Peterson Road (west of SR 429)  
 

9. Resolution 2018-04 Rolloff franchise agreement Container Rental Company             Jay Davoll 
10. Resolution 2018-05 Rolloff franchise agreement Waste Pro USA, Inc.         Jay Davoll 
11. Resolution 2018-06 Rolloff franchise agreement Randy Suggs, Inc.             Jay Davoll 

 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
MEETINGS AND UPCOMING EVENTS 

DATE TIME EVENT 

April 4, 2018 1:30pm –  City Council Meeting 

April 5, 2018 5:30pm – 9:00pm Food Truck Round Up 

April 9, 2018 6:30pm –  CONA Meeting – UCF Apopka Business Incubator  

April 10, 2018 5:30pm –  Planning Commission Meeting 

April 10, 2018 7:00am – 7:00pm Apopka Runnoff Election – Seat #2 

April 11, 2018 5:30pm –  Special City Council Meeting – Errol Estates @ 519 S. Central Ave. 

April 13, 2018 7:00pm – 9:30pm  Movie in the Park – Cars 3 – Kit Land Nelson Park  

April 18, 2018 7:00pm –  City Council Meeting 

April 21, 2018 9:00am – 12:00pm  12
th

 Annual Apopka Health & Fitness Fair – Fran Carlton Center 

April 23, 2018 10:00am – Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board Meeting: Winter Garden 

April 24, 2018 12:00pm –  Inauguration – Mayor & City Council Seats #1 & #2 

May 2, 2018 1:30pm –  City Council Meeting 

May 3, 2018 5:30pm – 9:00pm Food Truck Round Up 

May 8, 2018 5:30pm –  Planning Commission Meeting 

May 14, 2018 6:30pm –  CONA Meeting – UCF Apopka Business Incubator  

May 16, 2018 7:00pm –  City Council Meeting 

May 28, 2018 - Memorial Day - City Offices Closed  

May 28, 2018 10:00am – Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board Meeting: Winter Garden 

 
Individuals with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk at least two (2) working days in 
advance of the meeting date and time at (407) 703-1704.  F.S. 286.0105 If a person decides to appeal any decision or recommendation made by 
Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he will need record of the proceedings, and that for such purposes he may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
 
Any opening invocation that is offered before the official start of the Council meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private person, to and for the 
benefit of the Council.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the City Council or 
the city staff, and the City is not allowed by law to endorse the religious or non-religious beliefs or views of such speaker.  Persons in attendance at the 
City Council meeting are invited to stand during the opening ceremony. However, such invitation shall not be construed as a demand, order, or any other 
type of command.  No person in attendance at the meeting shall be required to participate in any opening invocation that is offered or to participate in the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  You may remain seated within the City Council Chambers or exit the City Council Chambers and return upon completion of the 
opening invocation and/or Pledge of Allegiance if you do not wish to participate in or witness the opening invocation and/or the recitation of the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
  

2



CITY OF APOPKA 

 

Minutes of the City Council workshop held on January 26, 2018, at 9:00 a.m., in the City 

of Apopka Council Chambers. 
 

PRESENT:   Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

Commissioner Billie Dean  

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

Commissioner Doug Bankson 

City Administrator Glenn Irby 

 

ABSENT: Commissioner Kyle Becker 

 

PRESS PRESENT:  Teresa Sargeant - The Apopka Chief 

    Reggie Connell, The Apopka Voice 

 

 

INVOCATION: - Mayor Kilsheimer introduced Pastor Mark Lowry of Grace Point Church, 

who gave the invocation. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Kilsheimer led in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

DISCUSSION: 

1. Kit Land Nelson Park proposed Splash Pad options presented by Freeport Fountains, LLC. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said we were here to meet in a workshop session to have a presentation from 

Freeport Fountains, LLC on the proposed Splash Pad.  

 

Glenn Irby, City Administrator, said this project has been out to bid three different times. He 

stated we finally came to a good accord with Freeport Fountains, LLC.  Staff has spent time 

evaluating what they can bring to the table and they were willing to bring a presentation before 

Council this morning. He advised there is a budget on this project of $613,090 and of this 

$544,000 is budgeted for the Splash Pad. He reported certain items have been pulled out such as 

tables, trash bins, and benches that the city can purchase directly with a savings, and there is also 

demolition of the tennis courts net at $18,000. He affirmed there was money in contingencies 

should they run into something they are not aware of.  

 

Jon Vollet, President of Freeport Fountains, LLC, said they were based in Sanford and do work 

throughout the state as well as throughout the world. He advised they have been doing this type 

of work for 35 years, creating different fountains and water features and they are very versed and 

focused. They have in house engineering services and like to do a turnkey construction.  He 

stated they have been working with the committee who made some selections based on 

information they provided. The committee selected a couple of themes and asked Freeport 

Fountains to put together options on two of the themes.  

 

Mr. Vollet reviewed the first option which was the Ocean and Seashore theme.  This theme had a 

lot of play structures that drop and spray water with fish sculptures and sea creatures. This and 

the other themes have the dumping bucket that fills and drops water as the central feature. This 

3



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a City Council workshop held on January 26, 2018 at 9:00 a.m.  

Page 2 

 

theme has a cannon that sprays, and all have ground sprays. He advised that option one had a 

total of 30 elements and the saturation is 204 gallons per minutes which would allow 40 persons 

on the pad. The second option is similar, but the theme changes to a nature theme. Again, it has 

the large dumping bucket with other elements that are nature pieces such as leaves, flowers, 

spraying tubes and a snail. This option has 29 pieces of spray and play elements. The saturation 

is 194 gallons per minute.  

 

Mr. Vollet advised they prepared a third option. This option has less play structures and more in 

ground sprays. It does have the dumping bucket like the other two options, four bazooka sprays, 

a spray zone with ground sprays in a circular pattern and other small buckets that fill and dump 

over. This option has more in the hydraulic system, has a total of 32 elements, and it has a 

saturation of 301 gallons per minute that allows 60 persons on the pad.  

 

In response to Commissioner Bankson inquiring about hours of operation and if the sprays were 

triggered by play in action, Mr. Vollet advised the hours of operation can be between dawn to 

dusk and hours can be set by the City. He stated there had to be specified lighting in order to 

operate at night. He advised that each operation has a swipe that turns the feature on so that the 

entire system is not running all day long and a time clock would keep it from coming on at night. 

The filtration system does run 24/7. He also said the years of service would depend on how good 

the maintenance is to the system, stating some pumps last 15 to 20 years. He advised the deck 

coating is acrylic, similar to the deck of swimming pools.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said the third option is a blend of the other two with more sprays.  

 

Commissioner Velazquez said while she was at an elementary school yesterday reading to 

students, she took a poll. The students went for option three because of the amount of water.  

 

In response to Mayor Kilsheimer inquiring about the leaves dropping from the oak trees, Mr. 

Vollet said staff will need to blow the leaves every day during the fall. He said they should not 

clog the filter or drains. 

 

Discussion was held regarding maintenance and Jessica Pugh, Administrative Assistant to the 

City Administrator,  advised there was a maintenance schedule provided, they would just need to 

break down the cost affiliated with it.  

 

Lorena Potter inquired if the splash pad is operated seasonally, can the system be shut down for 

lower maintenance. She inquired what other municipalities do.   

 

Mr. Vollet advised other areas that run seasonally lock the gate, but allow the system to circulate. 

He said in Florida it could be open year round. He advised this would require the water to be 

tested at least daily. This is not required by a certified technician and can be conducted by staff. 

There does have to be a certified pool operator or a licensed pool contractor to do the overall 

maintenance.  

 

Discussion pursued regarding whether to fence the area as well as charging for use.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said there would not be a vote today, but he is hearing that option three is the 

4



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a City Council workshop held on January 26, 2018 at 9:00 a.m.  

Page 3 

 

favored option.  He also said if construction is to begin in the spring, there is a major event in Kit  

 

Land Nelson Park the final weekend in April and he asked that they maintain safety so that the 

festival is a successful event. 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT – There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 10:25 a.m. 

 

 

 

        __________________________ 

        Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

5



CITY OF APOPKA 

 

Minutes of the regular City Council meeting held on February 21, 2018, at 7:00 p.m., in 

the City of Apopka Council Chambers. 
 

PRESENT:   Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

Commissioner Billie Dean 

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

Commissioner Kyle Becker  

Commissioner Doug Bankson 

City Attorney Cliff Shepard 

City Administrator Glenn Irby 

 

PRESS PRESENT:  Teresa Sargeant - The Apopka Chief 

    Reggie Connell, The Apopka Voice 

 

INVOCATION: - Mayor Kilsheimer introduced Pastor James Hicks of Center of Faith Church 

who gave the invocation. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Kilsheimer said on February 26, 1940, Apopka Fire 

Chief Fred Risener appealed to the City Council to reorganize the Volunteer Fire Department by 

allowing him to name a group of men to serve as assistants to the Fire Chief.  The six men 

selected and approved by the Council were Howard Anderson, R.M. Wells, George Kerr, John 

Risener, J.P. Bowers, and Don Kenney. This reorganization was the first of many steps in 

establishing the Apopka Fire Department as one of the best in the country. He asked everyone to 

reflect upon the selfless bravery of our first responders and those who place themselves in 

harm‟s way as service to others as he led in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

  

AGENDA REVIEW:  

Glenn Irby, City Administrator, said it is requested to move the Proclamation and Presentation to 

the first item on the agenda.  Also, under Public Hearings Ordinances and Resolutions, Item 5, 

Ordinance 2624 states it is First Reading and it is actually the second reading.  

 

James Hitt, Community Development Director, said the Lake Marshall property, Item 11, which 

is the rezoning to the PUD, is requested to be postponed to March 21, 2018 and April 4, 2018.  

This will provide time for the applicant to hold community meetings to answer questions and 

concerns the residents have in regards to the development. This will also allow for extension of 

the closing on the property to April 30, 2018.   

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Dean to postpone 

Item 11, Ordinance No. 2637 to March 21, 2018 for the First Reading and April 4, 2018 for 

the Second Reading. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez to set the 

closing date no later than April 30, 2018. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor 

Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

6



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February 21, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 2 

 

  

PUBLIC COMMENT/STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 

Proclamations: 

1. Future Farmers of America Proclamation was read by Mayor Kilsheimer and presented to 

Apopka High School, Wekiva High School, Apopka Memorial Middle School, Piedmont 

Lakes Middle School, and Wolf Lake Middle School.  

 

Presentations: 

1. Mayor Kilsheimer advised the City was approached recently by the Carnegie Hero Fund 

Commission wanting to present the Carnegie Hero Fund Commission Medal to Jason Allen 

Williams, who rescued Michael J. Bridges from a burning vehicle in Apopka on August 4, 

2016, following an accident. Mr. Williams witnessed the accident, stopped to assist and pulled 

Mr. Bridges from the vehicle. He presented Jason Allen Williams with the Carnegie Hero 

Commission Medal. 

 

Chief Carnesale spoke of Fire Station Six that was opened on December 3, 2017, in 

conjunction with Florida Hospital.  He said the Fire Department has an award that is the 

highest possible award for a civilian which is given to any individual on the basis of that 

citizen performing extraordinary deeds, either by actions displayed in times of crisis or for 

unselfish service to the citizens of the community. He presented Jason Allen Williams with 

the Fire Chief Award for his heroic, lifesaving actions at the scene of an accident on August 4, 

2016.  

 

Public Comment: 

City Attorney Shepard advised that since the Marshall Lake item has been removed from the 

agenda, those who planned to speak may want to wait until after the community meeting occurs. 

Council cannot consider these remarks until such time that this comes before them as a quasi-

judicial hearing. 

 

Michael Rowe, President of Lake Doe Homeowner‟s Association, said he was here representing 

the HOA regarding Lake Marshall. He said this is a very small lake and during the summer it 

dries up to approximately 40 acres. He expressed concerns of contaminants flushing into the lake 

and surrounding lakes.  He said their plans show a septic pump next to his property which is not 

pleasing to look at. He stated that page four of their Master Plan states that no residential 

neighborhoods will be affected by this and that development will not be visible from surrounding 

properties. He declared this was not true for his neighborhood and this current plan is not 

beneficial for their neighborhood. He affirmed there was a piece of property he would like to 

purchase from the city or have it vacated to him since he has been maintaining it for seven years. 

He requested no motorized boats on the lake, no boat ramp or dock in the new neighborhood.  

 

Nina Rowe expressed concerns about Jackson Pond that she stated was environmentally sensitive 

and it is protected. She has lived there for 18 years and her home is situated on the southern 

wetland that this new development is proposing to use as a drainage area. She declared she had 

many levels of concerns regarding this development including dredging of the lake to put in a 

storm drain that could result in flooding, and reiterated concerns regarding contamination of the 

lakes.  She also spoke of the wildlife in the area and concerns of their habitat.  She asked that the 

7



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February 21, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 3 

 

retention pond be moved and place a landscape barrier between the neighborhoods.  

 

Alan Wood said he lives on Lake Doe Boulevard and has been a resident here since 2001. He 

stated he has enjoyed this property for over 17 years and has seen it go through multiple changes 

and water levels change through the hurricanes. He spoke of the wildlife in the area stating these 

woods are unique within the city limits of Apopka and he would hate to see these woods torn 

down to have a high density subdivision in their place. He also expressed concerns regarding 

noise levels and spoke of how S.R. 451 changed the noise in the area. He declared he hoped they 

would come up with a better plan taking into concern the people that live there and have a vested 

interest in staying in Apopka.  

 

Pat McGuffin said his concern has been addressed in the past and unanimously dealt with by 

Council to not allow a public boat ramp on this tiny lake. He stated Council listened to the 

concerns of the citizens about boat safety and liability to the City. Council voted unanimously to 

not allow the boat ramp on this lake.  At that time there were 90 homes being proposed and now it 

is triple that amount with 300 homes being proposed. He said the lake was too small back then 

when Council voted and it is still the same size. He stated to clarify, he was not opposed to the 

homeowners living directly on the lake having access to the lake. He asked that they choose 

human life and safety over any money concerns.  

 

Scott Hill said he was two lots north of the proposed development and expressed concern of a 

community boat ramp and the pollution it would cause.  He stated this is a standing water sand 

hill lake with no fresh water coming into the lake and any runoff with contaminants will stay 

there. He spoke of privacy issues and noise levels. He said there were some legal issues with 

regards to ownership as the lake is broken into four different private properties.  

 

Kim Pritchard said she has lived there for 10 years and has seen the water levels change 

drastically. She stated there are only two motorboats on the lake and she is one of them stating the 

water becomes so shallow that the motorized boat cannot be used. She spoke of safety issues if all 

300 residents of the new development are allowed access to the lake.  

 

Ray Shackelford called upon City Council to develop and pass an ordinance that calls for arrest of 

any person who threatens Apopka schools on social media. He stated if the City of Orlando can 

pass such an ordinance, the City of Apopka can do the same. He said he was concerned about 

some information that was stated at a recent debate that the City of Apopka has $59 million in city 

reserves to support the general fund and avoid deficit spending. He asked if this was including the 

reserves from the enterprise funds that are restricted to avoid deficit spending. He said it needs to 

be clear and to the point of how much is in the city reserves.  He said at a recent Council meeting 

the Mayor stated letters of apologies were forthcoming related to an insensitive police workshop.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said the City requested a letter of apology, but a letter of apology has not been 

forthcoming. He stated they did not know what else they can do to compel a letter of apology and 

reiterated that it has been requested.  

 

CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Authorize a donation to the Kid‟s House Advocacy Center. 

2. Resolution for naming signatories on a city money market account at Iberia Bank. 

8



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February 21, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 4 

 

3. Appoint Byron Tobias as Fifth Trustee to the General Employees‟ Pension Board. 

4. Appoint Raymond Thompson as Fifth Trustee to the Firefighters‟ Pension Board. 

5. Appoint James Greene as Fifth Trustee to the Police Officers‟ Pension Board. 
  

MOTION by Commissioner Dean, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to approve 

five items on the Consent Agenda. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, 

and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker and Bankson voting aye. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION 

1. Ordinance No. 2600 – Second Reading – Comprehensive Plan Amendment – Large Scale 

– Project: A.D. Raulerson, Sr., & A.D. Raulerson, Jr. and Curtis & Karen Pumphrey – 

Located at 251 West Lester Road. The City Clerk read the title as follows: 
 

ORDINANCE 2600 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING THE 
FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM “COUNTY” LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL TO “CITY” MEDIUM LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 
FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED WEST OF 
ROCK SPRINGS ROAD NORTH OF LESTER ROAD, COMPRISING 23.20 
ACRES, MORE OR LESS AND OWNED BY A.D. RAULERSON AND A.D. 
RAULERSON, JR, CURTIS AND KAREN PUMPHREY; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.. 

 

Mr. Martinez said there have been no changes since the first reading.  

 

In response to Commissioner Becker inquiring if it was okay to vote on this due to the 

advertising, Mr. Moon said he had discussions with Attorney Hand regarding this and it is a 

decrease in the intensity from what was advertised, it is not considered to have an impact on 

adjacent properties, and thus the hearing can proceed.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

adopt Ordinance No. 2600. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker and Bankson voting aye. 

 

2. Ordinance No. 2634 – First Reading – Change of Zoning – Project: A.D. Raulerson, Sr., 

& A.D. Raulerson, Jr. and Curtis & Karon Pumphrey – Located at 251 West Lester 

Road. The City Clerk read the title as follows: 
 

ORDINANCE 2634 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “CITY” A-1 (ZIP) TO PUD (PLANNED UNIT 

DEVELOPMENT) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY 

LOCATED WEST OF NORTH ROCK SPRINGS ROAD AND NORTH OF 

9



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February 21, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 5 

 

EAST LESTER ROAD, COMPRISING 25.39 ACRES MORE OR LESS, 

AND OWNED BY ADELBERT RAULERSON, AD RAULERSON, JR. AND 

CURTIS AND KAREN PUMPHREY; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO 

THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer announced this was a quasi-judicial hearing. Witnesses were sworn in by 

the Clerk.  

 

Jean Sanchez, Planner, provided a brief lead-in for this re-zoning request, reviewing the area 

on the map and surrounding land-uses. The PUD Master Plan proposes a community with 112 

single family lots that are 40‟ wide. There is a proposed 30‟ buffer to the north and each lot 

will have two trees. She reviewed the amenities for the project. An additional deviation not 

included in the staff report is that the wet retention pond will be fenced with a 4‟ wrought iron 

fence at the request of city engineer for safety precautions. The Planning Commission voted 

5-1 to recommend approval.  

 

Commissioner Becker said the spirit of a PUD in terms of lot sizes has language for some 

balance. He asked with everything in this plan being lower than code calls for, where is the 

balance in this plan. 

 

Ms. Sanchez said there was a proposal for enhanced amenities and it meets the required 30% 

open space requirements. She also advised there will be mail kiosks versus individual 

mailboxes. 

 

Commissioner Becker said with 40 foot wide lots, the homes in Alexander Place with 85 foot 

wide lots are potentially going see two homes behind each lot. He declared this goes against 

what our current Land Development Code states.  

 

David Moon said the traditional residential subdivision would have a minimum or typical lot 

70 foot wide and if they backed up to Alexander Place, they would not require a buffer. He 

stated this master plan provides for a 30 foot heavily landscape buffer between the rear of the 

single family homes and Alexandria Place. He said the intent is to leave the buffer in a natural 

state so that it will be a heavy landscape area with a wall within the buffer area. 

 

Commissioner Bankson inquired if there was adequate additional parking provided with the 

shorter driveways. 

 

Richard Wolfarth, applicant, advised there were 50 additional parking spaces.  He said of the 

five models, three of them will have 30 foot setbacks, and one will have a 28 foot setback, 

with the largest home having a 25 foot setback. He pointed out they have placed the additional 

parking throughout the community. He pointed out the distance between the wall and their 

first unit will be 45 feet. He said in meeting with the neighbors they believe they are satisfied 

with their proposal. He also affirmed this will be a gated community and all maintenance will 

be by the Homeowner‟s Association.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

10



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February 21, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 6 

 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to approve 

Ordinance No. 2634 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. Motion 

carried 4-1 with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, and Bankson 

voting aye and Commissioner Becker voting nay. 

 

3. Ordinance No. 2604 – Second Reading - Comprehensive Plan Amendment – Large Scale 

– Project:  TGINF, LLC - Located at 501 Old Dixie Highway. The City Clerk read the title 

as follows: 

 
ORDINANCE 2604 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING 
THE FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM COMMERCIAL TO 
MEDIUM LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL FOR CERTAIN REAL 
PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF OLD DIXIE 
HIGHWAY AND WEST OF NORTH MAINE AVENUE, COMPRISING 
15.73 ACRES, MORE OR LESS AND OWNED BY TGINF LLC; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mr. Moon advised there have been no changes since the first reading.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to 

adopt Ordinance No 2604. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

4. Ordinance No. 2628 – First Reading – Change of Zoning Project:  TGINF, LLC - 

Located at 501 Old Dixie Highway. The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2628 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM C-1(COMMERCIAL) TO R-3 (RESIDENTIAL) FOR 

CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF OLD 

DIXIE HIGHWAY AND EAST OF VICK ROAD, COMPRISING 15.8 

ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY TGINF LLC; PROVIDING 

FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY,CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

Mayor Kilsheimer announced this was a quasi-judicial hearing and witnesses were sworn in 

by the Clerk. 

 

11



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February 21, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 7 

 

 

Phil Martinez, Planner, reviewed and gave a brief lead-in stating this was in conjunction with 

the previously heard agenda item. The applicant is proposing a rezoning for 15.7 acres from 

Commercial to Residential multiple family. He reviewed the location of the property on the 

map and the surrounding land-uses. The intent is for townhomes of 92 lots. He pointed out 

that the current condition of the property is heavily wooded with a natural body of water in the 

east central segment.  The Planning Commission recommended approval at their meeting on 

March 13, 2018.  

 

Commissioner Velazquez inquired if the lake would remain. 

 

Mr. Goldberg responded in the affirmative.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing, no one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2628 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, 

Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

5. Ordinance No. 2624 – Second Reading - Change of Zoning – Project: George Thum, Jr. 

& Phillip & Peggy Dionne – Located west of Jason Dwelley Parkway, south of West 

Kelly Park Rd. The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2624 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 (AGRICULTURE) AND “CITY” 

AG (AGRICULTURE) TO “CITY” PO/I (PROFESSIONAL 

OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTIES 

LOCATED WEST OF JASON DWELLEY PARKWAY AND SOUTH OF 

WEST KELLY PARK ROAD, COMPRISING 15.17 ACRES, MORE OR 

LESS, AND OWNED BY GEORGE THUM JR. AND PEGGY DIONNE; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer announced this was a quasi-judicial hearing and witnesses were sworn in 

by the Clerk. 

 

Mr. Moon advised there have been no changes since the first reading. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Dean, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to adopt 

12



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February 21, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 8 

 

Ordinance No. 2624. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

6. Ordinance No. 2633 – Second Reading – Vacate – Platted Right-of-Way (Ransom Street) 

– Project: City of Apopka – Located north of East 6th Street, south of U.S. Highway 441; 

west of South Sheeler Avenue.  The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2633 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, TO VACATE A RIGHT 
OF WAY, KNOWN AS RANSOM STEEET, LOCATED NORTH OF EAST 
6TH STREET, SOUTH OF U.S. HIGHWAY 441; WEST OF SOUTH 
SHEELER AVENUE IN SECTION 10, TOWNSHIP 21, RANGE 28 OF 
ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA; PROVIDING DIRECTIONS TO THE 
CITY CLERK, FOR SEVERABILITY, FOR CONFLICTS, AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer announced this was a quasi-judicial hearing and witnesses were sworn in 

by the Clerk. 

 

Ms. Sanchez advised there have been no changes since the first reading. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2633. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

7. Ordinance No. 2629 – First Reading - Comprehensive Plan Amendment – Small Scale  

Project:  VBRO Enterprises, Inc. - Located at 41 East Lester Road. The City Clerk read 

the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2629 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING THE 

FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM “COUNTY” LOW DENSITY 

RESIDENTIAL TO “CITY” COMMERCIAL FOR CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF E. LESTER ROAD 

AND WEST OF ROCK SPRINGS ROAD, COMPRISING 0.84 ACRES 

MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY VBRO ENTERPRISES INC; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 

Mr. Moon said this was a request for a small scale future land-use amendment that affects 

13



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February 21, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 9 

 

approximately 0.84 acres. This property is also addressed on the agenda for rezoning and it 

will be coupled with other parcels for a future commercial shopping plaza. He reviewed the 

location of the property and surrounding land uses. The staff report is on file in the clerk‟s 

office. The Planning Commission recommended approval at their meeting on March 13, 2018. 

The recommendation is to accept at First Reading and carry over for a Second Reading.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

In response to Commissioner Velazquez inquiring as to what type of commercial business this 

would be, Bill Burkett, with Burkett Engineering, advised the full intent of commercial is still 

to be developed, but one of the main uses that is anticipated is an adult daycare facility.  

 

Mr. Moon advised there would be more information addressed at the rezoning application and 

there would be a limit of square footage that can be used for adult daycare at 7,000 square 

feet. The site could hold up to 36,000 square feet of commercial floor area.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2629 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, 

Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

 

8. Ordinance No. 2630 – First Reading – Change of Zoning – Project:  VBRO Enterprises, 

Inc. - Located at 41 East Lester Road. The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE 2630 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 AGRICULTURE TO “CITY” 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (COMMERCIAL) FOR CERTAIN 

REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF EAST LESTER 

ROAD AND WEST OF NORTH ROCK SPRINGS ROAD, COMPRISING 

3.36 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY VBRO ENTERPRISES 

LLC; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer announced this was a quasi-judicial hearing. Witnesses were sworn in by 

the clerk. 

 

Mr. Moon said the proposed request is to rezone the property to “City” PUD from “County” 

Agriculture A-1.  There are six parcels that are addressed within this rezoning request. City 

Council just addressed the westernmost parcel that recently annexed into the city. He 

reviewed the parcels on a map and reviewed the proposed land use types such as a sit down 

restaurant, and adult day care. He advised there was a list of prohibited uses as well as 

allowable uses. He stated staff recognized this intersection serves as a gateway to a significant 

14



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February 21, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 10 

 

residential area to the City of Apopka. To preserve the residential character it was necessary to 

limit the intensity of commercial that could locate at this intersection.  He reviewed the 

character of the surrounding areas. DRC recommends approval. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Dean, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to approve 

Ordinance No. 2630 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. Motion 

carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, 

Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

9. Ordinance No. 2631 – First Reading - Comprehensive Plan Amendment – Small Scale –  

Project:  Iglesia Getsemani, Inc.  - Located at 2575 West Orange Blossom Trail. The City 

Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2631 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING THE 

FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM “COUNTY” COMMERCIAL 

TO “CITY” COMMERCIAL FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 

GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF WEST ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL 

AND SOUTH OF HIGHLAND AVENUE, COMPRISING 1.43 ACRES 

MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY IGLESIA EL GETSEMANI, INC.; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mr. Martinez provided a brief lead-in reviewing the location on a map and the surrounding 

land-uses. He stated the proposed commercial land-use will complement the other uses in the 

vicinity between the residential uses to the north and the industrial uses to the south. The 

Planning Commission recommended approval at their March 13, 2018 meeting. DRC 

recommends approval of the First Reading and hold it over for a Second Reading.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2631 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, 

Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

10. Ordinance No. 2632 – First Reading – Change of Zoning – Project:  Iglesia Getsemani, 

Inc.  - Located at 2575 West Orange Blossom Trail. The City Clerk read the title as 

follows: 

15



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February 21, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 11 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2632 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” C-1 (COMMERCIAL) TO “CITY” C-1 

(COMMERCIAL) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2575 

W. ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL, COMPRISING 1.43 ACRES, MORE OR 

LESS AND OWNED BY IGLESIA GETESEMANI; PROVIDING FOR 

DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer announced this was a quasi-judicial hearing. Witnesses were sworn in by 

the clerk. 

 

Mr. Martinez said in conjunction with the previously heard agenda item, the applicant is 

proposing a rezoning for the same property located at 2575 West Orange Blossom Trail from 

“County” C-1 Commercial to „City” C-1 Commercial.  The proposed zoning is compatible 

with the future land-use.  The Planning Commissioner recommended approval at their March 

13, 2018 meeting.  DRC recommends approval of the First Reading and hold it over for a 

Second Reading.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2632 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, 

Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

11. Ordinance No. 2637 – First Reading - Change of Zoning & PUD Master Plan/ 

Preliminary Development Plan - Project: City of Apopka, James D. & Deborah M. Lyda 

and Citizens Bank of Florida - Located on Johns Road, west of S.R. 451.  – Postponed to 

March 21, 2018. 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 

 

Commissioner Becker asked for an update regarding the language for medical marijuana.  

 

City Attorney Shepard advised they can bring this forward as soon as council desires. 

 

Commissioner Bankson said he would like to have some workshop meetings regarding the City‟s 

reserve policy. He stated there seems to be a lot of confusion about this and there have been a lot 

of numbers discussed. He said his recollection was the last adopted budget put the City‟s reserves 

at 18%. He proposed bringing in some experts and establish a committee from the Chamber of 

Commerce of successful businesses in the area to look over information and make some 

proposals.  

16



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February 21, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 12 

 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said he was amenable to that and state he had done some of his own research 

with regards to reserve policies and what other cities do. He said cities like Winter Park, Sanford, 

and Orlando budget according to a strategic plan. The strategic plan is based on performance 

measures and each department has a mission statement with performance measurements under 

that basic strategy. The budgets are built based on these measures. He said he felt this would be a 

good exercise for the City of Apopka.  

 

Commissioner Bankson said it was healthy to have a long term plan and plan for vehicle 

replacement.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer the City has provided for two new Fire Stations including the outfitting and 

equipping of same, and the hiring of staff all out of the General Fund budget. He said these two 

new stations have already proven themselves in the short amount of time they have been open. He 

stated the growth of Apopka is here today, affecting us today. He spoke of the need for a public 

safety complex that will hopefully be paid for from the newly created impact fund. He reiterated 

the idea of strategic planning being used to build the budget.  

 

MAYOR’S REPORT – No report. 

 

ADJOURNMENT – There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 8:41 p.m. 

 

 

 

        __________________________ 

        Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

17



CITY OF APOPKA 

 

Minutes of the regular City Council meeting held on March 7, 2018, at 1:30 p.m., in the 

City of Apopka Council Chambers. 
 

PRESENT:   Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

Commissioner Kyle Becker  

Commissioner Doug Bankson 

City Attorney Patrick Brackins 

City Administrator Glenn Irby 

 

ABSENT; Commissioner Billie Dean 

 

PRESS PRESENT:  Teresa Sargeant - The Apopka Chief 

    Reggie Connell, The Apopka Voice 

 

INVOCATION: - Mayor Kilsheimer introduced Reverend John Pallard of the Church of the 

Holy Spirit who gave the invocation. Mayor Kilsheimer asked for a moment of silence for 

Commissioner Dean who recently lost his daughter. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Kilsheimer said on March 1, 1961, President John F. 

Kennedy issued an executive order establishing the Peace Corps, following up on his inaugural 

address wherein he challenged America’s youth to “ask not what your country can do for you, 

ask what you can do for your country.” The program was designed to promote world peace and 

a friendship by sending trained American volunteers to foreign nations to assist in development 

efforts. In all, more than 225,000 Americans have joined the Peace Corps since 1961, serving in 

140 nations. He requested everyone to reflect on the selfishness of the Peace Corps volunteers 

who help promote peace through service to others as he led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

  

AGENDA REVIEW: Mr. Irby advised there were no changes. 

  

PUBLIC COMMENT/STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
Proclamations: 

1. Art & Foliage Festival Weekend Proclamation was read by Mayor Kilsheimer 

acknowledging April 28 and 29, 2018 as Apopka Art & Foliage Festival Weekend in the 

City of Apopka. He then presented it to the Apopka Woman's Club.  

 

Employee Recognition: 

 Five Year Service Award – William “Chris” Connor – Public Services/Water Plant. Chris 

was not present and his award will be presented at another time. 

 Ten Year Service Award – Rania Nakla – Public Services/Director’s Office. Rania was 

not present and her award will be presented at another time.  

 Ten Year Service Award – Sean Knapp – Fire/EMS. The Commissioners joined Mayor 

Kilsheimer in congratulating Sean on his years of service. 

 Fifteen Year Service Award – Kristi Funke – Human Resources/Risk Management. The 

Commissioners joined Mayor Kilsheimer in congratulating Kristi on her years of service. 

 

18



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on March 7, 2018 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 2 

 

Public Comment: 

Paul Pipitone said it has become really irritating putting up with all of the fireworks going off 

over the various holidays. He asked Council to someway figure out this problem, stating if 

fireworks are against the law, then have the law enforced. He expressed concerns of turning left 

on Park Avenue to head north and asked for consideration of a traffic light in the area. He advised 

that he obtained a yard sale permit, but his signs were removed. He stated there needs to be a 

check and balance on these signs. He suggested permit numbers be placed on the yard sale signs.  

 

Joann Castillo, President of the Apopka Woman’s Club, requested that the construction on the 

splash pad be postponed until after the Art and Foliage Festival.  

 

Ray Shackelford said he agreed with the sentiment expressed by the Mayor relating to the Dean 

family. He asked that the Dean family be kept in everyone’s prayers.  

 

CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Authorize Support Services for the 57th Annual Apopka Art & Foliage Festival. 

2. Approve the sale of Apopka Youth Works (AYW) T-Shirts to benefit the AYW Scholarship 

Program.  

3. Authorize an expenditure from Law Enforcement Trust Funds for the CRA, Community 

Outreach Program. 

4. Accept and update signatories with Florida Community Bank. 

5. Approve an Inmate Work Squad Contract with the Department of Corrections. 

6. Approve the installation of inliner in the stormwater piping system by Layne Inliner.  

7. Approve an interlocal agreement with Orange County for municipal separate storm sewer 

system permit activities. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to approve 

six items on the Consent Agenda. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Velazquez, Becker and Bankson voting aye. 

 

BUSINESS: 

1. Select a design/layout and award a contract to FreePort Fountains for RFP#2018-07 

Design/Build of a Splash Pad at Kit Land Nelson Park. 

Mr. Irby advised Council directed staff to work with FreePort Fountains to come up with 

a layout for a Splash Pad in Kit Land Nelson Park. He advised there are three designs and 

at the Workshop held January 26, 2018, there seemed to be a consensus for option three. 

He advised this option has a bathing load of 60 and it is under budget by $19,000. He said 

they would like to hold back this amount for any contingencies. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding the construction starting on the Splash Pad with the Art and 

Foliage Festival scheduled the end of April. Mr. Irby advised that during any scheduled 

event, construction will cease and the large equipment will be removed and the area 

secured. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer directed staff to work with the Apopka Woman’s Club to work out an 

alternative layout and provide accommodations for the foliage festival. Motion carried 

unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Velazquez, Becker, and 

19



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on March 7, 2018 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 3 

 

Bankson voting aye.  

 

2. Approve the negotiation and award to Tindale Oliver for RFQ 2018-03 for Professional 

Transportation and Engineering Services. 

 Richard Earp, City Engineer, said this is for an update to the Transportation Impact Fee. 

The last time the fee was updated was in 2005 and this update will look at all of the 

changes that have occurred in the city and provide a recommended update. He advised 

we advertised for continuing consulting services and received three responses. Upon 

review, presentations, and ranking, it is recommended to approve staff moving forward 

with negotiations and award of the contract to Tindall Oliver.  

 

 MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez to 

approve staff moving forward with negotiations and award of the contract to 

Tindall Oliver for Professional Transportation and Engineering Services. Motion 

carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Velazquez, 

Becker, and Bankson voting aye.  

 

3. Approve an Interlocal Agreement between the City of Apopka and theCity of Mount Dora to establish a utilities interconnect that will provide Mount Dora with surplus reclaimed water. 

Jay Davoll, Public Services Director, said this is an Interlocal Agreement between Mount 

Dora and the City of Apopka. He advised Mount Dora approached the city regarding their 

needs for supplementing their reclaimed water system. One of the options they are pursuing 

is an area where they will have a large pond similar to the ponds the City of Apopka is 

building. Unfortunately, they do not have enough reclaimed water to always fill the pond and 

provide for the demand they have. They contacted the City of Apopka and received a grant 

from St. John’s Water Management District to bring lines from their site to Golden Gem 

where we currently have reclaimed water. At the same time the City of Apopka is working 

on our system at Golden Gem and the timing should workout. He advised this was for the 

agreement with all the details to allow this supplementing.  

 

In response to Commissioner Becker inquiring about the upsizing of the pipe, Mr. Davoll 

advised the upsizing was for the City of Apopka to make the pipe compatible with our 

system.  

 

Mark Gradowski, Public Works Director, Mount Dora, said they are delighted to work with 

the City of Apopka on this agreement. He said Mount Dora is paying for the 16 inch pipe and 

Apopka will pay for any increase over the 16 inch pipe. 

 

Following discussion, Mount Dora was in agreement to a ten year contract with five year 

renewals.  

 

 MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Becker to 

approve the Interlocal Agreement with Mount Dora to establish a utilities interconnect 

that will provide Mount Dora with surplus reclaimed water, with five year renewals. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Velazquez, 

Becker, and Bankson voting aye.  

 

4. Accept the transfer of Rights of Way to and from the Central Florida Expressway Authority.  

20



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on March 7, 2018 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 4 

 

Mr. Davoll said staff has been working with the Central Florida Expressway (CFX), Florida 

Hospital Apopka, and Orange County to obtain the right-of-way necessary to extend Harmon 

Road east to Marden Road. CFX Right-of-Way Committee met on February 28, 2018 and 

recommended approval of the transfer of certain right-of-ways to the City of Apopka. The 

City will be conveying aerial rights for the CFX Bridge connecting Coral Hills Road across 

S.R. 414 and retain aerial rights over S.R. 414 and S.R. 429 bridge crossings. . CFX will 

consider the transfer at their meeting on March 8, 2018. Florida Hospital Apopka agrees to 

deed a portion of their property for right-of-way.  The recommendation is to accept the 

transfers to and from CFX.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez to 

accept the transfer of right-of-ways to and from CFX as presented. Motion carried 

unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Velazquez, Becker, and 

Bankson voting aye. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION 

 

1. Ordinance No. 2628 – Second Reading – Change of Zoning – Project: TGINF, LLC - 

Located at 501 Old Dixie Highway. The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2628 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM C-1(COMMERCIAL) TO R-3 (RESIDENTIAL) FOR 

CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF OLD 

DIXIE HIGHWAY AND EAST OF VICK ROAD, COMPRISING 15.8 

ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY TGINF LLC; PROVIDING 

FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DIRECTOR,SEVERABILITY,CONFLICTS,AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

Mayor Kilsheimer announced this was a quasi-judicial hearing and witnesses were sworn in 

by the Clerk. 

 

Phil Martinez, Planner, advised there have been no changes since the first reading. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing, no one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to adopt 

Ordinance No 2628. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

2. Ordinance No. 2629 – Second Reading - Comprehensive Plan Amendment – Small Scale– 

Project:  VBRO Enterprises, Inc. - Located at 41 East Lester Road. The City Clerk read the 

title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2629 

21



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on March 7, 2018 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 5 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING THE 

FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM “COUNTY” LOW DENSITY 

RESIDENTIAL TO “CITY” COMMERCIAL FOR CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF E. LESTER ROAD 

AND WEST OF ROCK SPRINGS ROAD, COMPRISING 0.84 ACRES 

MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY VBRO ENTERPRISES INC; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 

Mr. Martinez advised there have been no changes since the first reading. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to 

adopt Ordinance No. 2629. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

3. Ordinance No. 2630 – Second Reading – Change of Zoning –Project: VBRO Enterprises, 

Inc. - Located at 41 East Lester Road. The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE 2630 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 AGRICULTURE TO “CITY” 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (COMMERCIAL) FOR CERTAIN 

REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF EAST LESTER 

ROAD AND WEST OF NORTH ROCK SPRINGS ROAD, COMPRISING 

3.36 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY VBRO ENTERPRISES 

LLC; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer announced this was a quasi-judicial hearing. Witnesses were sworn in by 

the clerk. 

 

Mr. Martinez advised there have been no changes since the first reading. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2630. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

22



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on March 7, 2018 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 6 

 

Commissioners Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

4. Ordinance No. 2631 – Second Reading - Comprehensive Plan Amendment – Small Scale 

Project:  Iglesia Getsemani, Inc.  - Located at 2575 West Orange Blossom Trail. The City 

Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2631 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING THE 

FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM “COUNTY” COMMERCIAL 

TO “CITY” COMMERCIAL FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 

GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF WEST ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL 

AND SOUTH OF HIGHLAND AVENUE, COMPRISING 1.43 ACRES 

MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY IGLESIA EL GETSEMANI, INC.; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mr. Martinez advised there have been no changes since the first reading. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to 

adopt Ordinance No. 2631. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

5. Ordinance No. 2632 – Second Reading – Change of Zoning – Quasi-Judicial Project: Iglesia 

Getsemani, Inc.  - Located at 2575 West Orange Blossom Trail. The City Clerk read the title 

as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2632 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” C-1 (COMMERCIAL) TO “CITY” C-1 

(COMMERCIAL) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2575 

W. ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL, COMPRISING 1.43 ACRES, MORE OR 

LESS AND OWNED BY IGLESIA GETESEMANI; PROVIDING FOR 

DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer announced this was a quasi-judicial hearing. Witnesses were sworn in by 

the clerk. 

 

Mr. Martinez said there have been no changes since the first reading.  

23



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on March 7, 2018 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 7 

 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2632. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

 

6. Ordinance No. 2634 – Second Reading – Change of Zoning – Project: A. D. Raulerson, Sr. & 

A. D. Raulerson, Jr. and Curtin & Karen Pumphrey - Located at 251 West Lester Road. The 

City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2634 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “CITY” A-1 (ZIP) TO PUD (PLANNED UNIT 

DEVELOPMENT) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY 

LOCATED WEST OF NORTH ROCK SPRINGS ROAD AND NORTH OF 

EAST LESTER ROAD, COMPRISING 23.41 ACRES MORE OR LESS, 

AND OWNED BY ADELBERT RAULERSON, SR. & AD RAULERSON, JR. 

AND CURTIS & KAREN PUMPHREY; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS 

TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer announced this was a quasi-judicial hearing. Witnesses were sworn in by 

the clerk. 

 

Mr. Moon advised there have been no changes since the first reading. 

 

Commissioner Becker reiterated the Land Development Code, Section 2.02.18 – B – 11 reads: 

The minimum single-family lot size within any PUD shall be 70 feet in width at both the 

street (with the exception of lots on cult-de-sacs and curves which may be permitted a 40 

percent reduction) and building lines with a site area of 7,500 square feet. For every 60-

foot lot proposed, an equal number of lots a minimum of 85 feet in width are provided, but 

under no circumstances may more than 20 percent of the total number of lots in the PUD 

be less than 75 feet in width. 

 

Commissioner Becker said it was being contemplated that every single home is going to be 40 

foot wide lots and this is contradictory to the Land Development Code, therefore, he cannot 

support it.  

 

Commissioner Velazquez said she met with Mr. Moon due to her concern from the last 

Council meeting and asked how this would affect future developments and spoke of Silver 

Oak  that was approved with different size lots.  

 

Mr. Moon explained in the case of Silver Oak the lot diversity was 40, 50 and 70 foot wide 

24



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on March 7, 2018 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 8 

 

lots with 45 percent being 40 foot wide, 45 to 50 percent being 50 foot wide lots and 5 to 10 

percent for the 70 foot wide lots. 

 

Commissioner Velazquez said the younger generation was looking for different housing and 

smaller yards for less maintenance.  This proposed development will be gated and the HOA 

will provide all of the landscaping and maintenance.  

 

James Hitt, Community Development Director, said Commissioner Becker did quote the code 

exactly as it reads. He stated PUD’s, just because of the nature and any other code allows for 

variances. This applicant is asking for a variance to reduce the size of the lot and he reiterated 

you can put variances within the PUD as it is being approved. 

 

Commissioner Bankson said the increased buffer made this more positive for him. He said he 

understands the point of following the code, but having the amenities with a gated community 

helps to satisfy the variances for him.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez to 

adopt Ordinance No. 2634. Motion carried 3-1 with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Velazquez and Bankson voting aye, and Commissioner Becker voting 

nay. 

 

CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 

Commissioner Bankson said following the Town Hall meeting last evening he had a citizen 

approach him regarding a visibility issue at Sandpiper and Ustler Road. He stated now that we 

have direct control over the roadway, he wanted to bring attention to this matter. He said we also 

needed to address the sidewalk on the north side where a rail had been removed and is dangerous. 

He said the sidewalk was in very poor repair and needs to be looked into.  

 

MAYOR’S REPORT   

Mayor Kilsheimer reported a water main break occurred in Errol Estates last evening around 

4:00 p.m. Employees had to be called back to work who worked from 4:00 p.m. through 1:00 

p.m. today and some are still there working. He recognized the following employees for all of 

their efforts: Curtis Johnson, Utility Foreman, Terry Hicks, Utility Service Worker II, Dennis 

Misurale, Utility Service Worker II, Charlie Shaw, Utility Service Worker II, Angel Reyes, 

Utility Service Worker II, Roger Stewart, Utility Service Worker II, Derrick Clark, Utility 

Service Worker II, Kenny Gibson, Utility Service Worker I, Tim Romine, Utility Service 

Worker I, Scott Krouse, Water Plant Chief Operator, and Chris Connor, Water Plant Operator B.  

 

ADJOURNMENT – There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 3:04 p.m. 

 

 

        __________________________ 

ATTEST:       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

 
 

25



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on March 7, 2018 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 9 

 

___________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

26



 

Proclamation 
 
 

 WHEREAS, water is a basic and essential need of every living creature; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the State of Florida, Water Management Districts, the Florida Section of the 

American Water Works Association, and the City of Apopka are working together to promote the 

efficient use of water and advocating sound water conservation practices; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka and the State of Florida has designated April, - typically a dry 

month when water demands are most acute, - Florida’s Water Conservation Month, to educate private 

citizens and other users about efficient use of precious water resources; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has always encouraged and supported water conservation, 

through various educational programs and special events; and 

 

 WHEREAS, every business, industry, school and citizen can make a difference when it comes 

to conserving water; and 

 

 WHEREAS, every business, industry, school and citizen can help by saving water and thus 

promote a healthy economy and community. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, I, Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor of the City of Apopka, Florida, by 

virtue of the authority vested in me by the City of Apopka, do hereby proclaim the month of April to 

be: 

 

WATER CONSERVATION MONTH 
 

in the City of Apopka and encourage each citizen and business to help protect our precious resource by 

practicing water saving measures and becoming more aware of the need to save water.  

        

     

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto 

set my hand and caused the seal of the City 

to be affixed this 4th day of April, 2018. 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk  

27



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

   X CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: April 4, 2018 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       

       OTHER: STAFF PRESENTATION 
  

 

SUBJECT: EMERGENCY GENERATOR REPLACEMENT FOR BRADSHAW LIFT STATION 

#77 

 

 

REQUEST: APPROVE THE EMERGENCY PURCHASE OF A REPLACEMENT STANDBY 

GENERATOR IN THE AMOUNT OF $74,525 

 

  
SUMMARY: 
 

The Bradshaw Road Lift Station #77 has experienced a failure of the standby generator due to excessive 

corrosion caused by prolonged exposure to hydrogen sulfide gases.  This lift station is a master regional 

lift station for the City, pumping approximately 40% of the total wastewater flow to the wastewater 

treatment plant.  DEP Rule 62-604.400(2)(a) of the Florida Administrative Code, requires that this station 

be equipped with standby power or pumping capability. 

 

Staff has obtained a proposal from Zabatt Power Systems, through the Florida Sheriffs Association 

Contract for the purchase and installation of a new 350 kW (kilowatt) standby generator for $74,525.  The 

standby generator will maintain continuous service of the lift station in the event of a power failure and 

minimize the opportunity for a sewer overflow to occur.   

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Wastewater Operations Reserve Fund 401 

    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve the purchase and installation of a new 350 kW standby generator from Zabatt Power Systems in 

the amount of $74,525. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director   

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

28



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

   X    CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: April 4, 2018 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: BYPASS PUMP AT A WASTEWATER LIFT STATION  
   

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE THE PURCHASE OF A BYPASS PUMP FROM THOMPSON PUMP 

AND MANUFACTURING COMPANY, INC. 

 

  
SUMMARY: 

 

Staff has obtained a proposal from Thompson Pump and Manufacturing Company, Inc., through the 

Florida Sheriffs Association Contract for the purchase of a new bypass pump for the Forest Avenue Lift 

Station 17 for $73,873.  Due to growth and increase in capacity in this segment of the utility service area, 

the need for emergency bypass pumping abilities has become critical. The bypass pump will maintain 

continuous service of the lift station in the event of a pump or power failure and minimize the opportunity 

for a sewer overflow to occur.  This bypass pump will replace the existing 1972 Caterpillar standby 

generator.  The generator has become outdated, as parts are no longer available in the event of needed 

repairs. 

   
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Fund 401 – Utility Plant Maintenance Budget    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the purchase of a bypass pump for Forest Avenue Lift Station 17 from Thompson Pump and 

Manufacturing Company, Inc., for $73,873. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director   

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

29



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: April 4, 2018 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       Proposal & Exhibit A  

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: 2018 STREETS RESURFACING PROJECT  

 

 

   

REQUEST:   AWARD A CONTRACT TO ORLANDO PAVING COMPANY   
  
SUMMARY: 

 

Orlando Paving Company currently retains a street resurfacing contract with Seminole County (Seminole 

County Pavement Management Contract IFB-602096-14/BJC).  Orlando Paving Company has agreed to 

allow the City of Apopka to piggy-back the terms and conditions of the contract for milling existing 

asphalt, installation of new asphalt and temporary striping throughout various locations within the city 

limits.   

 

Project consists of milling approximately 52,000 S.Y. of existing asphalt, installing approximately 3,800 

tons of new asphalt 1” thick and installing temporary paint striping.  All millings shall be retained by the 

City of Apopka and delivered to the Public Services Complex. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

FY 18 – Streets Resurfacing Fund 101 
  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve the 2018 Streets Resurfacing Project in the amount of $522,107.52 from Orlando Paving 

Company with a 10% contingency amount of $52,210.75 for a total amount of $574,318.27.  
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director   

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

30



31



32



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

   X CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: April 4, 2018 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       

       OTHER: STAFF PRESENTATION 
  

 

SUBJECT: WASTEWATER RESIDUALS TRANSPORT AND DISPOSAL CONTRACT 

EXTENSION 

 

 

   

REQUEST: APPROVE THE FINAL ONE-YEAR EXTENSION OF THE ANNUAL CONTRACT 

WITH SHELLEY’S ENVIRONMENTAL SYSTEMS FOR WASTEWATER 

RESIDUALS TRANSPORT AND DISPOSAL 

 

  
SUMMARY: 
 

On April 20, 2016, the City Council approved a service agreement to transport, treat and dispose of 

biosolids generated at the City’s Water Reclamation Facility.  The Agreement was for one year, with the 

option for two additional one-year contract extensions.  This is the final extension.  The term of the 

extension will be from April 23, 2018 through April 22, 2019. 

 

Shelley’s Environmental Systems has agreed to a one-year extension of the service agreement and 

maintain the same price of $38.00 per cubic yard. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Sewer Operations Fund 401 

    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve the final one-year extension of the annual contract with Shelley’s Environmental Systems for 

wastewater residuals transport and disposal at the price of $38.00 per cubic yard. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director   

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

33



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: April 4, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER:  Final Development Plan  Aerial Map 

    Site Plan 

    Landscape Plan 

    Building Renderings 
  
SUBJECT:    FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – SELF HELP CREDIT UNION 

    

REQUEST:  APPROVE THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR SELF HELP 

CREDIT UNION 
  
SUMMARY:  

 

OWNER/APPLICANT: Self Help Credit Union c/o Randy Chambers, President  

 

ENGINEER:                         Dewberry Engineers, Inc. c/o Christopher J. Allen, P.E. 

 

LOCATION: 667 West Orange Blossom Trail 

 

PARCEL ID #:  09-21-28-5900-04-010 

 

FUTURE LAND USE: Commercial 

 

ZONING: C-2 

 

EXISTING USE:                    Vacant 

 

PROPOSED USE: Drive-through Bank 

 

TRACT SIZE:   1.37 +/- acres  

 

BUILDING SIZE: 2,320 square feet 

 

FLOOR AREA RATIO: 0.039 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

34



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 
SELF HELP CREDIT UNION - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Institutional/Public Use R-O-W/PO/I Old Dixie Highway/Apopka Elementary School 

East (County) Commercial R-O-W/R-2 Old Dixie Highway/Residential 

South (City) Commercial R-O-W/C-1 U.S. 441/Vacant 

West (City) Commercial C-2 (ZIP) Vacant 

          

PROJECT SUMMARY:  The Self Help Credit Union Final Development Plan proposes to construct a 

building with 2,320 square feet floor area for a bank with two drive-through service stations.   The drive-

through station is screened from Old Dixie Highway by a 3-foot high garden wall and landscaping.  With 

frontage on two streets, building architecture has the north and south sides of the building have the 

appearance of a building front wall.     

 

PARKING AND ACCESS:  A total of 21 parking spaces are provided of which 2 are reserved as a 

handicapped parking spaces.  Ingress/egress access points for the development will be via full access onto 

U.S. 441 and Old Dixie Highway. 

 

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS:  The design of the building exterior complies with Section 4.2.1 of the 

Development Design Guidelines that addresses commercial design standards. 

   

STORMWATER:   Stormwater run-off and drainage will be accommodated by an on-site retention pond 

on the western portion of the project site.  The stormwater management system is designed according to 

standards set forth in the Land Development Code.  

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROAL:  A re-plat will be required prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy. 

 

BUFFER/TREE PROGRAM:   A three-foot tall garden wall is provided to screen the drive through area 

from Old Dixie Highway.  The plan also shows a ten-foot landscape buffer along Old Dixie Highway and 

U.S. 441.  The applicant has provided a detailed landscape and irrigation plan for the property. The planting 

materials and irrigation system design are consistent with the water-efficient landscape standards set forth 

in Ordinance No. 2069.  The applicant has committed to submit an arbor mitigation payment fee of $3,629 

based on the number of tree inches replaced. 

 

Total inches on-site: 900 

Total number of specimen trees: 10 

Total inches removed 640 

Total inches retained: 260 

Total inches required: 363 

Total inches replaced: 145 

Total inches post development: 162 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
March 13, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

April 4, 2018 - City Council (1:30 pm)  

35



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 
SELF HELP CREDIT UNION - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 3 

 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Self Help Credit Union – Final 

Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on March 13, 2018, found the Self Help Credit Union Final 

Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and unanimously 

recommended approval of the Self Help Credit Union Final Development Plan, subject to the findings of 

this staff report. 

 

City Council:   Approve the Self Help Credit Union – Final Development Plan 
 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

36



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 
SELF HELP CREDIT UNION - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 4 

 

Self Help Credit Union c/o Randy Chambers 

Dewberry Engineers, Inc. c/o Christopher J. Allen, P.E. 

Self Help Credit Union 

1.37 +/- acres 

Parcel ID No.:  09-21-28-5900-04-01 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

37



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 
SELF HELP CREDIT UNION - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 5 

 

AERIAL MAP 
 

 

  

 

Subject Property 

Subject Property 

 

38



39



SELF HELP

CREDIT UNION

F.F.EL.= 142.0

2,320 SF

PROPOSED

POND A

0.17 AC

O
N

L
Y

6 - AR

6 - LD

LD - 6

AR - 9

VO - 19

VO - 10

VO - 2 VO - 2

19 - VO
13 - VO

37 - PM

163 sf - MP

4,235 sf - PN

278 sf - SA

1 - MG

1 - MG

159 sf - SA

12 - MC

12 - SS

31 - PM

LI - 9

AR - 5

504 sf - PN

239 sf - PN

PN - 604 sf

MP - 64 sf

MP - 145 sfVO - 10

39 - VO

5 - VO

MP - 89 sfMP - 82 sf

MG - 1

SA - 163 sf

SA - 90 sf

SA - 90 sf

6' SCREEN WALL

3' GARDEN WALL

6' SCREEN

WALL

10' BUFFER

10' BUFFER

5' BUFFER

5' BUFFER

PROTECTIVE

BARRIER TYP.

TA - 6

LV - 11

11 - LV

6 - TA

5 - MU

SA - 500 sf

15,320 sf - PN

8 - VO

PM - 12

PM - 23

PM - 3

SA - 218 sf

MG - 1

2,154 sf - SA

376 sf - MP

SELF HELP

CREDIT UNION

F.F.EL.= 142.0

2,320 SF

PROPOSED

POND A

0.17 AC

W

218 SF90 SF

90 SF

163 SF

288 SF

22,024 SF

159 SF

278 SF

522 SF

422 SF

321

C 

B 

A 

SHEET NO.

KEY PLAN

SEAL

SCALE

4

D

E

5

APPROVED BY

CHECKED BY

REVISIONS

TITLE

DRAWN BY

DATE

PROJECT NO.

FI
N

A
L 

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

A
P

O
P

K
A

, F
LO

R
ID

A

79OF

M
ic

ha
el

 J
. U

rc
hu

k
FL

 R
LA

 #
 6

66
66

75
 F

eb
 2

0,
 2

01
8

Dewberry Engineers Inc.
800 NORTH MAGNOLIA AVE
SUITE 1000
ORLANDO, FL 32803
PHONE: 407.843.5120
ENGINEERING BUSINESS -8794
LAND. ARCH. - LC26000569

S
E

LF
 H

E
LP

C
R

E
D

IT
 U

N
IO

N

JULY 6, 2017

L2.10

LANDSCAPE

PLAN

N

0' 20' 40'

LANDSCAPE PLAN
SCALE: 1" = 20'-0"

INTERIOR VUA LANDSCAPE AREA DIAGRAM

N.T.S.

INTERIOR VUA LANDSCAPE  AREA CALCULATIONS:

TOTAL VEHICULAR USE AREA: 22,024

INTERIOR LANDSCAPE AREA

REQUIRED(10%): 2,202 SF

PROVIDED: 2,230 SF

TREES

REQUIRED: 4 (21 SPACES - 1/6 SPACES)

 PROVIDED: 6 (5 PROVIDED, 1 EXISTING)

BUFFER SCHEDULE

NORTHEAST - 10' REQUIRED - 10' PROVIDED

300 LF CANOPY: 1/35 LF MIN. SHRUB: 10/35 LF MIN.

REQUIRED 9 86

PROVIDED 9 0

SOUTHEAST - 5' REQUIRED - 5' PROVIDED

192 LF CANOPY: 1/35 LF MIN. GROUNDCOVER/HEDGE

REQUIRED 5 CONTINUOUS

PROVIDED 6 CONTINUOUS

SOUTHWEST - - 10' REQUIRED - 10' PROVIDED

300 LF CANOPY: 1/35 LF MIN. SHRUB: 10/35 LF MIN.

REQUIRED 9 86

PROVIDED 9 75

NORTHWEST - 5' REQUIRED - 5' PROVIDED

206 LF CANOPY: 1/35 LF MIN.

REQUIRED 6

PROVIDED 5

IRRIGATED TURF AREA:

BAHIA: 20,903 SF (0.4799 ACRES)

ST. AUGUSTINE      2,772 SF

IRRIGATION NOTES:

1. ALL PLANT WATER USE ZONES SHALL BE IRRIGATED

SEPARATELY.

2. TURF AREAS SHALL BE IRRIGATED WITH SPRAY HEADS AND

SHALL BE IRRIGATED SEPARATELY FROM SHRUBS.

3. TREES SHALL BE IRRIGATED SEPARATELY WITH BUBBLERS.

4. ALL TURF, SHRUBS AND GROUND COVER AREAS SHALL BE

IRRIGATED WITH AN UNDERGROUND SPRINKLER SYSTEM AND

BE DESIGNED WITH 100% COVERAGE.

5. EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN SHALL NOT BE IRRIGATED AND

SHALL NOT HAVE ANY PIPING OR HEADS WITHIN THE ROOT

PROTECTION ZONES.

6. IRRIGATE ALL LANDSCAPED AREAS UP TO PROPERTY LINES,

ROW'S,

7. FULL IRRIGATION DESIGN PLAN TO BE SUBMITTED WITH FINAL

SITE PLAN SUBMITTAL.

LANDSCAPE NOTES:

1. LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION PLANS SHALL BE IN

ACCORDANCE WITH LDC ARTICLE V, WATER-WISE ORDINANCE

NO. 2069.

2. ALL SERVICE EQUIPMENT AND UTILITY BOXES MUST BE FULLY

SCREENED.

3. ALL AREAS THAT ARE NOT PAVED OR MULCHED SHALL BE

SODDED TO THE LIMITS OF SOD AND PROPERTY LINE WITH

BAHIA SOD.

4. SOD ALL PONDS WITH BAHIA SOD TO TWO(2) FEET BELOW

NORMAL WATER ELEVATION, REFER TO CIVIL DRAWINGS FOR

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

5. SOD ALL DISTURBED AREAS WITHIN MERCANTILE LANE RIGHT

OF WAY.

6. ALL TREES AND SHRUBS SHALL BE PLACED WITH A MINIMUM

OF 5' HORIZONTAL SEPARATION FROM TOHO MAINTAINED

UTILITIES.

7. ALL PROPOSED TREES SHALL BE MEASURED, FOR DBH, AT 54"

ABOVE SOIL.

TREES CODE QTY BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME CONT CAL SIZE REMARKS

                                 AR 20 Acer rubrum / Red Maple -- 2-1/2" DBH

                                 LI 9 Lagerstroemia indica / Crape Myrtle 15 gal 2-1/2" DBH

                                 LD 12 Livistona decipiens / Livistona Palm 15 gal 10` - 14` CT

                                 MG 4 Magnolia grandiflora / Southern Magnolia 15 gal 3" DBH

                                 SS 12 Sabal palmetto / Cabbage Palmetto 15 gal 10` - 14` CT

SHRUBS CODE QTY BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME CONT. SIZE REMARKS

                                 MU 5 Muhlenbergia capillaris / Pink Muhly 1 gal

                                 MC 12 Myrica cerifera / Wax Myrtle 5 gal 36" HT & 24" SPR

                                 PM 106 Podocarpus macrophyllus / Yew Pine 5 gal 36" HT & 24" SPR

                                 VO 127 Viburnum odoratissimum / Sweet Viburnum 5 gal 36" HT & 24" SPR

GROUND COVERS CODE QTY BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME CONT FIELD2 FIELD3 SPACING REMARKS

                                 LV 22 Liriope muscari `Variegata` / Variegated Lily Turf 1 gal FULL 18" o.c.

                                 MP 1,800 sf Mulch - / Shredded Hardwood Mulch flat 3" Depth

                                 PN 20,903 sf Paspalum notatum / Bahia Grass sod

                                 SA 2,772 sf Stenotaphrum secundatum `Floritam` / Floritam St. Augustine Sod sod

                                 TA 12 Trachelospermum asiaticum `Asiatic` / Asiatic Jasmine flat 24" o.c.

PLANT SCHEDULE

40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: April 4, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER:   Aerial Map 

    Final Development Plan/Plat 

    Landscape Plan 
  

SUBJECT:    ZARABROOKE SUBDIVISION FINAL DEVELOPMENT 

PLAN/PLAT 

    

REQUEST:  APPROVAL OF THE ZARABROOKE SUBDIVISION FINAL 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 
  

SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER:    Zarabrooke, LLC c/o Barry Kalmanson 
 
APPLICANT/ENGINEER:  Lochrane Engineering, Inc. c/o Edgardo Garcia-Luna 
 
LOCATION:   829 Paradiso Court 
 
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 05-21-28-0000-00-056 
 
FUTURE LAND USE:   Residential Low Density (max. 0-5 du/ac) 
 
ZONING:    R-3 (Residential Multiple Family) 
 
EXISTING USE:   Vacant 
 
PROPOSED USE:   Single Family Residential Subdivision (14) Lots 
     Minimum Lot Size: 9808 square feet; Minimum Lot Width: 70 feet 
 
TRACT SIZE:    5.59 +/- acres  
 
DENSITY:    2.68 du/ac (proposed) 
 
 

FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners     HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

  

74



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

ZARABROOKE SUBDIVISION – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 

PAGE 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Estates R-3 The Courtyards Residential Subdivision 

East (City) Office PO/I Vick Road Right-of-Way/Apopka High School 

South (City) Residential Low PUD Parkside at Errol Estates Subdivision 

West (City) Residential Low PUD Parkside at Errol Estates Subdivision 

 
Project Use:  The Zarabrooke Subdivision Final Development Plan proposes the development of 14 single 

family residential lots.  The minimum typical lot width is 70 feet with a minimum lot size of 9,808 square 

feet.  The required minimum living area for the subdivision is 1,350 square feet as set forth in Chapter 2 of 

the Land Development Code for single-family lots located within the R-3 zoning..     The minimum setbacks 

applicable to this project are: 

 

Setback Min. Standard 

Front 25’* 

Side 7.5'** 

Rear 20’ 

Corner 25’ 

*Front-entry garage must be setback 30 feet. 

**15 feet distance requirement between structures. 

 

Access:    Ingress/egress access points for the development will be via full access onto Vick Road.   

 

Stormwater:  The retention pond on the western portion of the site has been designed to meet the City’s 

Land Development Code requirements. 

 

Buffer and Tree Program:  A 6-feet tall masonry or concrete or brick-finished wall will be located on the 

east boundary of the project site with a subdivision entry sign and feature, abutting Vick Road.  The plans 

shows a wrought-iron style fence with a brink posts on a portion of the stormwater pond, Tract A. 

 

Buffers are provided consistent with the Land Development Code.  A buffer wall is not located along the 

western boundary of the Duke Energy property.   A screen wall is not required by the Land Development 

Code when a development abuts single family residential uses, and screen wall is not proposed by within 

the Final Development Plan.  Future homeowners will have the option to install a fence along their rear lot 

lines. 

 

Tree Program: 

 

The following is a summary of the tree replacement program: 

 

Total number of specimen trees: 107 

Total number of non-specimen trees: 53 

Total inches retained:    1054 

Total inches replaced:    480 

Total inches post development: 1534 
75



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

ZARABROOKE SUBDIVISION – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 

PAGE 3 

 

Based on the number of tree inches preserved and additional tree inches replaced, a tree mitigation fee is 

not required for this project. 

 

All preserved trees shall be protected during lot construction and grading.  Appropriate tree barricades shall 

be installed around each tree or group of trees along the tree drip line. 

   

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  No development activity can occur until such time that a concurrency 

mitigation agreement has been approved by OCPS.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

March 13, 2018 - Planning Commission, 5:30 p.m. 

April 4, 2018 - City Council, 1:30 p.m.  
 
  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval of the Zarabrooke Subdivision Final 

Development Plan/Plat subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on March 13, 2018, found the Zarabrooke Subdivision Final 

Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and recommend 

approval (5-1) of the Zarabrooke Subdivision Final Development Plan/Plat subject to the findings of this 

staff report.     

 

City Council:  Approve the Zarabrooke Subdivision Final Development Plan and Plat. 

 

This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
  

76



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

ZARABROOKE SUBDIVISION – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 

PAGE 4 

 

Zarabrooke, LLC c/o Barry Kalmanson  
Lochrane Engineering, Inc., 
c/o Edgardo Garcia-Luna 

Zarabrooke Subdivision 

5.59 +/- Acres 
Proposed number of units:  14 

Parcel ID #s: 05-21-28-0000-00-056 
 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

77



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

ZARABROOKE SUBDIVISION – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 

PAGE 5 

 

 

 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
78



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

ZARABROOKE SUBDIVISION – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 

PAGE 6 

 

Parkside at Errol Estates Phase Three Northern Buffer Tract “H”: 

Landscape/Wall/Buffer  

 

 

 

 

Tract “H” Buffer 

Tract – 10’ width 

Tract “H” Buffer 

Tract – 10’ width 

79



NOTES:

  1. TYPE OF UNIT: SINGLE FAMILY DETACHED

  2. MINIMUM NET LIVING AREA: 1,800 SF

  3. MINIMUM BUILDING SETBACKS:

    FRONT : 25 FEET

    REAR:    20 FEET

    SIDE:     7.5 FEET (25 FEET, CORNER LOT) (15' BETWEEN BUILDINGS)

  4. MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT: 35 FEET

  5. MAXIMUM BUILDING COVERAGE PER LOT:  3,575 SF  (0.08 AC)

  6. MAXIMUM IMPERVIOUS SURFACE PER LOT 3,825 SF  (0.09 AC)

7. MAXIMUM NUMBER OF LOTS: 15

8. MINIMUM LOT SIZE REQUIREMENT: 7,500 SF (0.172 AC.) 

9. MINIMUM LOT WIDTH: 70 FEET

10. MAXIMUM GROSS DENSITY: 15 LOTS / 5.59 AC. = 2.68 DU/AC

PUBLIC ROADS WITH 50' RIGHT-OF-WAY

12. LANDSCAPE BUFFERS 10' MINIMUM.

    SIDE STREET:  25 FEET

ZARABROOKE COURT

TRACT 'C'

T
R

A
C

T
 
'
B

'

TRACT 'A'

STROM
W

ATER

POND

5
0
'
 
R

O
W

T
R

A
C

T
 
'
D

'

40'

6
0

'

48'

6
0

'

50'

6
2

'

15'

11'

10'

EXIST15' EASEM
ENT

11

13

9

2

.

9

8

'

93'

5

4

.

9

7

'

70'

70'

70'

9

2

.
2

0

'

90'

1
4
8
'

12

1
4
8
'

1
4
8
'

1
4
8
'

70'

70'

10

70'

70'

9

1
4
8
'

1
4
8
'

70'

70'

70'

70'

7

8

1
4
8
'

70'

70'

70'

70'

6

5

1
4
8
'

1
4
8
'

1
4
8
'

70'

70'

70'

70'

3

4

1
3
3
'

1
3
3
'

69'

7

1

.
5

9

'

70'

74.25'

1

2

133.76'

9
8
.
2
0
'

1
9
8
'

376

377

378

379

380

381

382

383

384

385

386

387

388

389

390

391

392

373

374

375

393

394

395

396

1
4
8
'

W
V

14

2

8

.

0

3

'

9

1

.

9

8

'

5
2
.
9
1
'

149.08'

217.54'

5
0
.
0
0
'

2

1

.

5

8

'

5
8
'

VI
CK

  R
O

AD

MARTINSTREET

X

X

X

X

EL

x

(PLAT BOOK 31, PAGES 63 & 64)
THE COURTYARDS PHASE TWO

EA
SE

M
EN

T 
AR

EA
 "A

"

O
F 

TH
E 

N
E 

1/
4 

O
F 

SE
CT

IO
N

 5
-2

1-
28

W
ES

T 
LI

N
E 

O
F 

TH
E 

N
 1

/2
 O

F 
TH

E 
SE

 1
/4

TH
E 

CO
U

RT
YA

RD
S 

PH
AS

E 
TW

O
PL

AT
 B

O
O

K 
31

, P
AG

ES
 6

3 
&

 6
4

TR
AC

T 
"E

"

TRACT "H", 10.00'
LANDSCAPE/WALL/BUFFER

TRACT "H", 10.00'
LANDSCAPE/WALL/BUFFER

5.00' DRAINAGE & UTILITY EASEMENTPLAT BOOK 31, PAGES 63-64

15' DRAINAGE EASEMENT
ORB 7850, PAGE 15

PARKSIDE AT ERROL ESTATES PHASE III (PLAT BOOK 65, PAGES 146-155)

2
5

'

3
0

'

3
0

'

SIGNAL

FUTURE

LAND USE

AREA (SF)

AREA

(ACRES)

%

SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 148,143.83 3.401 60.9

TRACT 'A' (STORMWATER DETENTION POND) 35,935.90 0.825 14.8

TRACT'B' (SCREEN WALL) 1,380.00 0.032 0.6

TRACT 'C' (ENTRANCE LANDSCAPE ISLAND) 552.75 0.013 0.2

TRACT 'D' (STORMWATER MAINTENANCE) 1,480.00 0.034 0.6

PUBLIC ROW (ZARABROOKE CT.) 55,851.00 1.282 23.0

TOTAL 243,343.48 5.586 100.0

DESCRIPTION

AREA (SF)

AREA

(ACRES)

%

PERVIOUS (GREEN AREA) 153,523.48 3.524 63.1

IMPERVIOUS (BUILDING)     43,288.00 0.994 17.8

IMPERVIOUS (PAVERS AND SIDEWALK) 17,216.00 0.395 7.1

IMPERVIOUS (ROADWAY) 29,316.00 0.673 12.0

TOTAL 243,343.48 5.586 100.0

INDIVIDUAL LOT

INFORMATION

LOT NO.

LOT

FRONTAGE

(LF)

LOT AREA

(SF)

1 69.00 9,808.62

2 71.59 9,835.00

3 70.00 10,360.00

4 70.00 10,360.00

5 70.00 10,360.00

6 70.00 10,360.00

7 70.00 10,360.00

8 70.00 10,360.00

9 70.00 10,360.00

10 70.00 10,360.00

11 70.00 10,360.00

12 90.00 11,260.00

13 92.98 11,000.31

14 54.97 12,999.90

TOTAL 148,143.83

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

SITE DATA:

1.  TOTAL GROSS ACREAGE: 5.59 ACRES +/-

2.  EXISTING ZONING: R-3, (5 UNITS/ACRE).

3.  FUTURE LAND USE: RESIDENTIAL LOW (0-5 DU/AC)

4.  WATER SERVICE: CITY OF APOPKA PUBLIC SERVICES

     WATER DEMAND:

     FIRE FLOW: ON-SITE FIRE HYDRANTS      MIN. OF 1000 GPM PER HYDRANT

5.  SANITARY SEWER SERVICE: CITY OF APOPKA PUBLIC  SERVICES.

6. LAND UTILIZATION:

11. ALL ROADS WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION WILL BE DEDICATED

15' UTILITY & DRAINAG
E EASEM

ENT

10' DRAINAG
E EASEM

ENT

10' STO
RM

W
ATER

M
AINTENANCE

TRACT 'D'

CLEAR AREA

CLEAR AREA

3
5
 
M

P
H

3
5
 
M

P
H

4
7
0
'
 
S

I
G

H
T

 
D

I
S

T
A

N
C

E

4
7
0
'
 
S

I
G

H
T

 
D

I
S

T
A

N
C

E

2
5
'

PRO
PO

SED

SCREEN W
ALL

SEE NOTE 14

6' HIGH DECORATIVE

IRO
N W

RO
UG

HT STYLE

FENCE (IRON OR

ALUM
INUM

)

(2) IRON W
ROUGHT STYLE

6' SW
ING

 G
ATE

(IRO
N O

R ALUM
INUM

)

PUD

RESIDENTIAL LOW

PR

RESIDENTIAL LOW

R
3

R
E

S
I
D

E
N

T
I
A

L
 
L
O

W

13. DUE TO THE NUMBER OF LOTS PROPOSED (LESS THAN 20) A PARK

      IS NOT REQUIRED TO BE PROVIDED PER THE CITY'S LDC.

14. WALL WILL HAVE BRICK FINISH SIMILAR IN FINISH & COLOR TO EXISTING

      WALLS ALONG VICK ROAD.  COLUMNS WILL BE SPACED AT 12' INTERVALS.

      (REFER TO DETAIL ON SHEET C5.2).

15. SUBDIVISION ENTRY WILL CONSIST OF ONE OR MORE OF THE FOLLOWING:

                 A. EXTENSIVE LANDSCAPE / IRRIGATION AT ENTRY (TRACT 'C'

                     MAINTAINED BY HOA).

                 B. HARDSCAPE / PAVER DESIGN.

                 C. DECORATIVE SUBDIVISION IDENTIFICATION SIGNAGE

                      W/ LANDSCAPING.

                 D. POSSIBLE ABOVE GROUND FEATURES AS DEEMED

                     APPROPRIATE FOR STYLE / THEME OF SUBDIVISION.

16. STREET LIGHT POLES AND FIXTURES WILL BE OF DECORATIVE TYPE

      MATCHING STYLE / THEME OF SUBDIVISION, AND SHALL BE PROVIDED BY

DUKE ENERGY.

REFER TO
 FDO

T

INDEX 546 (1 OF 2)

SUBDIVISION ENTRY

FEATURES SEE NO
TE 15

17. STREET TREES SPACED AT 25' TO 30' ON CENTER (NOT INCLUDING LOT TREES)

      MEETING CITY'S MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS WILL BE SHOWN ON LANDSCAPE PLAN

      PROVIDED WITH THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN.

18. TRACT 'A' WILL BE LANDSCAPED IN ADDITION TO THE DECORATIVE FENCE

      AS A MEANS OR MITIGATING THE RECTILINEAR SHADE OF THE POND.

      PERPETUAL MAINTENANCE WILL BE ADDRESSED BY THE HOA COVENANTS

      AND RESTRICTIONS.

19. STREET TREES AND A CONTINUOUS HEDGE ALONG VICK ROAD WILL BE

      PROVIDED PER CITY REQUIREMENTS AND SPACED AT 35' ON CENTER.

20. ALL ABOVE GROUND UTILITY EQUIPMENT W/ IN EASEMENT WILL BE

      SCREENED BY LANDSCAPING PLAN - ON SITE / PRIVATE EQUIPMENT

      WHICH REQUIRES SCREENING WILL BE ADDRESSED BY THE HOA

      COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS.

10' UTILITY

EASEM
ENT

5' LANDSCAPE

EASEM
ENT

REM
OVE FENCE

TYPE I
TYPE II

NTS

TYPE III

* ALL UNITS WILL PROVIDE MIN. 2 CAR GARAGE

"VEHICULAR ACCESS RIGHTS FROM ZARABROOKE

COURT RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL BE DEDICATED TO

THE CITY OF APOPKA"

NOTES:

1. A MINIMUM OF 3 LOTS MUST BE DESIGNED WITH RECESSED TYPE GARAGE.  ALL OTHER LOTS CAN BE DESIGNED WITH GARAGE TYPES THAT ARE EITHER

SIDE-ENTRY OR FLUSH.

2. GARAGE DESIGN TO BE STAGGERED SO THAT NO ONE GARAGE TYPE IS PLACED  NEXT TO EACH OTHER TO "BREAK-UP" ELEVATIONS WHERE FEASIBLE.

3. UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCE SHALL ANY GARAGE PROJECT OR EXTEND FROM  THE FRONT BUILDING FACADE.

4. FRONT ENTRY GARAGES MUST HAVE 30-FT SETBACK FROM R/W AND SIDE ENTRY  GARAGES MUST HAVE 25-FT SETBACK WITH FENESTRATION.

5. NO EDGE OF A RESIDENTIAL DRIVEWAY SHALL BE CLOSER THAN FIVE FEET TO THE ADJOINING PROPERTY.

FUTURE TRAFFIC

SIGNAL, SEE NOTE 26

DRAINAGE SW
ALE

DRAINAGE SW
ALE

DUKE ENERGY OCALA MODEL

OUTSIDE LIGHT POLE /FIXTURE

TYPICAL BUILDING LAYOUTS

7.  PERVIOUS/IMPERVIOUS AREA:

PROJECT SIGN

(ON SCREEN W
ALL)

21. IN LIEU OF CONSTRUCTING SIDEWALKS ON BOTH SIDES OF ZARABROOKE COURT 'A'

      DEVELOPER ELECTS TO CONTRIBUTE TO THE CITY'S SIDEWALK

      CONSTRUCTION FUND FOR THE EQUIVALENT OF 5,000 SF OF 4" SIDEWALK.

22. ALL LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS INCLUDING MIN. DBH TREES PER LOT, ETC.

      MAY BE NECESSARILY UPGRADED OR ENHANCED BEYOND THE CITY'S MINIMUM

      STANDARDS IN ORDER TO MEET THE TREE REPLACEMENT REQUIREMENTS.

23. LANDSCAPING CONSISTING OF UNDERSTORY TREES

      (HOLLY, ETC.) AND HEDGES WILL BE PROVIDED ALONG THE SOUTH PROPERTY LINE

      AND MAINTAINED BY THE HOA.

24. LOT TREES (3 CANOPY, 1 UNDERSTORY) WILL BE PROVIDED AT

      TIME OF LOT DEVELOPMENT.  CANOPY TREES WILL BE OF MAPLE, OAK OR SIMILAR

      VARIETY.  LOT TREES WILL BE MINIMUM 3" DBH AT TIME OF PLANTING.

25. STREET LIGHTS AND FIXTURES SHALL BE PROVIDED BY DUKE ENERGY.  THE 

CITY OF APOPKA SHALL COVER THE COST FOR STANDARD LIGHT STYLE; THE

DEVELOPER SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE UPGRADE COST TO LED AND

DECORATIVE LIGHTING.

26. CITY OF APOPKA IS PLANNING TO CONSTRUCT A TRAFFIC SIGNAL AT THE

INTERSECTION OF VICK ROAD AND MARTIN STREET.  ZARABROOKE, LLC WILL

     ENTER INTO A COST-SHARING AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY FOR THE ADDITION

     OF A WEST LEG OF THE INTERSECTION FOR ZARABROOKE COURT.

27. STREET TREES SOUTH OF ZARABROOKE COURT WILL BE PLANTED AT TIME OF

      C.O. OF THE CORRESPONDING RESIDENTIAL LOTS ACROSS THE STREET.

28.  ARCHITECTURAL RENDERINGS FOR ALL RESIDENTIAL BUILDINGS MUST BE

SUBMITTED TO, AND APPROVED BY THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

BEFORE SUBMITTING FOR BUILDING PERMIT.

N
O

R
T

H

1000

SCALE: 1" = 50'

50

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

D
A

T
E

N
O

.

DRAWING NO.

D
E

S
I
G

N
E

R
:

P
R

J
.
 
M

G
R

:

J
O

B
 
#
:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

E
N

G
I
N

E
E

R
 

E
N

G
I
N

E
E

R
:

R
E

C
O

R
D

 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G

T
H

I
S

 
R

E
C

O
R

D
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
 
I
S

 
B

A
S

E
D

 
O

N
 
T

H
E

 
R

E
S

U
L

T
S

O
F

 
L

I
M

I
T

E
D

 
P

E
R

I
O

D
I
C

 
F

I
E

L
D

 
O

B
S

E
R

V
A

T
I
O

N
S

 
D

U
R

I
N

G

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N
,
 
A

 
R

E
V

I
E

W
 
O

F
 
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R

F
U

R
N

I
S

H
E

D
 
R

E
D

L
I
N

E
D

 
P

L
A

N
S

 
I
N

D
I
C

A
T

I
N

G
 
C

H
A

N
G

E
S

I
N

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
D

 
D

U
R

I
N

G
 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N
,
 
A

N
D

W
I
T

N
E

S
S

E
D

 
U

T
I
L

I
T

Y
 
T

E
S

T
I
N

G
 
O

F
 
D

R
I
N

K
I
N

G
 
W

A
T

E
R

A
N

D
 
W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
 
S

Y
S

T
E

M
S

.
 
 
A

L
T

H
O

U
G

H
 
T

H
E

A
C

C
U

R
A

C
Y

 
C

A
N

 
N

O
T

 
B

E
 
G

U
A

R
A

N
T

E
E

D
,
 
T

H
E

E
N

G
I
N

E
E

R
 
B

E
L

I
E

V
E

S
 
T

H
I
S

 
R

E
C

O
R

D
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
 
I
S

C
O

R
R

E
C

T
 
T

O
 
T

H
E

 
B

E
S

T
 
O

F
 
H

I
S

/
H

E
R

 
K

N
O

W
L

E
D

G
E

.

F
L
 
L
I
C

.
 
#
 

D
A

T
E

:
 
J
a
n
.
 
2
9
,
 
2
0
1
8

E
D

G
A

R
D

O
 
G

A
R

C
I
A

-
L

U
N

A
,
 
P

.
E

.

F
L

.
 
L

I
C

.
 
#

7
6

8
0

2

F
O

R

A
T

Z
A

R
A

B
R

O
O

K
E

V
I
C

K
 
&

 
W

.
 
M

A
R

T
I
N

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

A
P

O
P

K
A

,
 
F

L
O

R
I
D

A

Z
A

R
A

B
R

O
O

K
E

,
 
L
L
C

E
G

L

E
G

L

1
7
0
1
2
.
2
0

J
M

SHEET

OF

S
J
R

W
M

D
 
R

E
V

I
S

I
O

N
S

 

1
0

/
2

4
/
1

7

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
A

P
O

P
K

A
 
R

E
V

I
S

I
O

N
S

 

1
0

/
2

6
/
1

7

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
A

P
O

P
K

A
 
R

E
V

I
S

I
O

N
S

 

0
1

/
0

8
/
1

7

O
:
\
1
7
0
1
2
.
2
0
\
C

O
N

S
T

\
C

0
.
2
 
M

A
S

T
E

R
 
D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 
P

L
A

N
.
d
w

g
 
-
 
 
J
a
n
 
2
9
,
 
 
2
0
1
8
 
-
 
3
:
0
9
p
m

M
A

S
T

E
R

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T

P
L
A

N

C0.2

3

22

80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: April 4, 2018 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
X OTHER: Ordinance   Vicinity Map 
    Future Land Use Map 
    Zoning Map 
    Adjacent Uses 
    Ordinance No. 2635 

  
SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2635 – COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE 

LAND USE AMENDMENT – KENNEY HARRY CHARLES MCALISTER 
    
REQUEST:  SECOND READING - ORDINANCE NO. 2635 – COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – 

SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – KENNEY HARRY 
CHARLES MCALISTER FROM “COUNTY” RURAL (1 DU/10 AC) TO “CITY” 
COMMERCIAL (MAX. 0.25 FAR) 

  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER: Kenney Harry Charles McAllister 
 
APPLICANT: Tannath Design, Inc., c/o Brian Potts, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: Northwest corner of the N. Hermit Smith Road and U.S. 441 road intersection 
 
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 01-21-27-0000-00-001 
 
EXISTING USE: Woodlands 
 
CURRENT ZONING: “County” A-1 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Convenience Market w/ vehicle fuel service (This parcel will be used for 

landscape buffer area.) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” PUD (Note: this Future Land Use amendment request is being processed 

along with a request to change the zoning classification from “County” A-1 (ZIP)  
to “City” PUD (Planned Unit Development). 

 
TRACT SIZE: 0.04 +/- acres  
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT: EXISTING: Vacant 

PROPOSED:  Up to 479 sq. ft. service station  
  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING/Small Scale Flu Amends/2018/Kenney Harry Charles McAllister 
  

104



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

MCALLISTER– SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The subject parcel was annexed into the city on January 17, 2018 by 

Ordinance Number 2627.  Presently, the subject property does not have a “city” future land use designation 

or “city” zoning classification assigned. The applicant’s intent for the “Commercial” Future Land Use 

Designation is to incorporate this parcel with the north-adjacent parcel, 1102 Hermit Smith Road. The 

applicant is applying for “Planned Unit Development” for the two parcels to accommodate a service station.  

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is consistent with the 

Commercial Future Land Use designation.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the 

Future Land Use policies.   Planning & Zoning staff determines that the below policies support a 

Commercial FLUM designation at the subject site:  

 
Future Land Use Element 
 

1. Policy 3.1.i  
 
Commercial 
 

Primary uses shall be for business, commerce, and convenience shopping which may be neighborhood or 
community oriented. The maximum floor area ratio shall be .25 gross floor area. Institutional land uses of 
less than five acres; and public facilities or utilities of less than five acres. 
Planned Unit Development uses may include: (Policy 3.1.i) 
 

1. All primary uses 
 

2. All Special Exception uses 
 

3. Multifamily Development of up to fifteen dwelling units per acre, when located within a primary 
use structure 
 

4. Other uses deemed compatible with and complimentary to the other proposed master planned uses 
and the surrounding neighborhoods.  

 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  Because this request represents a change to a non-residential future 
land use designation and zoning classification, school capacity determination by Orange County Public 
Schools is not required. 
 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on February 12, 2018.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE:  

March 13, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

March 21, 2018 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

April 4, 2018 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 2nd Reading and Adoption  

 

DULY ADVERTISED:  

March 2, 2018 – Public Notice and Notification (Apopka Chief, Letters, Poster) 

March 23, 2018 – Public Notice (Apopka Chief)  

 

  

105



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

MCALLISTER– SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 
 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval to transmit a change in Future Land Use 

from “County” Rural to “City” Commercial for the property owned by Kenney Harry Charles McAllister 

Trust, subject to the information and findings in the staff report. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on March 13, 2018, found the proposed Future Land Use 
amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding 
area; and unanimously recommended approval of the change of Future Land Use Designation from 
“County” Rural to “City” Commercial, subject to the findings of the Staff Report. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on March 21, 2018, accepted the first reading of Ordinance 2635, and held 
it over for second reading and adoption on April 4, 2018.  
 
Recommended Motion: Adopt Ordinance 2635. 
 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 

106



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

MCALLISTER– SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 
 

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) “County” Rural “County” A-1 (ZIP Woodlands 

East (City) “County” Rural “City” A-1 (ZIP) Woodlands/Grasslands 

South (County) “County” Rural (1 du/10 ac) “County” C-3 & R-3 Single-family homes 

West (City) “County” Rural “County” A-1 (ZIP) Woodlands 

 
The concept plan shows proposed accesses on S.R. 441 and Hermit Smith Road. 
 
II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 
The subject property is located on a site that is ideal for commercial use, which makes the request for a 
Commercial future land use designation consistent with the Comprehensive Plan policies listed above, as 
well as the general future land use character of the surrounding area. 
 
Properties to the south and west are developed as existing single-family homes, which properties to the east 
and north are vacant, but have a future land use designation and zoning classification that permit single-
family residential.  
 
The proposed Residential Low Suburban future land use designation is consistent with the general future 
land use character of the surrounding area.  
 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement 
on October 26, 2004.  The subject property is located within the “Northern Area” of the JPA.  The proposed 
FLUM Amendment request for a change from “County” Rural (0-10 du/ac) to “City” Commercial (Max. 0.25 
FAR) is consistent with the terms of the JPA (Second Amendment).  Tannath Design, Inc., is the applicant 
of the proposed future land use amendment and proposed change of zoning for the Property, and has been 
notified of the hearing schedule.   
 
 Transportation:  Road access to the site is from West Orange Blossom Trail to the South and Hermit 
Smith Road to the East. 
 
 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act: The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the 
adopted Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  The proposed amendment is consistent with the 
adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been 
reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of 
Apopka's adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the 
following policies: 

 
 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that there are karst features in the vicinity of this property.   

107



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

MCALLISTER– SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 
 
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The current use of the Property is vacant and heavily 
wooded. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future 
land use designation for the property is Commercial (max FAR 0.25).  Based on the housing element of the 
City's Comprehensive Plan, this amendment will not increase the City’s future population 
  
CALCULATIONS: 
ADOPTED: 1 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 3 persons 
PROPOSED: N/A, no residential 
 
 Housing Needs: This amendment will not negatively impact the housing needs as projected in the 
Comprehensive Plan.   
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: A habitat study is required 
for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  At the time the Master Site Plan or Preliminary 
Development Plan is submitted to the City, the development applicant must conduct a species survey and 
submit a habitat management plan if any threatened or endangered species are identified within the project 
site. 
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to 
Chapter 3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
  
Sanitary Sewer Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None; 81 GPD/Capita ; 81 

GPD / Capita 

 

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 

 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:    196  GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:    72  GPD 

 

4. Capacity available:  Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation: 81  GPD/Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: 

None 

 

 Potable Water Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard: None; 177 GPD/Capita ; 177 

GPD / Capita 

  

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka 

  

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:    210  GPD 

108



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

MCALLISTER– SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 
 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:   96  GPD 

 

4. Capacity available: Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177  GPD / Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177  GPD / Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 

amendment: None 

 

8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area:  Yes 

 

 Solid Waste 

 

1. Facilities serving the site:  City of Apopka 

 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of 

Apopka 

 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:   12  lbs/  day 

 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:   1  lbs /  day 

 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 

amendment: None  

 

 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 

development approval. 

 

 Infrastructure Information 

 

 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 

 

 Permitting agency: St. John’s River Water Management District 

 

 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  9.353  MGD 

 

 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696  MGD 

 

 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 

 

 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: Yes 

 

 Drainage Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site:   None 

 
109



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

MCALLISTER– SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 
 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm  

 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm 

 

4. Improvement/expansion: On site retention / detention ponds 

 

 Recreation 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System ;  3 acre / 1000 

capita 

 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:   0.009  acres 

 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  N/A acres 

 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 

amendment: N/A 
 
 Standards set forth in the City’s Land Development Code will require any development plans to provide 
parkland and recreation facilities and open space for residents residing with the new development. 
 
This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
  

110



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

MCALLISTER– SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 
 

Kenney Harry Charles McAllister 

0.04 +/- acres  
Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From: “County” Rural  
To: “City” Commercial 

Proposed Change of Zoning: 
From: A-1 (ZIP) 

To: PUD 
Parcel ID #: 01-21-27-0000-00-001 

 
 

VICINITY MAP  

 
111



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

MCALLISTER– SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

 

 

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

 

 
 

  

112



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

MCALLISTER– SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 
 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 
 

 

 

 

 
113



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

MCALLISTER– SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 11 
 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
114



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2635 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING THE 

FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM “COUNTY” RURAL (1 DU\10 

AC) TO “CITY” COMMERCIAL (MAX. FAR 0.25) FOR CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED WEST OF HERMIT SMITH ROAD 

AND NORTH OF ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL, COMPRISING 0.04 

ACRES, MORE OR LESS AND OWNED BY KENNEY HARRY CHARLES 

MCALLISTER; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING 

FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka adopted the Apopka Comprehensive 
Plan by Ordinance No. 653 on October 2, 1991, pursuant to Section 163.3184, Florida Statutes 
and most recently amended it by Ordinance No. 2606 on December 20, 2017; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s local planning agency (Planning Commission) has, in 
preparation of the amended version of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan, analyzed the proposed 
amendment pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, F.S., found it to be consistent with the intent of the 
Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and held public hearings providing for full public participation. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I. Purpose and Intent. 
 
 This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the authority 
set out in, the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation 
Act, Sections 163.3184 and 163.3187, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section II. Future Land Use Element. 
  
 Page 1-15 (Map 1-3) of the Future Land Use Element of the City of Apopka 
Comprehensive Plan, as most recently amended by Ordinance No. 2606, is amended in its entirety 
to change the land use from “County” Rural (1 du\10 ac) to “City” Commercial (Max. FAR 0.25), 
for certain real property generally located west of Hermit Smith Road and north of U.S. 441,  
comprising 2.45 acres more or less, and owned by Kenney Harry Charles McAllister; as further 
described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 
 
 Section III. Applicability and Effect. 
 
 The applicability and effect of the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan shall be as provided 
by the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation Act, 
Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section IV.  Severability. 
 
 If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and 
portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

115



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2635 
PAGE 2 
 
 Section V.  The Community Development Director is hereby authorized to amend the 
Future Land Use to comply with this ordinance. 
 
 Section VI. Effective Date.   This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
 ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 
4th day of April, 2018. 
 

 
READ FIRST TIME:  

 
March 21, 2018 

 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
April 4, 2018 

 
 
 
 ______________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                         
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR HEARING: March 2, 2018 

      March 23, 2018 

  

116



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
ORDINANCE NO. 2635 

Kenney Harry Charles McAllister 
Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From: “County” Rural (1 du\ 10 ac) 
To: “City” Commercial (max 0.25 FAR)  

Parcel ID #:  01-21-27-0000-00-001 
Acreage: 2.45 +/- 

 

 

117



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: April 4, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER:  Ordinance  Vicinity Map 

    Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 

    Ordinance No. 2636 
  
SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2636 – CHANGE OF ZONING – KENNEY HARRY CHARLES 

MCALLISTER 

    

REQUEST:  SECOND READING – ORDINANCE NO. 2636 – CHANGE OF ZONING – KENNEY 

HARRY CHARLES MCALLISTER – FROM “COUNTY” A-1 (ZIP) TO “CITY” 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD/ COMMERCIAL) 
  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER:    Kenney Harry Charles McAllister 
 
APPLICANT:    Tannath Design, Inc., c/o Bryan Potts, P.E. 
 
LOCATION:  Northwest corner of N. Hermit Smith Rd and U.S. 441 road intersection 
 
PARCEL ID NUMBER:  01-21-27-0000-00-001 
 
EXISTING USE:   Vacant-Woodlands  
 
CURRENT ZONING:   “County” A-1  
 
DEVELOPMENT POTENTAIL: Maximum 482 sq. ft. commercial use (Max. 0.25 floor area ratio) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” PUD (Planned Unit Development) (Note: this Change of Zoning 

request is being processed along with a request to amend the Future Land 
Use from “County” Rural (0-10 du/ac) to Commercial (Max. 0.25 FAR) and 
an application for annexation. 

 
TRACT SIZE:    0.04 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT UNDER  EXISTING: Vacant 
ZONING DISTRICT:                          PROPOSED: Up to 479 sq. ft. 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
 
 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\REZONING\2018\MCALLISTER 
 118



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

MCALLISTER– CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: Presently, the subject property has not yet been assigned a “City” zoning 
category. The applicant is requesting the City to assign a zoning classification of PUD (Planned Unit 
Development) to the property, which will be incorporated with the PUD in the north adjacent parcel.  The subject 
parcel was annexed into the city on January 17, 2018 by Ordinance Number 2627. 
 
A request to assign a change of zoning to PUD is compatible to the adjacent zoning classifications and with the 
general character of abutting properties and surrounding area. The change of zoning request is being processed 
in conjunction with a future land use amendment from “County” Rural to “City” Commercial. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 
with the proposed Commercial (Max. 25% Floor Area Ratio) Future Land Use designation and the City’s 
proposed Planned Unit Development Zoning classification. Site development cannot exceed the intensity 
allowed by the Future Land Use policies.  
 
PUD CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL:   

1. This Planned Unit Development will be incorporated to the final development plan for adjacent PUD, 
located at 1102 Hermit Smith Rd, through a parcel consolidation. 

2. The use for this property shall be used only for open space and landscape buffering for the north adjacent 
development at 1102 Hermit Smith Road (Parcel No. 36-20-27-0000-00-024) 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  As the proposed use of the site is for landscaping and open space for a 
commercial use, no impact will occur to school enrollment for public schools. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 
public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on February 12, 2018. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
Planning Commission, March 13, 2018 (5:30 pm) 
City Council, March 21, 2018 (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 
City Council, April 4, 2018 (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED:  
February 23, 2018 - Public Notice and Notification- (Apopka Chief, letter, posting) 
March 23, 2018 - Public Notice (Apopka Chief) 
   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval of the proposed Change of 
Zoning from “County” A-1 to “City” PUD for the property owned by Kenney Harry Charles McAllister, and 
located at 3591 W. Orange Blossom Trail. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on March 13, 2018, found the proposed amendment consistent with 
the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, and recommended approval 
of the proposed Change of Zoning from “County” A-1 to “City” PUD for the property owned by Kenney Harry 
Charles McAllister, and located at 3591 W. Orange Blossom Trail. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on March 21, 2018, accepted the first reading of Ordinance 2636, and held it 
over for second reading and adoption on April 4, 2018.  
 
Recommended Motion: Adopt Ordinance 2636. 

Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

119



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

MCALLISTER– CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) “County” Rural “City” A-1 (ZIP) Woodlands\Proposed RaceTrac 

East (City) “County” Rural A-1 (ZIP) Woodlands/Grasslands 

South (County) Rural (1 D/U per 10 Acres) “County” C-3 & R-3 Single-Family Homes 

West (City) “County” Rural “County” A-1 (ZIP) Woodlands 

 

LAND USE & TRAFFIC  

COMPATIBILITY: The concept plan for the PUD proposes accesses on West Orange 

Blossom Trail and Hermit Smith Road.  

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  

COMPLIANCE:  The proposed PUD zoning is consistent with the proposed Future 

Land Use designation, “Commercial” (Max. 25% FAR) and with the 

character of the surrounding area and future proposed development. 

Development Plans shall not exceed the density allowed in the 

adopted Future Land Use designation.   
  

BUFFERYARD  

REQUIREMENTS:    

1. Areas adjacent to all road rights-of-way shall provide a 

minimum ten-foot landscaped bufferyard. 

 

2. Areas adjacent to agricultural and residential uses or districts 

shall provide a minimum six-foot-high masonry wall within a 

ten-foot landscaped bufferyard. 

 

3. Areas adjacent to nonresidential uses or districts shall provide a 

minimum of five-foot landscaped bufferyard. 

 

4. Landscaping requirements for existing platted lots of record and 

structures may be approved in a lesser amount than required 

after review by the development review committee. 

 

120



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

MCALLISTER– CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

Kenney Harry Charles McAllister 

0.04 +/- acres  
Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From: “County” Rural  
To: “City” Commercial 

Proposed Change of Zoning: 
From: A-1 (ZIP) 

To: PUD 
Parcel ID #: 01-21-27-0000-00-001 

 

VICINITY MAP 
  

121



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

MCALLISTER– CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

 

 
ADJACENT ZONING MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

122



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

MCALLISTER– CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

 

 

ADJACENT USES MAP 
  

 

 

 
 

123



ORDINANCE NO. 2636 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 TO “CITY” PLANNED UNIT 

DEVELOPMENT (PUD/COMMERCIAL) FOR CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 3591 W ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL, 

COMPRISING 0.04 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY KENNEY 

HARRY CHARLES MCALLISTER; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO 

THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest 

of the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the 

City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as 

identified in Section I of this ordinance; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD/Commercial) zoning has 

been found to be consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka 

Land Development Code. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 Section I. That the zoning classification of the following described property be designated 

as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with 

the following Master Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 

 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be: 

 
1. This Planned Unit Development will be incorporated to the final development plan for 

the adjacent property, located at 1102 Hermit Smith Road;  

2.   At the time of the Final Development Plan application for the abutting property at 1102 
Hermit Smith Road, the subject parcel and the abutting parcel under the same 
ownership shall be assembled through a parcel consolidation so the two parcels become 
one parcel. 

3. The use for this property shall be used only for open space and landscape buffering for 
the for the abutting property (Parcel No. 36-20-27-0000-00-024) that is subject to 
Ordinance Number 2620 (adopted February 7, 2018); 

B. The requisite Master Plan shall be submitted with or as part of the Final Development Plan 

application for the abutting property subject to Ordinance Number 2620; 

 

C. If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by the 

City within three years after approval of these Master Plan provisions, the approval of the 

Master Plan provisions will expire. At such time, the City Council may: 

 

1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Final Development 

Plan; 

 
124



ORDINANCE NO. 2636 

PAGE 2 

 

2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of 

new Master Plan provisions and any conditions of approval; or 

 

3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being 

situated in the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby Planned Unit Development (PUD/Commercial), 

as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code. 

 

 Legal Description: 

  

 NE ¼ OF NW ¼ N OF HIWAY (LESS E FT FOR RD & LESS ST RD) IN SEC 01-21-27 

Parcel I.D.: 01-21-27-0000-00-001 

Contains: 0.04 +/- Acres 

 

 Section III.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of 

the City of Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section IV.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 

hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, to include said designation.   

 

 Section V. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves 

to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, 

force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 Section VI.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed.   

 

 Section VII.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption of Ordinance No. 2635. 

 
 
 

           Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED:  February 23, 2018; March 23, 2018 

 

READ FIRST TIME:  March 21, 2018 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
April 4, 2018 

 
 
 
 

 

125



ORDINANCE NO. 2636 

PAGE 3 

 

 
 

Kenney Harry Charles McAllister 

0.04 +/- acres  
Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From: “County” Rural  
To: “City” Commercial 

Proposed Change of Zoning: 
From: A-1 (ZIP) 

To: PUD 
Parcel ID #: 01-21-27-0000-00-001 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

126



CITY OF APOPKA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: April 4, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER: PUD Master Plan   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 

    Existing Use Map 

    Ordinance No. 2637 

    Ex. A – Phase 1 Master Plan  

    Ex. B – Phase 1 Development Standards 

    Ex. C – Phase 1 Landscape/Rec. Plan 

    Ex. D – Phase 2 Master Plan 

    Ex. E – Phase 2 Development Standards 

    Ex. F – Phase 2 Landscape Plan 
  

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO. 2637 - CHANGE OF ZONING – LAKE MARSHALL 
SUBDIVISION, PHASES 1 AND 2 

 

REQUEST: SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2637 – CHANGE OF ZONING – LAKE 

MARSHALL SUBDIVISION, PHASES 1 AND 2, FROM PLANNED UNIT 

DEVELOPMENT, MIXED-EC, AND I-1 TO PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT; 

AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND READING & ADOPTION; AND APPROVE THE 

LAKE MARSHAL PUD MASTER PLAN\PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN.  

  
SUMMARY: 

 
OWNERS:   City of Apopka, James D & Deborah M. Lyda, and Citizens Bank of Florida 
 
APPLICANT:   Appian Engineering, LLC 
 
LOCATION:   South of Marshall Lake and West of SR 451 
 
PARCEL ID #S:  28-21-08-0000-00-005; 28-21-08-0000-00-043; 28-21-17-0000-00-014 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant 
 
FLUM DESIGNATION: Low Density Residential, Mixed-Use 
 
CURRENT ZONING: PUD (Planned Unit Development), Mixed-EC (Mixed Employment Center), and I-

1 (Restricted Industrial)   
 
PROPOSED  
DEVELOPMENT:  301 single family homes; developed in two phases 
 
PROPOSED ZONING:  Planned Unit Development (PUD)  
 
TRACT SIZE:   154.18 +/- acres 
 

FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 

 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

127



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:  The subject property is approximately 154.17 acres in size and is 

zoned PUD (Planned Unit Development), Mixed-EC (Mixed Employment Center) and I-1 (Restricted 

Industrial), and a has a future land use designation of Low Density Residential and Mixed-Use. The subject 

property is comprised of three parcels and is located south of Marshall Lake and west of SR 451. The 

owners of the properties are the City of Apopka, James D. and Deborah M. Lyda, and Citizens Bank of 

Florida. Of the 154.17 acres, the City of Apopka owns 103 acres, Citizens Bank of Florida owns 39.9 acres, 

and Mr. and Mrs. Lyda own 11.28 acres. The proposed change of zoning to PUD is being requested by a 

representative of the prospective developer, Royal Oak Homes who proposes to construct 301 single-family 

units in two phases on the three parcels.  

 

On November 15, 2006, the City Council approved development of 102 single-family units on 83.28 acres 

of the property now owned by the City. This development received City Commission approval and 

subsequently was never developed. In 2007, the City of Apopka purchased the property. In 2017 after an 

advertised bid process, Royal Oak Homes agreed to purchase the property from the City contingent upon 

City Commission approval of a PUD rezoning and Preliminary Development Plan for the proposed 

development.  

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  The PUD Master Plan and Preliminary Development Plan propose 

development of the property in two phases as a private, gated residential community with a total of 301 

single-family homes. The subject property is located south of Marshall Lake and west of SR 451. The 

surrounding properties consist primarily of single-family residential, and agricultural uses. The 

development is proposed to be accessed via Johns Road. Adjacent to the west of the subject property is the 

Breckenridge subdivision. A gated access for emergency vehicle access will be provided between the two 

subdivisions. This access point will only be for emergency vehicles. In response to the Breckenridge 

homeowners association, pedestrian access will not be permitted between the two subdivisions.  

 

A.  Lot Size. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The developer is proposing 55-foot, 60-foot and 75-foot wide lots with a minimum average lot area of 7,425 

square feet for the 55-foot wide lots, 8,100 square feet for the 60-foot wide lots, and 10,875 square feet for 

the 75-foot wide lots. The minimum lot depth is proposed at 135-feet. The minimum living area is proposed 

at 1,800 square feet in Phase 1 and 1,600 square feet in Phase 2. Both phases of the subdivision will be 

accessed via Johns Road. Johns Road will terminate at the main entrance of the development, which will 

be accessed via a gate. The developer will be dedicating a 0.27 acre portion of right-of-way along Johns 

Road to the City. The subdivision will consist of private roads and infrastructure that is owned and 

maintained by the homeowners association.  

 

B. Deviations. The applicant is requesting four deviations to the City’s required development standards.  

For a PUD master plan, a deviation from the City’s Land Development Code does not represent a 

variance but a development standard or zoning condition unique to and approved as part of the Planned 

Unit Development zoning. PUD’s are required to satisfy the requirements of the land Development Code 

Typical Lot 

Width 
Number of units 

Percentage of 

development 

Typical lot area 

(minimum size) 

55-feet 119 39% 7,425 square feet 

60-feet 149 50% 8,100 square feet 

75-feet 33 11% 10,875 square feet  

Total 301            100%  

128



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

unless the City Council finds that, based on substantial evidence, a proposed alternative development 

guideline is adequate to protect to the public health safety, and welfare. Any deviations must be consistent 

with the policies of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

1. Typical Lot Width Standard. The first deviation is to Land Development Code Section 

2.02.18.D.11, which requires a minimum lot size within a PUD to be 70-feet in width, and to have 

a minimum site area of 7,500 square feet. In addition to 75-foot wide lots, the developer is 

proposing 60-foot and 55-foot wide lots with minimum lots sizes of 8,100 square feet and 7,425 

square feet respectively.  

 

2.    Garage Standards. The second deviation requested is from Section 3.2.1 of the Development 

Design Guidelines which requires front-entry garages to be setback a minimum of thirty (30) feet 

from the front property line. The Master Plan provides a 25-foot setback for front entry garages. 

Based on the shape of the property and the lot yield that the applicant has indicated is necessary 

for financial feasibility, a 25-foot garage setback will potentially result in a larger back yard.  

 

3. Architectural Design.  The third deviation requested is from Section 3.2.1 of the Development 

Design Guidelines, an architectural appearance standard, which requires front entry garages to be 

flush with or behind the primary residential façade. The applicant is proposing protruding garages 

in addition to side-entry, flush, and recessed garages. The applicant contends that providing the 

protruding garage options in addition to side-entry, flush, and recessed garages will help to break 

up the monotony of each home being offset the same distance from the sidewalk.  

 

4. Architectural Design. The fourth deviation requested is from Section 3.2.1 of the Development 

Design Guidelines, which requires front entry garages to comprise no more than 50 percent of the 

length of a residential structure’s frontage. The applicant is requesting to permit all 60-foot wide 

lots with 50-foot wide homes to allow for the garage to cover a maximum of 60 percent of the 

length of the front primary façade only in the case a three (3) car garage is selected by the 

homebuyer. The Development Design Guidelines allow a three car front-entry garage to comprise 

more than 50 percent of the front façade length if one (1) habitable floor is located over the 

majority of the garage, or (2) an architectural feature such as dormers that give an appearance of 

an occupied floor above the garage are provided. The prospective homebuilder is currently 

finalizing the architectural package for the development, and is not certain whether the homes 

with three (3) car garages will have a habitable floor over the majority of the garage or an 

architectural feature that gives the appearance of habitable space such as a dormer will be 

provided.  

 

C. Justification for Deviations\Development Standard.  The following justifications are provided for the 

four deviations that are proposed. 

 

1. An improved recreation amenities package is proposed. The recreation package will consist of a 

cabana with restrooms, a swimming pool, a playground, and a mixed-use active field at a 

minimum. In addition the developer is dedicating a tract in Phase 1 adjacent to Marshall Lake as 

a Community Lake Park that will have a community dock, and a 1.03 acre open space tract across 

the street from this park. In the Phase 2 area, two tracts will be dedicated as a park/open space 

area, and a 15.12 acre Conservation area will also be dedicated. 

 

2. Protection of Environmentally Sensitive Areas and Preservation of Open Space.  The PUD master 

plan protects wetlands within the northwest and northeast corners of the project boundaries, 
129



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

containing approximately 19 acres within Tracts “K” and “L” of Phase I.  Open space is preserved 

through approximately 15 acres within Tract “I” of Phase 2.   

 

3. Abutting Site Characteristics. Fifty-foot landscape buffer. An existing 50-foot landscape buffer 

occurs along the western and northern project line within the Breckenridge plat. This buffer is 

noted as a tract on the Breckenridge plat. The Lake Marshall development will not be visible from 

the homes within Breckenridge and separation between the larger lots in Breckenridge and the 

smaller lots within Lake Marshall PUD will be provided.  S.R. 451 (tollway) abuts a significant 

portion of the eastern project line, making the area less attractive for large lot residential 

development. 

 

4. The Master Plan proposes a diversity of lot sizes-- (55-feet, 60-feet, and 75-feet lot widths). 

 

5. Access to the site is limited because of lake and wetland systems to the north and an odd shape 

parcel to the south.  The southern end of the property is also blocked by a wetland system.  

Therefore, access to the property is severely limited, leaving Johns Road as the only reasonable 

access point without impacting environmentally sensitive areas. 

 

6. The Master Plan proposes a gated residential community with private roads and infrastructure.  

 

TRANSPORTATION: The traffic generated by this project will cause a reduced level of service at the 

intersection of Johns Road and Bradshaw Road and the intersection of Bradshaw Road and Ocoee Apopka 

Road. The intersection of Johns Road and Bradshaw Road will require the following roadway 

improvements to be constructed prior to the issuance of the 87th Certificate of Occupancy for Phase 1, 

Phase 2, or a combination of Phase 1 and Phase 2: 

 
1.  A 260- foot northbound left turn lane; 
 
2.  A 185-foot southbound right turn lane; and 
 
3.  A 150-foot eastbound turn lane. 

 

The intersection of Bradshaw Road and Ocoee Apopka Road is projected to experience significant delays 

at the stop sign with the addition project traffic and committed traffic on both roadways. While existing 

conditions do not warrant a signal, the intersection may meet warrants in the future. It is recommended the 

Developer be required to conduct a signal warrant analysis for the intersection of Bradshaw Road and Ocoee 

Apopka Road prior to the issuance of the 251st Certificate of Occupancy. If it is determined a signal is 

warranted, then a proportionate share value shall be coordinated between the City and the Developer to 

design and install a traffic signal at the intersection within a year of the issuance of the final Certificate of 

Occupancy. 

 

PUD RECOMMENDATIONS:  That the zoning classification of the following described property be 

designated as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and 

with the following Master Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 
 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be single-family residential uses. 
 

B. Terms of Expiration for this PUD shall be as follows: 

 130



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by the City 

within three years, and site development has not commenced within four years after approval of 

these Master Plan provisions, the approval of the Master Plan provisions will expire. At such time, 

the City Council may: 
 

1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Final Development Plan; 

 

2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of new 

Master Plan provisions and any conditions of approval; or 

 

3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is consistent with the 

Low Density Residential and Mixed-Use Future Land Use designations and is consistent with the Land 

Development Code.   

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  An application for School capacity determination and a mitigation 

agreement has been submitted to OCPS by the application.  A plat will not be recorded by the City until 

such time the School Board approves a school capacity mitigation agreement. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: Pursuant to Section 7 of the Joint Planning Area agreement, 

notification to Orange County is not required for a rezoning application as the subject parcels are not 

adjacent to unincorporated Orange County.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

February 13, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

March 21, 2018 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

April 4, 2018 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

February 2, 2018 – Public Notice; Letter, Poster 

February 23, 2018 – Public Notice (Apopka Chief) 

March 23, 2018 – Public Notice (Apopka Chief) 

  

131



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed rezoning to Planned Unit Development (PUD), 

PUD Master Plan, and the Preliminary Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and 

Land Development Code and recommends approval of the Lake Marshall Subdivision Planned Unit 

Development Master Plan and Preliminary Development Plan. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting held on February 13, 2018, found the proposed rezoning 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and recommended approval (4-2) 

of the rezoning of the subject parcels from Planned Unit Development (PUD), Mixed-EC (Mixed 

Employment Center) and I-1 (Restricted Industrial) to Planned Unit Development/Residential (PUD); and 

approval of the PUD Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan based on the findings and facts presented 

in the staff report and exhibits. 

 

The City Council, at its meeting on March 21, 2018, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance 2637 and 

held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on April 4, 2018; and approved the PUD Master 

Plan\Preliminary Development Plan based on the findings and facts presented in the staff report and exhibits 

subject to the following changes to the Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan: 

 

1.  Use of watercraft shall be permitted only by the owners and occupants of direct lake front lots 

2.  If any boat launch area is located within the common area, it shall be restricted by a separate 

locking gate that only lake front owners shall have access, and only lake front owners may use 

such access.  

3. The retaining wall shall be acceptable as permitted per the Master Site Plan\PDD; 

4. The emergency access easement to be granted by Breckinridge HOA will be limited only to the 

use of the city for emergency access and shall revert back to the property owners on either side 

of the access point should it ever cease to be used for emergency access. 

 

City Council Second Hearing:  Adopt Ordinance 2637 and approve the Lake Marshal PUD Master 

Plan\Preliminary Development Plan. 

 

[Note:  Ordinance 2637 includes the four additional development and use standards approved by City 

Council at the March 21, 2018 public hearing for the first reading.] 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

132



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

ZONING REPORT 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Low Density Residential (0-5 du/ac) R-3 Marshall Lake, Lake Doe 

Estates subdivision  

East (City) Industrial, None assigned  (SR 451 right-of-way)  I-1, no zoning 

assigned  

Existing agricultural use 

(John’s Nursery), SR 451 

right-of-way  

South (City) Low Density Residential (0-5 du/ac), 

Commercial (max 0.25 FAR) 

R-1A, C-1 Vacant property, SR 451 

retention pond 

West (City) Low Density Residential (0-5 du/ac) R-1A, R-2, 

PUD  

Breckenridge residential 

subdivision buffer tract,  

vacant property   

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The property is accessed via Johns Road, which connects to South 

Bradshaw Road. Internal streets are private and are proposed to be 
owned and maintained by a yet to be established homeowners 
association. Future land use designations and zoning categories 
assigned to properties to the north, south, east, and west are 
predominantly residential.   

 
COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed PUD zoning is compatible with policies set forth in the 

Comprehensive Plan.  
 
ALLOWABLE 
USES:  Single-family residential uses as set forth within the Planned Unit 

Development Master Plan. 
  

133



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 
 

 
Project: LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION, PHASES 1 & 2 

Owned by:  City of Apopka; James D. & Deborah Lyda; and Citizens Bank of Florida 

Located: North and south of Johns Road; west of SR 451 

Parcel ID#s: 08-21-28-0000-00-005; 08-21-28-0000-00-043; 17-21-28-0000-00-014 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

  

134



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 
 

 

  

135



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 10 
 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
136



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 11 
 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 
 

 

137



ORDINANCE 2637 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM PUD (PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT), MIXED-

EC (MIXED EMPLOYMENT CENTER), AND I-1 (RESTRICTED 

INDUSTRIAL) TO PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT/RESIDENTIAL 

(PUD) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED 

SOUTH OF MARSHALL LAKE AND WEST OF SR 451, COMPRISING 

154.18 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY THE CITY OF 

APOPKA, JAMES D. & DEBORAH M. LYDA, AND CITIZENS BANK OF 

FLORIDA; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY,CONFLICTS,AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest 
of the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the 
City; and 
 
 WHEREAS,  The City of Apopka, James D. & Deborah M. Lyda, and Citizens Bank of 
Florida has requested a change in zoning on said property as identified in Section I of this 
ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD) zoning has been found to be 
consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land 
Development Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property be designated 
as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with 
the following Master Site Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 
 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be:  single family homes and 
associated accessory uses or structures consistent with land use and development 
standards established for the PUD district except where otherwise addressed in this 
ordinance and the Master Site Plan. 

 
B.   Development of the property shall occur consistent with the Master Site Plan set forth 

in Exhibit “A”.  If a development standard or zoning regulation is not addressed within 
Exhibit “A”, development shall comply with the PUD zoning standards set forth in the 
Land Development Code.  Where any development standard conflicts between the 
Lake Marshall Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan and the Land Development 
Code, the Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan shall prevail.  Any proposed 
revision to the Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan shall be evaluated and 
processed pursuant to Section 2.02.18.N. (Master Plan revision), LDC. 

 
C.   If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by 

the City within three years after approval of these Master Plan provisions, the approval 
of the Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan provisions will expire.   At such 
time, the City Council may: 

 

138



ORDINANCE NO. 2637 

PAGE 2 

 

1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Final 
Development Plan; 

 
2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal 

of new Master Site Plan provisions and any conditions of approval; or 
 
3.  Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

 
D.   The intersection of Johns Road and Bradshaw Road will be significantly impacted by 

the addition of traffic generated by this project. Design plans for the following 
improvements will be included in the Final Development Plan for Phase 2 of the 
development.  The roadway improvements shall be constructed by the developer prior 
to the issuance of the 87th Certificate of Occupancy for Phase 1, Phase 2, or a 
combination of Phase 1 and Phase 2, according to City standards: 

 
1.  A 260-foot northbound left turn lane; 
 
2.  A 185-foot southbound right turn lane; and 
 
3.  A 150-foot eastbound turn lane. 

 
E. The intersection of Bradshaw Road and Ocoee Apopka Road will be significantly 

impacted by the addition of traffic generated by this project. Prior to the issuance of the 
251st Certificate of Occupancy, the developer will conduct a signal warrant analysis 
for the intersection of Bradshaw Road and Ocoee Apopka Road. Since Ocoee-Apopka 
Road is an Orange County controlled road and Bradshaw Road is a City controlled 
road, the City, in cooperation with the County, will determine if a signal is warranted. 
If a signal is warranted, then a proportionate share value shall be coordinated between 
the City and the Developer to design and install a traffic signal at the intersection within 
a year of the issuance of the final Certificate of Occupancy. 

 
F.   Additional Master Plan\PDP Development and Use Standards: 
 

1. Use of watercraft shall be permitted only by the owners and occupants of direct 

lake front lots. 

 

2. If any boat launch area is located within the common area, it shall be restricted by 

a separate locking gate that only lake front owners shall have access, and only 

lake front owners may use such access.  

 

3. The retaining wall shall be acceptable as permitted per the Master Site Plan\PDD; 

 

4. The emergency access easement to be granted by Breckinridge HOA will be 

limited only to the use of the city for emergency access and shall revert back to 

the property owners on either side of the access point should it ever cease to be 

used for emergency access. 
 
Section II.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being 

situated in the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-1A) as 
defined in the Apopka Land Development Code. 
 

139



ORDINANCE NO. 2637 

PAGE 3 

 

Legal Description: Attachment “A” 
 

 Section III.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of 
the City of Apopka, Florida. 
 
 Section IV.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 
hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, to include said designation. 
 
 Section V. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves 
to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, 
force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 
 
 Section VI.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed.  
 
 Section VII.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of adoption. 
 
 

                     
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: February 2, 2018     
    February 23, 2018 
    March 23, 2018 
  

 
READ FIRST TIME:  March 21, 2018 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     April 4, 2018 

140



ORDINANCE NO. 2637 

PAGE 4 

 

ATTACHMENT “A” 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Parcel ID Nos.: 28-21-08-0000-00-005; 28-21-08-0000-00-043; 28-21-17-0000-00-014 
Combined Acreage: 154.18 +/- Acres 

 
OCPA PARCEL ID 28-21-08-0000-00-005: 
 
FIRST AMERICAN TITLE FILE NUMBER:  2037-3759052 - THE LAND 
REFERRED TO HEREIN BELOW IS SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF 
ORANGE, STATE OF FLORIDA, AND IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
PARCEL 1:  
 
NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 21 
SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, LESS:  BEGIN AT SOUTHWEST CORNER OF 
NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SOUTHWEST 1/4, SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, 
RANGE 28 EAST, RUN NORTH 343 FEET, EAST 400 FEET, SOUTH 343 
FEET, WEST 400 FEET TO POINT OF BEGINNING, ORANGE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA.  
 
PARCEL 2:  
 
WEST 1/2 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, 
TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA.  
 
AND  
 
BEGIN AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE EAST HALF OF THE 
SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 21 
SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, RUN NORTH 89°33'48" EAST 950 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 00°30'54" WEST 35 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89°33'48" WEST 950 
FEET; THENCE NORTH 00°30'54" EAST 35 FEET TO POINT OF 
BEGINNING, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA.   
 
AND  
 
THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4, ALSO 
THAT PORTION OF THE SOUTH 12 ACRES OF THE WEST HALF OF THE 
NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 SOUTH OF CENTER LINE OF 
LAKE, LESS THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PARCEL: BEGIN AT THE 
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE WEST HALF OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF 
THE SOUTHEAST 1/4, SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 
EAST, RUN SOUTH 89°33'48" WEST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 
WEST HALF 328.92 FEET; THENCE NORTH 11°16'48" EAST 580 FEET TO 
THE CENTRAL LINE OF LAKE; THENCE SOUTH 44°53'28" EAST ALONG 
CENTRAL LINE OF LAKE, 306.45 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF SAID WEST 
HALF; THENCE SOUTH ALONG EAST LINE OF SAID WEST HALF 350 
FEET TO POINT OF BEGINNING, SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, 
RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND COMMENCE EAST 
1/4 CORNER OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, RUN 
THENCE SOUTH 89°30'41" WEST 1070.14 FEET, SOUTH 00°18'05" WEST 
388.7 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; RUN THENCE SOUTH 

141



ORDINANCE NO. 2637 

PAGE 5 

 

00°18'05" WEST 25 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89°30'41" WEST 247.92 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 00°21'52" WEST 115.13 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89°30'41" 
EAST 307.92 FEET; THENCE NORTH 00°18'05" EAST 140.13 FEET; THENCE 
WEST TO POINT OF BEGINNING, LESS SOUTH 383.7 FEET OF THE 
NORTH 413.7 FEET OF THE EAST 100 FEET OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF 
THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 
EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. LESS ANY PORTION OF THE 
ABOVE DESCRIPTION LYING WITHIN THE BOUNDARY OF LAKE 
MARSHALL DRIVE AS DESCRIBED IN QUIT CLAIM DEED RECORDED IN 
OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 3726, PAGE 2538, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS 
OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA.  
 
ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT FROM THE ABOVE DESCRIPTIONS, ANY 
PORTION LYING WITHIN THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN STIPULATED 
ORDER OF TAKING RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 5461, 
PAGE 2470, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA.  
 
PARCEL 3 
 
THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 
AND THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 
1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE 
COUNTY, FLORIDA. 
 
OCPA PARCEL ID 28-21-08-0000-00-043 
 
FIRST AMERICAN FILE NUMBER: 2037-3736852 - THE LAND REFERRED 
TO HEREIN BELOW IS SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF ORANGE, STATE 
OF FLORIDA, AND IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
THE EAST 1/2 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4, 
SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, LYING SOUTH OF MASEK ROAD NOW KNOWN AS JOHNS 
ROAD. 
 
AND  
 
THE WEST 1/2 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4, 
SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, LYING SOUTH OF MASEK ROAD NOW KNOWN AS JOHNS 
ROAD. 
 
OCPA PARCEL ID 28-21-17-0000-00-014 
 
FIRST AMERICAN FILE NUMBER: 2037-3736840 - THE LAND REFERRED 
TO HEREIN BELOW IS SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF ORANGE, STATE 
OF FLORIDA, AND IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
 
THE SOUTH HALF (S ½) OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW ¼) OF THE 
NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE ¼) OF NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE ¼) OF 
SECTION SEVENTEEN (17) TOWNSHIP TWENTY-ONE SOUTH OF RANGE 
TWENTY-EIGHT EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA.  

142



ORDINANCE NO. 2637 

PAGE 6 

 

 
AND  
 
 
THE NORTH HALF (N ½) OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW ¼) OF 
NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE ¼) OF NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE ¼) OF 
SECTION SEVENTEEN (17) TOWNSHIP TWENTY-ONE SOUTH OF RANGE 
TWENTY EIGHT EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA  
 
AND  
 
THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SE ¼) OF NORTHEAST 
QUARTER (NE ¼) OF SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 
EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, LYING WEST OF STATE ROAD 429 
AND LESS PORTION THEREOF DESCRIBED IN ORDER OF TAKING 
RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 5487, PAGE 1547, PUBLIC 
RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 
 
AND  
 
THAT PART OF THE EAST HALF (E ½) OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER 
(NE ¼) OF NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE ¼), SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 21 
SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, LYING WEST OF 
STATE ROAD 429 RIGHT OF WAY, AND LESS PORTION DESCRIBED IN 
ORDER OF TAKING RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 5487, 
PAGE 1547, PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 
 
AND  
 
THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW ¼) OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE 
¼), OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE ¼), OF SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 
21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA; LESS 
PORTION DESCRIBED IN ORDER OF TAKING RECORDED IN OFFICIAL 
RECORDS BOOK 5487, PAGE 1547, PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE 
COUNTY, FLORIDA.  
 
AND  
 
ALL THAT PORTION OF THE EAST HALF ½ (E½) OF THE SOUTHEAST 
QUARTER (SE ¼) OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SE¼) OF SECTION 8, 
TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, LYING SOUTH OF THE COUNTY 
CLAY ROAD AS NOW EXISTING, IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA; AND 
LYING WEST OF LANDS DESCRIBED IN ORDER OF TAKING RECORDED 
IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 5487, PAGE 1547 AND LESS RIGHT OF 
WAY DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 1981, PAGE 295, PUBLIC 
RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA.  

143



144



145



1 
 

LAKE MARSHALL PHASE 1 MASTER PLAN DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
 
 
A.  Design Standards 
 
1. LOT CRITERIA: 
 

Description Single-Family Detached 
60’ Lot 

Single-Family Detached 
75’ Lot 

Lot Setbacks (1) 
Front Porch(2) 15’ 15’ 

Front 25’ 25’ 
Rear 20’ 20’ 
Side 5’ 7.5’ 

Side Corner 15’ N/A 
Garage 25’ (6) 25’ (6) 

Accessory Structure Rear 5’ 5’ 
Lot Dimensions 

Min. Average Lot Area 8,100 SF(5) 10,875 SF 
Min. Lot Width 60’ (3) 75’ (4) 
Min. Lot Depth 135’(5) 145’ 

Max. Lot Coverage 75% 75% 
Max. Building Height 35’/2 Stories 35’/2 Stories 

Min. Living Area 1,800 SF 1,800 SF 
(1) See sheet titled “Curve and Lot Data Table” for depiction of conceptual typical site plans. 
(2) Front porch setback as allowed per City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines 3.2.1. 
(3) Minimum lot width may be reduced to 40’ around curves so long as lot width at the building 

line is 60’ minimum. 
(4) Minimum lot width may be reduced to 40’ around curves so long as lot width at the building 

line is 75’ minimum. 
(5) Lots 56, 57, and 65 have lot areas of 7,326 SF, 8,192 SF, and 7,838 SF, respectively, and 

minimum lot depths of 114’, 129’, and 122’, respectively.  See sheet titled “Curve and Lot 
Data Table” of the Lake Marshall Subdivision Phase 1 PUD Master Plan/Preliminary 
Development Plan for lot sizing and setback details for these lots. 

(6) A deviation from the City of Apopka’s requirement of a 30’ garage setback is hereby 
requested. 

 
B.  Architectural, Buildings, and Accessory Structures 
1. Architectural design shall meet the intent of City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines or 

unless otherwise stated. 
2. All lots shall have detached single family homes. 
3. Each individual single-family home shall have a minimum of two (2) bedrooms. 
4. All lots shall have attached minimum two (2) car garages. 
5. A deviation from the City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines is hereby requested to allow 

for side-entry, flush, recessed, and protruding garage styles throughout the Lake Marshall 
Subdivision. 

146



2 
 

6. Mail delivery for all lots within both phases of the Lake Marshall Subdivision shall occur at mail 
kiosks with cluster mailbox units.  Approval from the Postmaster of the mail kiosks and their location 
shall be submitted prior to approval of the Final Development Plan. 

7. AC condenser units & similar equipment placed in the side yard area shall be screened with 
landscaping or opaque fencing.  

8. Storage sheds or similar storage facilities shall not be allowed. 
9. Swimming pools shall be allowed on all lots.  

a) Swimming Pools must be in-ground type. Above Ground Pools are prohibited. 
b) Swimming pools and decks are prohibited from projecting beyond the side wall facade. 

10. Screen enclosures over swimming pools and their respective deck area with non-metal or non-vinyl 
roofs shall be allowed.  

a) Screening shall be dark mesh. Opaque, semi-opaque or clear panels on the walls or roofs are 
prohibited. 

11. Screen enclosures with metal, vinyl, or screen mesh roofs over non-swimming pool decks are 
prohibited. 

12. Architectural Design Standards: 
a) Architectural styles shall be determined prior to Final Development Plan approval, and these 

shall meet the intent of to the City of Apopka’s Development Design Guidelines except as noted 
on these Development Standards.  Modification or replacement of the exterior elevations can be 
approved by the Community Development Director if such changes represent equivalent 
architectural value.  Substantial deviations from architectural rendering must be approved by 
City Council. 

b) A deviation from the City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines is hereby requested for all 
60’ lots with 50’ wide homes to allow for the garage to cover a maximum of 60% of the length 
of the front primary façade only in the case a three (3) car garage is selected by the homebuyer. 

c) Front facade materials such as cultured stone veneer, stucco, & fiber cement siding shall be 
utilized to be consistent with the applicable Architectural Style. 

d) Minimum roof pitch over the main house and garage shall be 5/12. Roof pitch over porches shall 
be a minimum of 4/12. 

e) 30-year asphalt shingle shall be installed on all roofs. 3-tab shingles are prohibited. Single 
shingle color shall be used for uniformity throughout the community. 

f) Aluminum fascia and soffit shall be standard for all houses. Single Fascia and soffit color shall 
be used for uniformity throughout the community. 

g) Trim around windows and doors shall be painted a different color from the body of the house.  
Doors may be painted either the same as the trim or separate accent color. 

h) Pavers shall be installed in front yard driveways and lead walks. 
13. Front Building Entrance Elevation Design Standards: 

a) Front porches & porticos at grade level. 
b) Identical model plan type shall not be constructed on neighboring lots who share a side yard 

property boundary line without a different elevation style type. 
c) Identical exterior paint schemes shall not be applied on neighboring lots who share a side yard 

property boundary line. 
d) Modification or replacement of the exterior elevations can be approved by the Community 

Development Director if such changes represent equivalent architectural value. Substantial 
deviations from architectural rendering must be approved by City Council. 

14. Rear Elevation Design Standards: 
a) Large expanses of solid wall shall be avoided thru use of windows, wall features, or wall / roof 

jogs. 
b) Window grid patterns and window banding & trim shall match front elevation windows. 

147



3 
 

c) Identical exterior paint schemes shall not be applied on neighboring lots who share a side yard 
property boundary line  

d) Modification or replacement of the exterior elevation can be approved by the Community 
Development Director if such changes represent equivalent architectural value. Substantial 
deviations from architectural rendering must be approved by City Council. 

15. Mail Kiosk Elevation Design Standards: 
a) Elevation shall be compatible with the architectural elevation styles of the homes & mail kiosks 

within the community. 
16. Individual Lot Front & Rear Yard Fencing Standards: 

a) Maximum height of a fence shall be 6'-0" above final grade. When abutting a common area wall, 
the fence height shall taper to the height of the wall across a horizontal distance no less than 8’-
0”. 

b) Rear yard fences shall not project more than five feet (5') beyond rear side wall building corner. 
 
 
C.   Utilities and Infrastructure 
 
1. Water service shall be provided by the City of Apopka.  The water system shall be designed to City 

standards. 
2. Reclaim water service shall be provided by the City of Apopka.  The reclaim water system shall be 

designed to City standards. 
3. Stormwater management system shall be designed to comply with the design standards of this 

Master Plan and the St. Johns River Water Management District. 
4. A final drainage report and soils report will be submitted with the Final Development Plan. 
5. Sanitary service shall be provided by the City of Apopka. The sanitary system shall be designed to 

City of Apopka standards.  
6.  Utility easements shall be dedicated to the City of Apopka. 
7. Drainage easements to be dedicated to the Home Owners’ Association unless otherwise required by 

the City of Apopka. 
8. All stormwater and utility pipes may be moved to save existing trees in the right-of-way.  Any 

change in the location of these pipes will be shown on the Final Development Plan. 
9. On-site streets are to be constructed per City of Apopka standards. 
10. Stabilized access roadways and fire hydrants must be in place before building construction may 

begin. 
11. Solid waste collection and public safety (police and fire) provided by the City of Apopka. 
12. The internal street right-of-way is to be private.  
13. Five-foot (5’) wide sidewalks are to be constructed adjacent to internal roads throughout the entire 

project in compliance with the City of Apopka Land Development Code.  Sidewalk alignment may 
be adjusted at final development plan to preserve existing trees. 

14. A five-foot (5’) wide sidewalk shall be constructed within the southern side of the Johns Road right-
of-way from the main entrance proposed within Parcel ID 28-21-08-0000-00-005 east until the 
western parcel boundary of Parcel ID 28-21-08-0000-00-043.  At this point, a crosswalk will be 
installed across the Johns Road paved roadway to the northern side of the right-of-way, from where 
the proposed sidewalk will run east and connect to the existing sidewalk.  

15. Right-of-way dedication along Johns Road shall be as depicted on sheet C4.0 or the Lake Marshall 
Subdivision Phase 1 Planned Unit Development Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan. 

16. Garages shall be accessed from the adjacent public right-of-way at the front of the lot for all lots. 
17. Power service within the development shall be underground. No overhead service will be allowed. 

148



4 
 

18. Vehicular, Pedestrian and Accent lighting shall substantially conform the Section 3.10 – Lighting 
of the City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines. 

19. Based upon the development’s daily trip generation of 1,779 vehicles, the provision of one 
northbound deceleration lane at the intersection of Johns Road and Bradshaw Road is warranted 
when the development reaches 50 percent (50%) of its Phase 1 development program, or prior to 
the completion of the 87th residential unit in the entire Lake Marshall Subdivision, whichever 
comes first. 

20. A twenty-four-foot (24’), gated emergency access road shall be constructed between lots 135 and 
136, connecting the Lake Marshall Subdivision Street C right-of-way to the Breckenridge 
Subdivision Cavan Drive right-of-way to provide an emergency-only route for both subdivisions.  
This access road shall be constructed within a 40-foot emergency access easement, pedestrian 
ingress/egress, and utility easement.   

21. The potable and reclaimed water mains connecting Breckenridge to the City of Apopka utilities 
shall be rerouted through Lake Marshall Subdivision H.O.A.-owned tracts to remove them from 
the rear of lots 132 through 135.  Within the Breckenridge Subdivision, these mains will run north 
through the 40-foot emergency access easement, pedestrian ingress/egress, and utility easement 
mentioned above. 

 
 
D.  Recreation and Open Space 
 
1. Required project open space shall be a minimum of 30% of the developed site area in accordance 

with City of Apopka LDC Section 2.02.18(D)(19). 
2. Required project recreation shall be provided at a rate of 3.6 acres per 1,000 population with 2.6 

population per dwelling unit. 
3. Tract “E” shall be an approximate 1.56-acre Park.  A specific park site plan and amenities/equipment 

shall be provided with the Final Development Plan.  Park amenities shall include a cabana with 
restrooms, a swimming pool, a playground, and a mixed-use active field at a minimum.  The 
Community Building shall be a minimum of 900 SF containing, at a minimum, restroom facilities 
for the building and pool. The swimming pool and deck area shall be a minimum of 3,000 SF and 
water area a minimum of 2,000 SF.  Documentation/calculations that the proposed pool size 
complies with state health standards will be provided at the Final Development Plan. 

4.   Tract “F” shall be an approximate 1.58-acre Community Lake Park.  A specific park site plan and 
amenities/equipment shall be provided with the Final Development Plan.  Community lake park 
amenities shall include at a minimum one community ramp, one community dock, and picnic tables. 

5. Tract G and H will incorporate pedestrian circulation, benches, and open play areas.  Specific park 
site plans and amenities/equipment shall be provided with the Final Development Plan.  

6. All recreation and open space areas within the limits of Phase 1 will be accessible to all homeowners 
of Phase 2 of the Lake Marshall Subdivision. 

 
E.  Buffers and Landscaping 
 
1. A twenty-foot (20’) buffer for entry wall and landscaping will be provided along each side of the 

proposed main entrance on Johns Road.  These tracts shall be dedicated to and maintained by the 
H.O.A.  The design of these buffer tracts shall generally follow the landscape design appearing on 
sheets LS-04 and LS-08 of the Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan.   A six foot (6’) high 
wall or fence is provided in these tracts to provide buffering from the adjacent roadway.  

2.  A five-foot (5’) wide buffer tract for landscaping will be provided along the rear of lots 1-24 to 
provide buffering from industrial-zoned properties.  This tract shall be dedicated to and maintained 

149



5 
 

by the H.O.A.  The design of this buffer shall generally follow the landscape design appearing on 
sheets LS-01, LS-02, LS-04, LS-05, LS-06, and LS-08 of the Master Plan/Preliminary Development 
Plan.  

3. A ten-foot (10’) wide buffer tract for landscaping will be provided along each side of the proposed 
emergency access tract for Lake Marshall Subdivision and Breckenridge Subdivision.  These tracts 
shall be dedicated to and maintained by the H.O.A.  The design of these buffer tracts shall generally 
follow the landscape design appearing on sheet LS-06 of the Master Plan/Preliminary Development 
Plan. 

4.  Entrance feature and community sign details will be provided with the Final Development Plan.   
5. Final landscape plans for the buffer areas along the proposed main entrance at Johns Road will be 

provided with the Final Development Plan. 
6. Tree Planting Conditions.  Minimum of three new trees shall be planted per 60’ and 75’ residential 

lot.  The new trees shall be a minimum of three inches (3”) DBH at the time of planting and shall 
count toward the overall number of required tree replacement inches, if any. 

7.  Tree Protection Plan - The Final Development Plan shall include tree protection techniques to 
prevent harm to any trees designate to be preserved or encroachment into protected natural areas, 
including but not limited to tree barricades, silt fencing or other similar techniques accepted by the 
City Engineer.    

 
 
F.  Maintenance and Plat  
 
1.   The Lake Marshall Home Owners’ Association will maintain common areas, fences/walls, and 

landscaping within the front and corner yards of all lots.  The HOA shall also be responsible for 
maintenance of streets, street lighting, and stormwater collection systems within the right-of-way 
and drainage easements within the Lake Marshall Subdivision. 

2. The Final Development Plan shall include the plat document, and the plat shall be in final form. 
 
 
G.  Wetlands and Environmental 
 
1. There are three wetland areas within the site.  These are located in the northwest, north, and northeast 

portions of the property.   
2. According to the FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Map for Orange County, FL, Panel No. 12095-C-

0120-F, dated September 25, 2009, the majority of the proposed development is located within Zone 
X (areas determined to outside the 500-year floodplain) and limited northern portions of Parcel ID 
28-21-08-0000-00-005 fall within FEMA flood zone AE.  The areas within these portions that will 
be developed will be removed from the floodplain.  

3. An erosion control plan will be submitted with the Final Development Plan.  
4. Tree removal, tree replacement, and landscaping shall comply with Water Wise Ordinance 2069 

and shall be consistent with Article V of the City of Apopka Land Development Code.   
5.  Individual lot arbor/clearing permit is required prior to clearing or grading of any lot or issuance of 

building permit. Placement of the house shall preserve existing trees to the greatest extent practical.  
Plot plan for each lot shall illustrate tree locations as presented within the PUD Master 
Plan\Preliminary Development Plan.  

 
 
H.  Development Condition Continuity 
  

150



6 
 

The PUD Development Standards shall be printed within the PUD Master Plan and the Final 
Development Plan. 
 
 

I.  Signage 
 

Signage shall comply with Article 8 of the City of Apopka Land Development Code and with the 
City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines. 

 
 
J.  Lighting    
 

Lighting shall comply with the City of Apopka’s City Ordinance No. 2069 and Section 3.10 of the 
City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines.  Street and parking area or pedestrian path light 
poles shall be decorative type.  Details will be provided with the Final Development Plan. 

 
 
L.  Miscellaneous    
 
1. Any existing septic tanks or wells shall be properly abandoned prior to earthwork or construction. 

Permits shall be applied for and issued by the appropriate agencies. 
2. All acreages are subject to change with final engineering and final plat review and approval. 

151



152



153



154



155



156



157



1 
 

LAKE MARSHALL PHASE 2 MASTER PLAN DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
 
 
A.  Design Standards 
 
1. LOT CRITERIA: 
 

Description Single-Family Detached 
60’ Lot 

Single-Family Detached 
55’ Lot 

Lot Setbacks (1) 
Front Porch(2) 15’ 15’ 

Front 25’ 25’ 
Rear 20’ 20’ 
Side 5’ 7.5’ 

Side Corner 15’ N/A 
Garage 25’ (5) 25’ (5) 

Accessory Structure Rear 5’ 5’ 
Lot Dimensions 

Min. Average Lot Area 8,100 SF 7,425 SF 
Min. Lot Width 60’ (3) 55’ (4) 
Min. Lot Depth 135’ 135’ 

Max. Lot Coverage 75% 75% 
Max. Building Height 35’/2 Stories 35’/2 Stories 

Min. Living Area 1,600 SF 1,600 SF 
(1) See Sheet C3.6 for depiction of conceptual typical site plans. 
(2) Front porch setback as allowed per City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines 3.2.1. 
(3) Minimum lot width may be reduced to 40’ around curves so long as lot width at the building 

line is 60’ minimum. 
(4) Minimum lot width may be reduced to 35’ around curves so long as lot width at the building 

line is 55’ minimum. 
(5) A deviation from the City of Apopka’s requirement of a 30’ garage setback is hereby 

requested. 
 
B.  Architectural, Buildings, and Accessory Structures 
1. Architectural design shall meet the intent of City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines or 

unless otherwise stated. 
2. All lots shall have detached single family homes.  
3. Each individual single-family home shall have a minimum of two (2) bedrooms. 
4. All lots shall have attached minimum two (2) car garages. 
5. A deviation from the City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines is hereby requested to allow for 

side-entry, flush, recessed, and protruding garage styles throughout the Lake Marshall Subdivision. 
6. Mail delivery for all lots within both phases of the Lake Marshall Subdivision shall occur at mail 

kiosk with cluster mailbox units.  Approval from the Postmaster of the mail kiosks and their location 
shall be submitted prior to approval of the Final Development Plan. 

7. AC condenser units & similar equipment placed in the side yard area shall be screened with 
landscaping or opaque fencing.  

8. Storage sheds or similar storage facilities shall not be allowed. 
9. Swimming pools shall be allowed on all lots.  

158



2 
 

a) Swimming Pools must be in-ground type. Above Ground Pools are prohibited. 
b) Swimming pools and decks are prohibited from projecting beyond the side wall facade. 

10. Screen enclosures over swimming pools and their respective deck area with non-metal or non-vinyl 
roofs shall be allowed.  

a) Screening shall be dark mesh. Opaque, semi-opaque or clear panels on the walls or roofs are 
prohibited. 

11. Screen enclosures with metal, vinyl, or screen mesh roofs over non-swimming pool decks are 
prohibited. 

12. Architectural Design Standards: 
a) Architectural styles shall be determined prior to Final Development Plan approval, and these 

shall meet the intent of to the City of Apopka’s Development Design Guidelines except as noted 
on these Development Standards.  Modification or replacement of the exterior elevations can be 
approved by the Community Development Director if such changes represent equivalent 
architectural value.  Substantial deviations from architectural rendering must be approved by 
City Council. 

b) A deviation from the City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines is hereby requested for all 
60’ lots with 50’ wide homes to allow for the garage to cover a maximum of 60% of the length 
of the front primary façade only in the case a three (3) car garage is selected by the homebuyer. 

c) Front facade materials such as cultured stone veneer, stucco, & fiber cement siding shall be 
utilized to be consistent with the applicable Architectural Style. 

d) Minimum roof pitch over the main house and garage shall be 5/12. Roof pitch over porches shall 
be a minimum of 4/12. 

e) 30-year asphalt shingle shall be installed on all roofs. 3-tab shingles are prohibited. Single 
shingle color shall be used for uniformity throughout the community. 

f) Aluminum fascia and soffit shall be standard for all houses. Single Fascia and soffit color shall 
be used for uniformity throughout the community. 

g) Trim around windows and doors shall be painted a different color from the body of the house.  
Doors may be painted either the same as the trim or separate accent color. 

h) Pavers shall be installed in front yard driveways and lead walks. 
13. Front Building Entrance Elevation Design Standards: 

a) Front porches & porticos at grade level. 
b) Identical model plan type shall not be constructed on neighboring lots who share a side yard 

property boundary line without a different elevation style type. 
c) Identical exterior paint schemes shall not be applied on neighboring lots who share a side yard 

property boundary line. 
d) Modification or replacement of the exterior elevations can be approved by the Community 

Development Director if such changes represent equivalent architectural value. Substantial 
deviations from architectural rendering must be approved by City Council. 

14. Rear Elevation Design Standards: 
a) Large expanses of solid wall shall be avoided thru use of windows, wall features, or wall / roof 

jogs. 
b) Window grid patterns and window banding & trim shall match front elevation windows. 
c) Identical exterior paint schemes shall not be applied on neighboring lots who share a side yard 

property boundary line  
d) Modification or replacement of the exterior elevation can be approved by the Community 

Development Director if such changes represent equivalent architectural value. Substantial 
deviations from architectural rendering must be approved by City Council. 

15. Mail Kiosk Elevation Design Standards: 

159



3 
 

a) Elevation shall be compatible with the architectural elevation styles of the homes & mail kiosk 
within the community. 

16. Individual Lot Front & Rear Yard Fencing Standards: 
a) Maximum height of a fence shall be 6'-0" above final grade. When abutting a common area wall, 

the fence height shall taper to the height of the wall across a horizontal distance no less than 8’-
0”. 

b) Rear yard fences shall not project more than five feet (5') beyond rear side wall building corner. 
 
C.   Utilities and Infrastructure 
 
1. Water service shall be provided by the City of Apopka.  The water system shall be designed to City 

standards. 
2. Reclaim water service shall be provided by the City of Apopka.  The reclaim water system shall be 

designed to City standards. 
3. Stormwater management system shall be designed to comply with the design standards of this 

Master Plan and the St. Johns River Water Management District. 
4. A final drainage report and soils report will be submitted with the Final Development Plan. 
5. Sanitary service shall be provided by the City of Apopka. The sanitary system shall be designed to 

City of Apopka standards.  
6.  Utility easements shall be dedicated to the City of Apopka. 
7. Drainage easements to be dedicated to the Home Owners’ Association unless otherwise required by 

the City of Apopka. 
8. All stormwater and utility pipes may be moved to save existing trees in the right-of-way.  Any 

change in the location of these pipes will be shown on the Final Development Plan. 
9. On-site streets are to be constructed per City of Apopka standards. 
10. Stabilized access roadways and fire hydrants must be in place before building construction may 

begin. 
11. Solid waste collection and public safety (police and fire) provided by the City of Apopka. 
12. The internal street right-of-way is to be private.  
13. Five-foot (5’) wide sidewalks are to be constructed adjacent to internal roads throughout the entire 

project in compliance with the City of Apopka Land Development Code.  Sidewalk alignment may 
be adjusted at final development plan to preserve existing trees. 

14. Garages shall be accessed from the adjacent public right-of-way at the front of the lot for all lots. 
15. Power service within the development shall be underground. No overhead service will be allowed. 
16. Vehicular, Pedestrian and Accent lighting shall substantially conform the Section 3.10 – Lighting 

of the City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines. 
17. Based upon the Lake Marshall Subdivision Phase 1 and Phase 2 total daily trip generation of 2,896 

vehicles, the provision of one southbound deceleration lane on Bradshaw Road and one eastbound 
left turn lane on John’s Road at the intersection of John’s Road and Bradshaw Road to the east of 
the development are warranted.  These are in addition to the northbound deceleration lane on 
Bradshaw Road warranted prior to the completion of the 87th residential unit within the entire 
Lake Marshall Subdivision. 

 
D.  Recreation and Open Space 
 
1. Required project open space shall be a minimum of 30% of the developed site area in accordance 

with City of Apopka LDC Section 2.02.18(D)(19). 
2. Required project recreation shall be provided at a rate of 3.6 acres per 1,000 population with 2.6 

population per dwelling unit. 

160



4 
 

3. All parks and open space within the limits of Phase 1 of the Lake Marshall Subdivision shall be 
accessible to and account towards required recreation and open space areas for Phase 2 per the Lake 
Marshall Subdivision Phase 1 Planned Unit Development Master Plan/Preliminary Development 
Plan. 

4. Tracts E and F will incorporate pedestrian circulation, benches, and open play areas.  Specific park 
site plans and amenities/equipment shall be provided with the Final Development Plan.  

 
E.  Buffers and Landscaping 
 
1. A twenty-foot (20’) densely vegetated/landscaped tract will be provided along the rear of Lots 242-

257 and Tracts ‘E’ and ‘F’ to provide buffering from the adjacent SR 451 right-of-way.  This tract 
shall be dedicated to and maintained by the H.O.A.  The design of this buffer tract shall generally 
follow the landscape design appearing on sheets LS-02 and LS-04 of the Master Plan/Preliminary 
Development Plan.  

2.  A minimum ten-foot (10’) wide buffer tract for landscaping will be provided along the rear of lots 
175-199 to provide buffering from the Johns Road right-of-way.  This tract shall be dedicated to and 
maintained by the H.O.A.  The design of this buffer shall generally follow the landscape design 
appearing on sheets LS-01, LS-02, LS-04, and LS-05 of the Master Plan/Preliminary Development 
Plan.  

3.  Main access for Phase 2 will be through the Main Entrance located within the Phase 1 limits of the 
Lake Marshall Subdivision.   

4.  Entrance provided within the Phase 2 limits is to be a secondary, resident-only access, which will 
also be accessible to Phase 1 of the Lake Marshall Subdivision.  

5.  Entrance feature and community sign details will be provided with the Final Development Plan.   
6. Final landscape plans for the buffer areas along the proposed main entrance at John’s Road will be 

provided with the Final Development Plan. 
7. Tree Planting Conditions.  Minimum of three (3) new trees shall be planted per 55’ and 60’ 

residential lot.  The new trees shall be a minimum of three inches (3”) DBH at the time of planting 
and shall count toward the overall number of required tree replacement inches, if any. 

8.  Tree Protection Plan - The Final Development Plan shall include tree protection techniques to 
prevent harm to any trees designate to be preserved or encroachment into protected natural areas, 
including but not limited to tree barricades, silt fencing or other similar techniques accepted by the 
City Engineer.    

 
F.  Maintenance and Plat  
 
1.   The Lake Marshall Home Owners’ Association will maintain common areas, fences/walls, and 

landscaping within the front and corner yards of all lots.  The HOA shall also be responsible for 
maintenance of streets, street lighting, and stormwater collection systems within the right-of-way 
and drainage easements within the Lake Marshall Subdivision. 

2. The Final Development Plan shall include the plat document, and the plat shall be in final form. 
 
 
G.  Wetlands and Environmental 
 
1. There is one wetland area onsite.  It is entirely located within the Tract ‘I’ Conservation Area. 
2. There are no areas within a FEMA floodplain onsite.  
3. An erosion control plan will be submitted with the Final Development Plan.  

161



5 
 

4. Tree removal, tree replacement, and landscaping shall comply with Water Wise Ordinance 2069 
and shall be consistent with Article V of the City of Apopka Land Development Code.   

5.  Individual lot arbor/clearing permit is required prior to clearing or grading of any lot or issuance of 
building permit. Placement of the house shall preserve existing trees to the greatest extent practical.  
Plot plan for each lot shall illustrate tree locations as presented within the PUD Master 
Plan\Preliminary Development Plan.  

 
 
H.  Development Condition Continuity 
  

The PUD Development Standards shall be printed within the PUD Master Plan and the Final 
Development Plan. 
 
 

I.  Signage 
 

Signage shall comply with Article 8 of the City of Apopka Land Development Code and with the 
City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines. 

 
 
J.  Lighting    
 

Lighting shall comply with the City of Apopka’s City Ordinance No. 2069 and Section 3.10 of the 
City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines.  Street and parking area or pedestrian path light 
poles shall be decorative type.  Details will be provided with the Final Development Plan. 

 
 
L.  Miscellaneous    
 
1. Any existing septic tanks or wells shall be properly abandoned prior to earthwork or construction. 

Permits shall be applied for and issued by the appropriate agencies. 
2. All acreages are subject to change with final engineering and final plat review and approval. 
 

162



163



164



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: April 4, 2018 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
X OTHER:  Ordinance  Vicinity Map 
    Adjacent Zoning Map 
    Adjacent Uses Map 
    Existing Use Map 
    Ordinance No. 2639 
    Ex A - Revelle Survey – Location 
    Ex B - Master Site Plan Sheet 
    Ex C - Landscape Plan Sheet 
    Ex D - Entire PUD Master Plan\PDP Plan 

  
SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2639 – CHANGE OF ZONING – THOMPSON HILLS ESTATES LLC 

(OAK POINTE SOUTH PUD); AND OAK POINTE PUD MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT. 
    
REQUEST:  FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2639 – CHANGE OF ZONING FROM “COUNTY” 

A-1 TO “CITY” PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD) FOR THE REVELLE PARCEL; 
AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2584 TO INCORPORATE REVELLE PARCEL INTO THE 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION; TO INCREASE THE MAXIMUM NUMBER OF TOWNHOMES TO 
120; AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND READING AND ADOPTION. 

  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNERS:    Jason C. Revelle, Thompson Hills Estates, LLC   
 
APPLICANT:    Evans Engineering, Inc.  
 
LOCATION:  East of Ocoee-Apopka Road, north of McCormick Road  
 
EXISTING USE: Single-family residence (Revelle Parcel\Jones Addition); and Existing Oak 

Pointe PUD Residential Community (vacant) 
 
PARCEL ID NUMBERS:  29-21-28-0000-00-037; 29-21-28-0000-00-011; 29-21-28-0000-00-016;  

29-21-28-0000-00-033; 29-21-28-0000-00-038; 32-21-28-0000-00-004;  
32-21-28-0000-00-030 

 
FLUM DESIGNATION:  Residential Low (0–5 un/ac) (Revelle Parcel & existing Oak Pointe PUD) 
 
CURRENT ZONING: Orange County A-1, City of Apopka PUD  
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: Add the 0.97 acre Revelle parcel to boundaries of the Oak Pointe PUD; and 

increase the number of townhomes in the Oak Pointe PUD from 106 to 120 
units; 118 single family homes and 120 townhome units (238 units total) 

 
PROPOSED ZONING: Planned Unit Development (PUD)  
 
TRACT SIZE:    Parcel to be rezoned -- 0.97 acres (+/-) 

Total PUD area -- 69.38 +/- acres  

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 165



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

OAK POINTE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:  On December 20, 2017 the City Council approved Ordinance 2584, 

which approved a PUD Master Plan for a 69.7 acre residential development known as Oak Pointe. The 

approved Oak Pointe PUD Master Plan consists of 118 single-family and 106 townhome units. Prior to the 

approval of Ordinance 2584, the property owner of the Oak Pointe PUD entered into an agreement to 

purchase a 0.96 acre parcel located at 1751 Irmalee Lane, which is currently owned by Jason C. Revelle.  

The Revelle Parcel (aka Jones Additon) is surrounded by and interior to the Oak Pointe PUD.   The legal 

description for Ordinance 2584, and the approved Oak Pointe PUD Master Plan did not include the legal 

description Mr. Revelle’s property. As a result, the applicant is requesting the following actions:  

 

1) Rezone Mr. Revelle’s property from Orange County A-1 to City of Apopka PUD (Planned Unit 

Development).  

 

2) Incorporate the legal description of Mr. Revelle’s property into the overall legal description of 

Ordinance 2584 (the Oak Pointe PUD).  

 

3) Amend the Oak Pointe PUD Master Plan to include six townhome units on Mr. Revelle’s property, 

and eight additional townhomes within the existing Oak Pointe PUD, adjacent to Tract L-3, for an 

increase in the amount of townhomes in the Oak Pointe PUD from 106 to 120. There will be no 

increase in the amount of single-family units located within the Oak Pointe PUD.  No other changes 

are proposed to the Oak Pointe PUD. 

 

4) The Revelle parcel, when incorporated into the Oak Pointe PUD, will be owned by Thompson Hill 

Estates LLC, and will be subject the terms and conditions sheet forth in the Oak Pointe PUD and its 

development agreement.   

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  The amended PUD Master Plan includes 120 townhomes and 118 single 
family homes within a gated community with private streets.  A single master homeowners association will 
serve both the single family homes and townhomes. The following development standards are proposed: 
 

 Single family lots typically have a minimum width of 70 feet and a minimum lot area of 8,400 sq. 
ft., a minimum house livable area of 1,500 sq. ft., and a minimum two-car enclosed garage.  A small 
percentage of single family lots (6.8% totaling 8 lots) have a minimum typical lot width of 65 feet 
and a minimum lot area of  7,800 sq. ft., also with a minimum house livable area of 1,500 sq. ft. and 
a minimum two-car enclosed garage. No three-car garages are allowed. 

 
 Townhomes will have a minimum lot width of 23 feet and a minimum lot area of 2,530 sq. ft. All 

townhome units offer a one-car enclosed garage. No two-car enclosed garages are proposed by the 
developer.  Seventy-five (75) units have a one-car driveway; 31 units have a two-car driveway.  On-
Street parking and a parking lot are provided for the townhomes and community park (Tract K-6). 

 
 Two parks are provided and will be accessible to all residents. Tract N-1 provides a community 

swimming pool and a cabana with a parking lot. A second community park provides outdoor 
recreation on 2.03 acres (Tract K-6) and includes a fenced-in dog park. 

 
 Access to the Oak Pointe Community will occur through a road connection to McCormick Road 

and a future road connection to Ocoee-Apopka Road.  A gate will be located at both the north and 
south entrances. An emergency gate will be located on the eastern boundary, connecting to Pelock 
Drive within the Apopka Woods community.   
 

 166



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

OAK POINTE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

 
 Perimeter buffers include:  a ten foot buffer with a six-foot high brick wall along the western 

property line adjacent to S.R. 429, a six-foot high vinyl fence within a ten foot buffer next to the 
Apopka Woods community and next to the County’s Northwest Reclamation facility. 

 
Existing Conditions:   The Oak Point PUD consists of 69.38 acres serviced by a gated private right-of-way 
noted on the Master Plan as Street “I”.  The site typically has a flat topography with no wetlands.  The 
property is located along the north side of McCormick Road. The City of Ocoee is situated along the south 
side of McCormick Road. The proposed residential PUD Master Plan abuts land zoned commercial located 
to the south. The commercial land is not part of the PUD and is located between McCormick Road and the 
single family residential area delineated on the Master Plan. Located to the east of the site is Apopka Woods 
a 76 lot, single family residential neighborhood. Typical lots within Apopka Woods have a minimum width 
of 70 feet and a minimum land area of 7,500 sq. ft. The Orange County Northwest Reclamation Water 
Facility is located on portions of the northern and northwest boundaries of the property. Directly to the south 
of Oak Pointe is a private gated residential community located in the City of Ocoee; McCormick Woods, 
with typical lot sizes of 70 x 125 (8,750 sq. ft.). 
 
Annexation History:  The subject properties were annexed into the City via Ordinance 1651 on December 
18, 2002.   
 
Amenities: The Master Plan includes two recreation tracts: 
 

1. Tract N-1 – 0.8 acres 
 

 Swimming Pool. 
 Pool area surrounded by a 36” viburnum hedge, crepe myrtles, magnolia trees, live oak trees, and 

approved ground cover. 
 Pool parking lot - 13 parking plus one handicap parking space. 
 Bike rack located adjacent to parking lot. 
 2,200 +/- SF Cabana located next to the pool surrounded by landscaping that blends with the pool 

landscaping. 
 The cabana will be partially open, with the open area surrounded by a four foot metal guardrail/ 

fence. 
 A paved sidewalk from the Cabana connects to the sidewalk along Street I. 
 An outdoor shower will be placed on both the east and west sides of the building. 
 The pool and cabana are appropriately located near the center of the development, easily accessible 

to both the single family residential units and the townhome. 
 

2. Tract K-6 – 2.05 acres 
 

 Two multi-purpose playing fields. 
 Mulched walking trail around the perimeter of the Tract. 
 Paved sidewalk will placed along the west side of the park, connecting Street I with the Tot Lot, 

Dog Park, and parking lot. 
 Paved sidewalk will connect the parking lot at Tract O-1 with the paved sidewalk along the west 

side of the park. 
 Three picnic tables. 
 Litter receptacle - 24” X 30” size. 
 Eight benches, each with armrests. 
 Tot Lot with playground equipment – slides, climbing equipment. 
 Dog park with five foot high vinyl coated chain link fence, screened with a viburnum hedge. 
 Dogipot aluminum pet station with pet waste receptacle. 
 Dog park will be handicap accessible. 

167



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

OAK POINTE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

 Bike rack located in Tract K-5, between the parking lot and sidewalk along the west side of the park. 
 Pedestrian level lighting 
 Park area surrounded by a viburnum hedge, sabal palms, crepe myrtles, magnolia trees, live oak 

trees, and approved ground cover. 

 

PUD RECOMMENDATIONS:  That the zoning classification for the Revelle Parcl is proposed to be 

PUD and the amendment to the Oak Point PUD incorporates the Revelle property into its boundaries.  A 

summary of the amendments are as follows: 

 
1. The Oak Pointe PUD is amended to include the Ravelle property. (Parcel identification number: 29-

21-28-0000-00-037) 
 

2. The Ravelle property shall be subject to all the development standards and conditions set forth in 
Ordinance 2584. 
 

3. The Ravelle property shall be subject to any Development Agreement approved by the City Council 
for the Oak Pointe PUD. 
 

4. The maximum number of townhome units for the Oak Pointe PUD is increased from 106 to 120.  
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 

with the Residential Low Future Land Use designation and is consistent with the Land Development Code 

subject to the recommended DRC development conditions. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: The current capacity enhancement agreement must be amended with 

OCPS or a letter provided by OCPS prior to City approval of a final development. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: Pursuant to Section 7 of the Joint Planning Area agreement, 

notification to Orange County is not required for a rezoning application as the subject parcel being 

incorporated into the PUD is not adjacent to unincorporated Orange County. As a courtesy, the City notified 

Orange County and the City of Ocoee on February 21, 2018.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

March 13, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

April 4, 2018 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

April 18, 2018 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

February 27, 2018 – Public Notice; Letter, Poster 

February 23, 2018 – Public Notice (Apopka Chief) 

  

168



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

OAK POINTE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan and Land Development Code and recommends approval of the amended Oak Pointe Planned Unit 

Development Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan subject to the DRC Conditions of Approval. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on March 13, 2018, the Planning Commission found the 

proposed amendments to be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and 

unanimously recommended approval of the rezoning of the Revelle Parcel from “County” A-1 to “City” 

PUD (Planned Unit Development); to amend Ordinance No. 2584 to incorporate the Revelle Parcel into the 

legal description; and to amend the Oak Pointe PUD Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan to increase 

the maximum number of townhomes to 120. 

 
City Council:  Accept the First Reading of Ordinance 2639 and Hold it Over for Second Reading and 

Adoption on April 18, 2018 
 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

169



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

OAK POINTE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

ZONING REPORT 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-1 Northwest Water Reclamation Facility 

East (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-2 Apopka Woods subdivision 

South (City) Commercial (max 0.25 FAR) C-1 Vacant commercial\McCormick Rd 

West (City & 

County) 

“City” Mixed Use & “County” Rural 

(0-1 du/10 ac) 

Mixed-EC & 

A-1 

SR 429 ROW & Retention Pond 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The property has access to a Major Arterial roadway (McCormick 

Road) and future access to Ocoee Apopka Road to the north.  A 
proposed internal spine road be a private gated road and provide 
connectivity to both Ocoee Apopka Road to the north and McCormick 
Road to the south for future residents of Oak Pointe. Future land use 
designations and zoning categories assigned to properties to the north, 
south, east, and west are predominantly residential and rural.   

 
COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed PUD zoning is compatible with policies set forth in the 

Comprehensive Plan.  
 
ALLOWABLE 
USES:  Single-family and townhome residential uses set forth within the 

Planned Unit Development Master Plan. 
  

170



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

OAK POINTE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

Thompson Hills Estates LLC (Oak Pointe PUD) 
0.97  +/- Acres 

Proposed Change of Zoning: 
From: Orange County A-1  

To: Planned Unit Development (New Master Site Plan) 
Parcel ID #: 29-21-28-0000-00-037  

 

VICINITY MAP 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

  

171



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

OAK POINTE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 
 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 
 

 

  

172



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 

OAK POINTE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
173



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2639 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 
THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 TO “CITY” PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT (PUD)FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY 
LOCATED NORTH OF MCCORMICK ROAD AND EAST OF STATE 
ROAD 429, SPECIFICALLY AT 1751 IRMALEE LANE, COMPRISING 
0.96 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY JASON C. REVELLE; 
AND AMENDING ORDINANCE NUMBER 2584 TO INCORPORATE 
SAME CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY INTO THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
THEREIN AND INCREASE THE MAXIMUM NUMBER OF 
TOWNHOMES THEREIN TO 120; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO 
THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 
CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest 
of the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the 
City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as 
identified in Section II of this ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD/) zoning has been found to 
be consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land 
Development Code. 
  
WHEREAS, the parcel owned by Jason C. Revelle shall be included as part of the boundaries for 
the Oak Pointe PUD Master Plan. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property (aka Revelle 
Parcel) be designated as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land 
Development Code, and is incorporated into the legal boundaries of the Oak Pointe Planned Unit 
Development Master Plan and shall be subject to the same Master Plan provisions, conditions, 
terms,  and requirements set forth by Ordinance No. 2584.  
  

Section II.  The Legal Boundaries of the Revelle Parcel assigned the Planned Unit 
Development zoning category is: 

 
Legal Description: FROM THE SE COR OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE SE1/4 OF 
THE SW 1/4 SEC 29-21-28; RUN N 89 DEG W 404.10 FT TO THE POB: RUN 
N 89 DEG W 183. FT; N 08 DEG E 255.56 FT S 89 DEG E 148.04 FT : THENCE 
SOUTH 00 DEG 252.94 FT TO POB. 
Parcel No : 29-21-28-0000-00-037 
Acres: 0.96 +/- acres 
 
 

174



ORDINANCE NO. 2639 

PAGE 2 

 

Section III.  That the legal boundaries described within Exhibit “B” of Ordinance No. 2584  
are amended to include the Revelle Parcel and replaced with legal description is as follows: 

  
 Legal Description: Exhibit “A” of Ordinance 2639.  

 
Parcel ID Nos.: 29-21-28-0000-00-011; 29-21-28-0000-00-016; 29-21-28-0000-

00-033; and Portions of: 29-21-28-0000-00-038; 32-21-28-0000-00-004; 32-21-

28-0000-00- 030; 29-21-28-0000-00-037 
 
Combined Acreage: 97.7 +/- Acres 

 
 Section III.  The Oak Pointe PUD Master Plan, Exhibit “A” of Ordinance 2584, is 
amended and replaced by Exhibit “B” of Ordinance 2639.  Further, the maximum number of the 
of townhome residential units allowed within the Oak Pointe PUD Master Plan shall be 120 units. 
 
 Section IV.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 
hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, to include said designation. 
 
 Section V. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves 
to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, 
force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 
 
 Section VI.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed.  
 
 Section VII.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of adoption. 
 
 

                     
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: February 23, 2018; March 30, 2018 
     
 
 
 
 
 

 
READ FIRST TIME:  April 4, 2018 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     April 18, 2018 

175



ORDINANCE NO. 2639 

PAGE 3 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

(as provided on cover sheet of the Master Site Plan-Exhibit “A”) 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
 
TRACT 1: 
 
A PARCEL OF LAND SITUATE IN SECTIONS 29 AND 32, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
BEGINNING AT THE SOUTH 1/4 CORNER OF SAID SECTION 29, SAID POINT-OF-BEGINNING ALSO BEING ON THE EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY 
LINE OF IRMALEE LANE AS SHOWN ON OOCEA RIGHT-OF-WAY MAP, PROJECT NO. 75320-6460-604; THENCE RUN ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-
WAY LINE AND THE WEST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 29, NORTH 00°00'34” 
WEST, A DISTANCE OF 676.02 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 
1/4 OF SAID SECTION 29; THENCE RUN NORTH 89°36'10” EAST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 
OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 29, A DISTANCE OF 662.29 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF 
THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4; THENCE RUN SOUTH 00°07'19” WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF 
THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4, A DISTANCE OF 679.97 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF 
THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4; THENCE RUN SOUTH 00°05'25” WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST 1/2 OF THE 
NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF AFORESAID SECTION 32, A DISTANCE OF 1299.53 FEET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH 
A LINE LYING 30 FEET NORTH OF AN PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 
32, SAID LINE ALSO BEING THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF WEST MCCORMICK ROAD AS LAID OUT AND IN USE; THENCE RUN SOUTH 
89°44'22” WEST ALONG SAID RIGHT-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 659.62 FEET TO THE EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF AFORESAID 
IRMALEE LANE; THENCE RUN NORTH 00°02'30” EAST ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND THE WEST LINE OF THE WEST 1/2 OF THE 
NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 32, A DISTANCE OF 1301.88 FEET BACK TO THE POINT-OF-BEGINNING. 
 
THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PARCEL CONTAINS 1307158 SQUARE FEET OR 30.008 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 
 
FOR THE PURPOSE OF THIS DESCRIPTION ALL BEARINGS ARE REATIVE TO THE FLORIDA STATE PLANE SYSTEM, NATIONAL ADJUSTED 
DATUM OF 1983 (NAD83), EAST ZONE TRANSVERSE MERCATOR, ZONE FL83-EF. 
 
TRACT 2: 
 
A PARCEL OF LAND SITUATE IN SECTIONS 29 AND 32, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
COMMENCING AT THE SOUTH 1/4 CORNER OF SAID SECTION 29, SAID POINT ALSO BEING ON THE EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
IRMALEE LANE AS SHOWN ON OOCEA RIGHT-OF-WAY MAP, PROJECT NO. 75320-6460-604; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°58'41” WEST, A 
DISTANCE OF 105.10 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID IRMALEE LANE AND THE POINT-OF-BEGINNING 
OF THE PARCEL INTENDED TO BE DESCRIBED;  
 
THENCE FROM SAID POINT-OF-BEGINNING RUN ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE FOR THE FOLLOWING THREE (3) COURSES, 
FIRST SOUTH 00°00'34” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 131.79 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 03°46'11” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 300.95 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 
00°02'30 WEST, A DISTANCE OF 870.05 FEET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A LINE LYING 30 FEET NORTH OF AND PARALLEL WITH 
THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 32, SAID LINE ALSO BEING THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-
WAY LINE OF WEST MCCORMICK ROAD AS LAID OUT AND IN USE; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°46'26” WEST ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, 
A DISTANCE OF 432.05 FEET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE EASTERLY LIMITED ACCESS RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD 
429, AS SHOWN ON THE ORLANDO ORANGE COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY RIGHT-OF-WAY MAP, PROJECT NO. 75320-6460-604; 
THENCE ALONG THE SAID EASTERLY LIMITED ACCESS RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE FOR THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES, THE FIRST BEING 
FROM A POINT ON A CURVE NON-TANGENT TO THE PRECEEDING COURSE, CONCAVE TO THE WEST, HAVING A RADIUS OF 5071.07 FEET, 
A CHORD OF NORTH 06°38'25” WEST, 1230.71 FEET AND FROM WHICH A RADIAL LINE BEARS NORTH 89°49'25” WEST; THENCE 
NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, SUBTENDED BY A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 13°56'23”, A DISTANCE OF 1233.75 FEET TO 
A POINT OF NON-TANGENCY; THENCE NORTH 00°13'36” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 81.23 FEET; THENCE NORTH 21°02'59” WEST, A DISTANCE 
OF 218.39 FEET; THENCE NORTH 22°49'25” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 108.56 FEET TO A POINT ON A CURVE BEING NON-TANGENT TO THE 
PRECEEDING COURSE, CONCAVE TO THE WEST, HAVING A RADIUS OF 5061.07 FEET, A CHORD OF NORTH 19°40'31” WEST, 265.41 FEET 
AND FROM WHICH A RADIAL LINE BEARS SOUTH 71°49'38” WEST; THENCE RUN NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, 
SUBTENDED BY A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 3°00'18”, A DISTANCE OF 265.44 FEET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE AFORESAID RIGHT-
OF-WAY LINE OF IRMALEE LANE; THENCE DEPARTING FROM SAID EASTERLY LIMITED ACCESS RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, RUN ALONG THE 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF IRMALEE LANE FOR THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES, FIRST NORTH 81°37'49” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 93.13 
FEET; THENCE NORTH 89°44'46” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 433.52 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE, CONCAVE TO THE SOUTHWEST, 
HAVING A RADIUS OF 235.00 FEET AND A CHORD OF SOUTH 45°07'54” EAST, 333.05 FEET; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF 
SAID CURVE, SUBTENDED BY A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 90°14'40”, A DISTANCE OF 370.14 FEET TO THE END OF SAID CURVE; THENCE RUN 
SOUTH 00°00'34” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 334.61 FEET BACK TO THE POINT-OF-BEGINNING. 
 
THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PARCEL CONTAINS 990921 SQUARE FEET OR 22.748 ACRES MORE OR LESS.  
 
FOR THE PURPOSE OF THIS DESCRIPTION ALL BEARINGS ARE REATIVE TO THE FLORIDA STATE PLANE SYSTEM, NATIONAL ADJUSTED 
DATUM OF 1983 (NAD83), EAST ZONE TRANSVERSE MERCATOR, ZONE FL83-EF 
 
TRACT 3: 
 
A PARCEL OF LAND SITUATE IN SECTION 29, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 

176



ORDINANCE NO. 2639 

PAGE 4 

 
BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 
29, SAID POINT-OF-BEGINNING ALSO BEING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR IRMALEE LANE AS SHOWN ON THE 
OOCEA RIGHT-OF-WAY MAP, PROJECT NO. 75320-6460-604; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°44'46” WEST ALONG SAID RIGHT-WAY LINE AND THE 
SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 29, A DISTANCE OF 404.10 FEET 
TO A POINT AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THOSE LANDS DESCRIBED IN THAT CERTAIN WARANTY DEED RECORDED IN OFFICIAL 
RECORD BOOK 10023 AT PAGE 6676 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE TRAVERSE SAID LANDS FOR 
THE FOLLOWING THREE (3) COURSES, FIRST NORTH 00°05'38” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 252.94 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89°44'46” WEST, A 
DISTANCE OF 148.04 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 07°57'26” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 255.56 FEET BACK TO THE AFORESAID RIGHT-OF-WAY OF 
IRMALEE LANE; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°44'46” WEST ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY, A DISTANCE OF 330.19 FEET TO A POINT OF 
INTERSECTION WITH THE EASTERLY LIMITED ACCESS RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD 429, AS SHOWN ON THE ORLANDO ORANGE 
COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY RIGHT-OF-WAY MAP, PROJECT NO. 75320-6460-604, SAID POINT BEING A POINT ON A NON-TANGENT 
CURVE, CONCAVE TO THE SOUTHWEST, HAVING A RADIUS OF 5061.07 FEET, A CHORD OF NORTH 26°14'53” WEST, 640.22 FEET AND FROM 
WHICH A RADIAL LINE BEARS SOUTH 67°22'42” WEST; THENCE RUN NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, SUBTENDED BY 
A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 7°15'10”, A DISTANCE OF 640.65 FEET; THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID LIMITED ACCESS RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 
NORTH 29°36'57” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 237.79 FEET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE EAST LINE OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF 
THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 29; THENCE DEPARTING FROM SAID LIMITED ACCESS RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND ALONG THE EAST 
LINE OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 29, NORTH 00°04'09” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 37.87 FEET TO A 
POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A LINE LYING 150 FEET NORTH OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF THE WEST 1/2 OF THE 
NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 29; THENCE RUN NORTH 89°30'29” EAST ALONG SAID PARALLEL LINE, A 
DISTANCE OF 658.90 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF SAID WEST 1/2; THENCE RUN SOUTH 00°01'48” WEST ALONG SAID EAST LINE, A DISTANCE 
OF 150.02 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF THE EAST 1/2 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 29; THENCE 
RUN NORTH 89°30'33” EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE, A DISTANCE OF 659.01 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID EAST 1/2; 
THENCE RUN SOUTH 00°00'34” EAST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID EAST 1/2, A DISTANCE OF 676.01 FEET BACK TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING. 
 
THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PARCEL CONTAINS 990921 SQUARE FEET OR 22.748 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



  
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: April 4, 2018 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” – Summary 
X OTHER: Ordinance   Ordinance No. 2640 
    Vicinity Map 

  
SUBJECT:  2018 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 2 
   
REQUEST:  ORDINANCE NO. 2640 – FIRST READING – JANINE ROCHELLE 

EDMONDSON AND RICHARD DONALD EDMONDSON; AND HOLD 
OVER FOR SECOND READING & ADOPTION. 

  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNERS:  Janine Rochelle Edmondson and Richard Donald Edmondson 
 
LOCATION:  3904 Plymouth Sorrento Road 
 
LAND USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A” 
 
EXISTING USE: Refer to Exhibit “A” 
 
TRACT SIZE:  1.00 +/- acre 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Abutting current boundaries of the City of Apopka, the subject site is 
consistent with Florida Statutes addressing annexation of unincorporated lands into a municipality. The 
proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County Future Land Use and Zoning Designations.  
Assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning designation will occur at a later date, and through action 
by the City Council.   
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to 
the first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on March 12, 
2018. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
March 16, 2018 (Apopka Chief) 
April 6, 2018 (Apopka Chief) 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
April 4, 2018 (1:30 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 
April 18, 2018 (7:00 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
 

 
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 208



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 
2018 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 2 
PAGE 2 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the annexation for property owned by 
Janine Rochelle Edmondson and Richard Donald Edmondson. 
 
Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2640, and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on 
April 18, 2018. 
 

209



ORDINANCE NO. 2640 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY JANINE ROCHELLE EDMONDSON AND RICHARD 
DONALD EDMONDSON. AND LOCATED AT 3904 PLYMOUTH 
SORRENTO ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY 
CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, Janine Rochelle Edmondson and Richard Donald Edmondson., owner 
thereof, has petitioned the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, to annex the property 
located at 3904 Plymouth Sorrento Road; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida provide that a 
municipal corporation may annex property into its corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the 
owners, by passing and adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is desirous of annexing and 
redefining the boundaries of the municipality to include the subject property pursuant to Florida 
Statute 171.044. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being situated in Orange County, 
Florida, totaling 1.00 +/- acre, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A”, is hereby 
annexed into the City of Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation provisions of 
Chapter 171.044, Florida Statutes, and other applicable laws: 
 

Property Description: 
 
N 105.67 FT OF S 255.67 FT OF S1/2 OF N1/2 OF E 1/3 OF NE1/4 OF NE1/4 SEC 24-20-27 
(LESS E 30 FT FOR R/W)  
(Parcel ID 24-20-27-0000-00-085, 3904 Plymouth Sorrento Road) Containing 1.00 +/- 
acres. 
 

 SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City of Apopka, Florida, are 
hereby redefined to include said land herein described and annexed.
 

SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use classification and zoning 
category of these annexed lands in accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 
 
 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants of the land herein 
described shall be liable for all debts and obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, 
ordinances and regulations of the City. 
 

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 
proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

210



ORDINANCE NO. 2640 
PAGE 2  
 
validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 
ordinance. 
 
 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 
 
 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage and adoption, thereafter 
the City Clerk is hereby directed to file this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and 
for Orange County, Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the Department of State 
of the State of Florida.  
 
 

            
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING:  March 16, 2018 and April 6, 2018 

 

 
READ FIRST TIME: April 4, 2018 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     April 18, 2018 
 
 
  
Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

211



ORDINANCE NO. 2640 
PAGE 2  
 

  
EXHIBIT "A" 

 
Annexation 

Janine Rochelle Edmondson and Richard Donald Edmondson 
3904 Plymouth Sorrento Road 

    
Parcel ID No.:  24-20-27-0000-00-085 

              Total Acres: 1.00 +/-      
 

 VICINITY MAP 
            

  

 

212



  
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: April 4, 2018 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” – Summary 
X OTHER: Ordinance   Ordinance No. 2641 
    Vicinity Map 

  
SUBJECT:  2018 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 2 
   
REQUEST:  ORDINANCE NO. 2641 – FIRST READING – LYNN R. FONTAINE; AND 

HOLD OVER FOR SECOND READING & ADOPTION. 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER:  Lynn R. Fontaine 
 
LOCATION:  4353 Mcdonald Gley Road 
 
LAND USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A” 
 
EXISTING USE: Refer to Exhibit “A” 
 
TRACT SIZE:  5.2 +/- acre 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Abutting current boundaries of the City of Apopka, the subject site is 
consistent with Florida Statutes addressing annexation of unincorporated lands into a municipality. The 
proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County Future Land Use and Zoning Designations.  
Assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning designation will occur at a later date, and through action 
by the City Council.   
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to 
the first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on March 12, 
2018. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
March 16, 2018 (Apopka Chief) 
April 6, 2018 (Apopka Chief) 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
April 4, 2018 (1:30 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 
April 18, 2018 (7:00 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
 

 
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 213



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 
2018 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 2 
PAGE 2 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the annexation for property owned by 
Lynn R. Fontaine. 
 
Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2642, and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on 
April 18, 2018. 
 

214



ORDINANCE NO. 2641 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY LYNN R. FONTAINE. AND LOCATED AT 4353 MCDONALD 
GLEY ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, Lynn R. Fontaine, owner thereof, has petitioned the City Council of the City 
of Apopka, Florida, to annex the property located at 4353 Mcdonald Gley Road; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida provide that a 
municipal corporation may annex property into its corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the 
owners, by passing and adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is desirous of annexing and 
redefining the boundaries of the municipality to include the subject property pursuant to Florida 
Statute 171.044. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being situated in Orange County, 
Florida, totaling 5.2 +/- acre, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A”, is hereby 
annexed into the City of Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation provisions of 
Chapter 171.044, Florida Statutes, and other applicable laws: 
 

Property Description: 
 
E1/2 OF SW1/4 OF NE1/4 OF NE1/4 (LESS W 150 FT) & W 165 FT OF SE1/4 OF NE1/4 
OF NE1/4 OF SEC 35-30-37  
(Parcel ID 35-20-27-0000-00-037, 4353 Mcdonald Gley Road) Containing 5.2 +/- acres. 
 

 SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City of Apopka, Florida, are 
hereby redefined to include said land herein described and annexed.
 

SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use classification and zoning 
category of these annexed lands in accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 
 
 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants of the land herein 
described shall be liable for all debts and obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, 
ordinances and regulations of the City. 
 

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 
proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 
validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 
ordinance. 
 

215



ORDINANCE NO. 2641 
PAGE 2  
 
 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 
 
 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage and adoption, thereafter 
the City Clerk is hereby directed to file this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and 
for Orange County, Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the Department of State 
of the State of Florida.  
 
 

            
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING:  March 16, 2018 and April 6, 2018 

 

 
READ FIRST TIME: April 4, 2018 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     April 18, 2018 
 
 
  
Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

216



ORDINANCE NO. 2641 
PAGE 2  
 

  
EXHIBIT "A" 

 
Annexation 

Lynn R. Fontaine 
4353 Mcdonald Gley Road 

 
Parcel ID No.:  35-20-27-0000-00-037 

              Total Acres: 5.2 +/-      
 

 VICINITY MAP 
          

  

217



  
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: April 4, 2018 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” – Summary 
X OTHER: Ordinance   Ordinance No. 2642 
    Vicinity Map 

  
SUBJECT:  2018 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 2 
   
REQUEST:  ORDINANCE NO. 2641 – FIRST READING – SUNTRUST BANK; AND 

HOLD OVER FOR SECOND READING & ADOPTION. 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER:  Suntrust Bank 
 
LOCATION:  920 East Semoran Boulevard 
 
LAND USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A” 
 
EXISTING USE: Refer to Exhibit “A” 
 
TRACT SIZE:  0.37 +/- acre 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Abutting current boundaries of the City of Apopka, the subject site is 
consistent with Florida Statutes addressing annexation of unincorporated lands into a municipality. The 
proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County Future Land Use and Zoning Designations.  
Assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning designation will occur at a later date, and through action 
by the City Council.   
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to 
the first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on March 12, 
2018. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
March 16, 2018 (Apopka Chief) 
April 6, 2018 (Apopka Chief) 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
April 4, 2018 (1:30 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 
April 18, 2018 (7:00 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
 

 
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 218



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 
2018 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 2 
PAGE 2 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the annexation for property owned by 
Suntrust Bank. 
 
Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2642, and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on 
April 18, 2018. 
 

219



ORDINANCE NO. 2642 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY SUNTRUST BANK. AND LOCATED AT 920 EAST 
SEMORAN BOULEVARD, PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 
CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, Suntrust Bank, owner thereof, has petitioned the City Council of the City of 
Apopka, Florida, to annex the property located at 920 East Semoran Boulevard; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida provide that a 
municipal corporation may annex property into its corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the 
owners, by passing and adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is desirous of annexing and 
redefining the boundaries of the municipality to include the subject property pursuant to Florida 
Statute 171.044. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being situated in Orange County, 
Florida, totaling 5.2 +/- acre, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A”, is hereby 
annexed into the City of Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation provisions of 
Chapter 171.044, Florida Statutes, and other applicable laws: 
 

Property Description: 
 
BLUE BIRD PARK X/58 LOT 5 (LESS N 82 FT RD R/W)  
(Parcel ID 11-21-28-0750-00-050, 920 East Semoran Boulevard) Containing 0.37 +/- 
acres. 
 

 SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City of Apopka, Florida, are 
hereby redefined to include said land herein described and annexed.
 

SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use classification and zoning 
category of these annexed lands in accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 
 
 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants of the land herein 
described shall be liable for all debts and obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, 
ordinances and regulations of the City. 
 

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 
proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 
validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 
ordinance. 

220



ORDINANCE NO. 2641 
PAGE 2  
 
 
 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 
 
 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage and adoption, thereafter 
the City Clerk is hereby directed to file this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and 
for Orange County, Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the Department of State 
of the State of Florida.  
 
 

            
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING:  March 16, 2018 and April 6, 2018 

 

 
READ FIRST TIME: April 4, 2018 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     April 18, 2018 
 
 
  
Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

221



ORDINANCE NO. 2641 
PAGE 2  
 

  
EXHIBIT "A" 

 
Annexation 

Suntrust Bank 
920 East Semoran Boulevard 

   
Parcel ID No.:  11-21-28-0750-00-050 

              Total Acres: 0.37 +/-      
 
 VICINITY MAP 
           

  

222



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: April 4, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Ordinance No. 2643 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Annexation Cases 

Vicinity Map 
  
SUBJECT:  2018 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 2 ROADWAY ANNEXATIONS 

   

REQUEST:  ORDINANCE NO. 2643 - FIRST READING – ANNEXATION - KING STREET 

RIGHT-OF-WAY, PETERSON ROAD (EAST OF SR 429), AND PETERSON 

ROAD (WEST OF SR 429); AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND READING 

AND ADOPTION. 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER:  Orange County Board of County Commissioners 

 

APPLICANT;  City of Apopka Community Development Department 

 

LOCATION:  King Street Right-of-Way located east of SR 429 and south of West Orange Avenue; 

Peterson Street Right-of-Way located east of SR 429; and Peterson Street Right-of-

Way located west of SR 429 

 

EXISTING USE: Public Road 

 

TRACT SIZE:  King Street: 1.859 +/- acres; Peterson Road (east of SR 429): 2.773 +/- acres; 

Peterson Road (west of SR 429): 0.674 +/- acre; Total 5.603 +/- acres/ 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The proposed annexation will result in a change of ownership for a portion 
of King Street Right-of-Way, Peterson Road east of SR 429 and Peterson Road west of SR 429 from the 
Orange County Board of County Commissioners to the City of Apopka. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to 
the first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on March 12, 
2018. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
March 16, 2018 
April 6, 2018 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
 
 

223



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 
2018 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 2 
PAGE 2 

 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
April 4, 2018 (1:30 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 
April 18, 2018 (7:00 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the annexation for King Street Right-of-
Way, Peterson Road east of SR 429 and Peterson Road west of SR 429.  
 
Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2643 and Hold Over for Second Reading and Adoption on April 
18, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

224



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 4, 2018 
2018 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 2 
PAGE 3 

 
ANNEXATION CASES 
Proposed Annexations: 

 

 TOTAL ACRES:  5.603 +/- 

 
VICINITY MAP 

King Street Public Right-of-Way; Peterson Street Right-of-Way located east of SR 429; and 
Peterson Street Right-of-Way located west of SR 429 

 

(THIS MAP IS FOR REFERENCE PURPOSES ONLY AND IS NOT TO SCALE) 

 
 
 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 

OWNER’S 

NAME 
LOCATION 

PARCEL 

NUMBER 

ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE 

LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

2643 

A 
Orange 

County 
King Street N/A 1.859 

Public 

Road 

Public 

Road 

B 
Orange 

County 

Peterson Road 

(East of SR 429) 
N/A 2.773  

Public 

Road 

Public 

Road 

C 
Orange 

County 

Peterson Road 

(West of SR 429) 
N/A 0.674 

Public 

Road 

Public 

Road 

Right-of-Way to be Annexed 

City of Apopka Incorporated 

Area 
Unincorporated Orange County Area 

Peterson Road (West) Peterson Road (East) 

((e(West) 

K
i
n

g
 
S

t
r
e
e

t
 

225



ORDINANCE NO. 2643 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND ITS 

TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT TO 

FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED PUBLIC 

RIGHTS-OF-WAY KNOWN AS KING STREET,  PETERSON ROAD (EAST), 

AND PETERSON ROAD (WEST), SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE 

COUNTY, FLORIDA, LOCATED GENERALLY SOUTH OF WEST ORANGE 

AVENUE AND EAST AND WEST OF SR 429, AND COMPRISED OF 

APPROXIMATELY 5.306 ACRES; OWNED BY ORANGE COUNTY BOARD OF 

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY 

CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 

WHEREAS,  the Orange County Board of County Commissioners has requested that the City of 

Apopka, Florida, annex King Street Right-of-Way located east of SR 429 and south of West Orange 

Avenue and two portions of Peterson Road Right-of-Way located east and west of SR 429; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida provide that a municipal 

corporation may annex property into its corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the owners, by passing 

and adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is desirous of annexing and 

redefining the boundaries of the municipality to include the subject property pursuant to Florida Statute 

171.044. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, as 

follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being situated in Orange County, Florida, 

totaling 5.306 +/- acre, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A”, Exhibit “B”, and Exhibit 

“C” are hereby annexed into the City of Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation provisions 

of Chapter 171.044, Florida Statutes, and other applicable laws: 

 

Descriptions:  King Street: 1.859 +/- acres; Peterson Road (east of SR 429): 2.773 +/- 

acres; Peterson Road (west of SR 429): 0.674 +/- acre; more specifically described within 

Exhibit “A”, Exhibit “B”, and Exhibit “C”. 

 

 SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City of Apopka, Florida, are hereby 

redefined to include said land herein described and annexed. 

 

SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use classification and zoning 

category of these annexed lands in accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 

 

 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants of the land herein described 

shall be liable for all debts and obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, ordinances and 

regulations of the City. 

226



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2643 

PAGE 2  

 

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves 

to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force, 

or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage and adoption, thereafter the 

City Clerk is hereby directed to file this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and for Orange 

County, Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the Department of State of the State of 

Florida.  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: March 16, 2018, April 6, 2018 

 
 

 

READ FIRST TIME: April 4, 2018 

 

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED:     April 18, 2018 

 

 

  

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

227



A public "Right-of-Way" as recorded in the Public Records of Orange County, Florida,
being more particularly described as follows:
Commence at the Southeast corner of Section 06-21-28, as recorded in the Public
Records of Orange County, Florida; thence South 88°52'48" West, a distance of 2,608.98
feet along the Southern line of said section; said point being the POINT OF BEGINNING;
thence North 0°51'00" East, a distance of 1,222.07 feet; thence South 79°38'14" West, a
distance of 74.31 feet; thence South 0°15'07" West, a distance of 1,208.21 feet; thence
South 89°38'48" East, a distance of 60.28 feet.
Containing 80,957.86 square feet (1.859-Acres), more or less.

Exhibit - A
Description of public "Right-of-Way": King St.
Owner: Orange County

Peterson Rd.

N

E

S

W

W. Orange Ave.

Ki
ng

 S
t.

This document does not represent a Boundary Survey.
228



Exhibit-B
Description of public "Right-of-Way": Peterson Rd. 

Owner: Orange County 

A public "Right-of-Way" as recorded in the Public Records of Orange County, Florida, 

being more particularly described as follows: 

Commence at the Southeast corner of Section 06-21-28, as recorded in the Public 

Records of Orange County, Florida; thence South 88
°

52'48" West, a distance of 2,608.98 

feet along the Southern line of said section; said point being the POINT OF BEGINNING; 

thence North 89 °38'48" West, a distance of 2,678.34 feet; thence South 0 °12'23" East, a 

distance of 30.15 feet; thence South 89 °39'10" East, a distance of 1,336.41 feet; thence 

South 0
°

09'19" West, a distance of 30.00 feet; thence South 89
°

38'48" East, a distance 

of 1,344.44 feet; thence North 0°05'55" East, a distance of 31.22 feet; thence South 

88 °14'57" West, a distance of 3.02 feet; thence North 0 °51'01" East, a distance of 28.90 

feet. 

Containing 120,775.47 square feet {2.773-Acres), more or less. 

L1 

L2 

L3 

L4 

L5 

L6 

L7 

LB 

� W

V

E 

N89°38'48"W 

S0°12'23"E 

SB9°39'1o"E 

S0°09'19"W 

S89°38'48"E 

N0°05'55"E 

S88°14'57"W 

N0°51 '01 "E 

2,678.34' 

30.15' 

1,336.41' 

30.00' 

1,344.44' 

31.22' 

3.02' 

28.90' 
I I 

!�
r�r

POINT OF BEGINNING 

L2'1=============7
L

3::r=======�
L
�4====�

L

i
l

�========����===

P

=
ill
=

N

=

T

=
O
F

==

C

�
O
M

j

M

�
��:

�\r-

7

-�;5ti.���� 

THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF 

SECTION 06-Zl-ZB. 

AS RECORDED IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF 

ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA 

This document does not represent a Boundary Survey. 

229



Exhibit-C
Description of public "Right-of-Way": Peterson Rd. 

Owner: Orange County 

A public "Right-of-Way" as recorded in the Public Records of Orange County, Florida, 

being more particularly described as follows: 

Commence at the Southeast corner of Section 01-21-27, as recorded in the Public 

Records of Orange County, Florida; thence North 89 °58'14" West, a distance of 1,334.15 

feet along the Southern line of said section; said point being the POINT OF BEGINNING; 

thence North 0 °00'00" East, a distance of 29.52 feet; thence South 89 °59'50" West, a 

distance of 1,000.52 feet; thence South 0 °12'51" West, a distance of 29.17 feet; thence 

South 89
°

58'57" East, a distance of 1,000.63 feet. 

Containing 29,362.33 square feet (0.674-Acres), more or less. 

L1 

L2 

L3 

L4 

� W

V

E 

N0°00'00"E 

S89°59'5o"w 

S0°12'57"w 

S89°58'57"E 

29.52' 

1,000.52' 

29.17' 

1,000.63' 

This document does not represent a Boundary Survey. 

POINT OF COMMENCEMENT 
THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF 

I AS RECORni}�'{f
0

;1
1

iJiiL��\EcoRns OF 
: ORANGE COUNTY. FLORIDA 

POINT OF BEGINNING 

230



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: April 4, 2018 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       Resolution No. 2018-04 

  X   OTHER: Business 
  

 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION NO. 2018-04 GRANTING A NON-EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE FOR 

ROLL-OFF CONTAINER COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL OF WASTE IN THE 

CITY OF APOPKA TO CONTAINER RENTAL COMPANY 

 

REQUEST: ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2018-04 

 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

Chapter 66, Article III, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Apopka, provides for private refuse 

collection service through the granting of a non-exclusive franchise for roll-off container collection in the 

City.  The minimum amount the City is to receive is $960.00 per year for this agreement. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Adopt Resolution No. 2018-04 
  
 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

231



RESOLUTION NO. 2018-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

APOPKA, FLORIDA, GRANTING A NON-EXCLUSIVE 

FRANCHISE TO CONTAINER RENTAL COMPANY., TO 

PROVIDE "ROLL-OFF" CONTAINER COLLECTION AND 

DISPOSAL OF WASTE IN THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, 

PURSUANT TO CITY OF APOPKA, CODE OF ORDINANCES, 

CHAPTER 66, ARTICLE III; PROVIDING FOR THE TERM 

OF YEARS FOR THE FRANCHISE; PROVIDING FOR 

FRANCHISE FEE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 

WHEREAS, Chapter 66, Article III, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, provides for private refuse collection service through the granting of non-exclusive 

franchise(s) for roll-off containers, and is hereinafter referred to as Chapter 66, Article III; and 

  

WHEREAS, Chapter 66, Article III grants the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, the power, right and authority to contract by resolution with persons thereby granting 

non-exclusive franchise(s) to provide "roll-off" container collection and disposal of waste within 

the City of Apopka, Florida; and 

 

WHEREAS, Chapter 66, Article III provides for City requirements, outlining Franchisee's 

duties, providing the terms and conditions under which such franchise shall operate. 

 

WHEREAS, Chapter 66, Article III enables the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, to enter into a contract with persons desiring a franchise to provide roll-off container 

collection and disposal of waste within the City of Apopka; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, that: 

 

SECTION I.  GRANT AND TERM. 
 

That the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, extends a non-exclusive franchise to: 

 

CONTAINER RENTAL COMPANY 

 

a Florida corporation whose business address is:  

 

2715 Staten Road 

Orlando, FL 32804 

 

Hereinafter referred to as Grantee, to provide roll-off container collection and disposal of waste 

within the corporate limits of the City of Apopka, Florida, under the terms set out in Chapter 66, 

Article III. 

 

The term of this franchise will begin on April 4, 2018 and end on April 3, 2020 (The term may be 

extended for an additional two (2) years, at the sole option of the City, by written notice to the 

franchisee not less than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the current term.) 
232



 

SECTION II.  COMPLIANCE WITH ORDINANCE AND RESOLUTION.  
 

That the City of Apopka, Florida, and the Grantee of the franchise shall comply with all of 

the terms and conditions as set forth in Chapter 66, Article III, and this Resolution. A failure by the 

Grantee to comply with the terms and conditions of Chapter 66, Article III and/or all ordinances 

and resolutions of the City of Apopka, and/or the laws of the State of Florida or the United States, 

shall be grounds for the immediate revocation of the Franchise. 

 

Payment of Franchise Fees shall be made payable to the City of Apopka, and mailed to  

 

City of Apopka, 

Attention: Accounts Payable 

120 E Main St 

Apopka, Florida, 32703. 

 

The fee for administrative and inspection costs and expenses shall be credited against the 

charges. 

 

SECTION III.  ENFORCEMENT.  

 

The Mayor or his designee is hereby authorized to enforce the non-exclusive franchise 

granted by this Resolution for the City of Apopka. 

 

SECTION IV.  EFFECTIVE DATE  
 

This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption, and the non-exclusive 

franchise granted by this Resolution shall be binding immediately on the City and the Grantee 

upon the date those proper officers or authorities of each have duly executed this Resolution. 

 

 

APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, and this 4th day of April 

2018. 

 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 

 

 

ATTEST: 

                                                     

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

 

 

                                     

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 
233



ACCEPTANCE BY FRANCHISEE 
 

 

 

The foregoing RESOLUTION NO. 2018-04 and the NON-EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE 

provided for therein, and all the terms and conditions thereof, are hereby accepted, approved, and 

agreed to this _______day of April, 2018 

 

 

 

CONTAINER RENTAL COMPANY. 

 

______________________________________ 

Signature 

 

______________________________________ 

Printed Name 

 

______________________________________ 

Title 

 

 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF ORANGE 

 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this _____ day of April 2018, by 

____________________________. 

 

 

_______________________________  

      Notary Public, State of Florida 

 

_______________________________ 

Printed Name of Notary 

 

Personally Known ______ OR Produced Identification _______ 

 

Type of Identification Produced ______________________________ 

 

234



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: April 4, 2018 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       Resolution No. 2018-05 

  X  OTHER: Business 
  

 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION NO. 2018-05 GRANTING A NON-EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE FOR 

ROLL-OFF CONTAINER COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL OF WASTE IN THE 

CITY OF APOPKA TO WASTE PRO USA, INC. 

 

REQUEST: ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2018-05 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

Chapter 66, Article III, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Apopka, provides for private refuse 

collection service through the granting of a non-exclusive franchise for roll-off container collection in the 

City.  The minimum amount the City is to receive is $960.00 per year for this agreement. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Adopt Resolution No. 2018-05. 
  
 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

235



RESOLUTION NO. 2018-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

APOPKA, FLORIDA, GRANTING A NON-EXCLUSIVE 

FRANCHISE TO WASTE PRO USA, INC., TO PROVIDE 

"ROLL-OFF" CONTAINER COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL 

OF WASTE IN THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, 

PURSUANT TO CITY OF APOPKA, CODE OF ORDINANCES, 

CHAPTER 66, ARTICLE III; PROVIDING FOR THE TERM 

OF YEARS FOR THE FRANCHISE; PROVIDING FOR 

FRANCHISE FEE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 

WHEREAS, Chapter 66, Article III, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, provides for private refuse collection service through the granting of non-exclusive 

franchise(s) for roll-off containers, and is hereinafter referred to as Chapter 66, Article III; and 

  

WHEREAS, Chapter 66, Article III grants the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, the power, right and authority to contract by resolution with persons thereby granting 

non-exclusive franchise(s) to provide "roll-off" container collection and disposal of waste within 

the City of Apopka, Florida; and 

 

WHEREAS, Chapter 66, Article III provides for City requirements, outlining Franchisee's 

duties, providing the terms and conditions under which such franchise shall operate. 

 

WHEREAS, Chapter 66, Article III enables the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, to enter into a contract with persons desiring a franchise to provide roll-off container 

collection and disposal of waste within the City of Apopka; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, that: 

 

SECTION I.  GRANT AND TERM. 
 

That the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, extends a non-exclusive franchise to: 

 

WASTE PRO USA, INC. 

 

a Florida corporation whose business address is:  

 

3705 Saint John’s Parkway 

Sanford, FL 32771-6369 

 

Hereinafter referred to as Grantee, to provide roll-off container collection and disposal of waste 

within the corporate limits of the City of Apopka, Florida, under the terms set out in Chapter 66, 

Article III. 

 

The term of this franchise will begin on April 4, 2018 and end on April 3, 2020 (The term may be 

extended for an additional two (2) years, at the sole option of the City, by written notice to the 

franchisee not less than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the current term.) 
236



 

SECTION II.  COMPLIANCE WITH ORDINANCE AND RESOLUTION.  
 

That the City of Apopka, Florida, and the Grantee of the franchise shall comply with all of 

the terms and conditions as set forth in Chapter 66, Article III, and this Resolution. A failure by the 

Grantee to comply with the terms and conditions of Chapter 66, Article III and/or all ordinances 

and resolutions of the City of Apopka, and/or the laws of the State of Florida or the United States, 

shall be grounds for the immediate revocation of the Franchise. 

 

Payment of Franchise Fees shall be made payable to the City of Apopka, and mailed to  

 

City of Apopka, 

Attention: Accounts Payable 

120 E Main St 

Apopka, Florida, 32703 

 

The fee for administrative and inspection costs and expenses shall be credited against the 

charges. 

 

SECTION III.  ENFORCEMENT.  

 

The Mayor or his designee is hereby authorized to enforce the non-exclusive franchise 

granted by this Resolution for the City of Apopka. 

 

SECTION IV.  EFFECTIVE DATE  
 

This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption, and the non-exclusive 

franchise granted by this Resolution shall be binding immediately on the City and the Grantee 

upon the date those proper officers or authorities of each have duly executed this Resolution. 

 

 

APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, and this 4th day of April 

2018. 

 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 

 

 

ATTEST: 

                                                     

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

 

 

                                     

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 
237



ACCEPTANCE BY FRANCHISEE 
 

 

 

The foregoing RESOLUTION NO. 2018-05 and the NON-EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE 

provided for therein, and all the terms and conditions thereof, are hereby accepted, approved, and 

agreed to this _______day of April, 2018 

 

 

 

WASTE PRO USA, INC. 

 

______________________________________ 

Signature 

 

______________________________________ 

Printed Name 

 

______________________________________ 

Title 

 

 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF ORANGE 

 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this _____ day of April 2018, by 

____________________________. 

 

 

_______________________________  

      Notary Public, State of Florida 

 

_______________________________ 

Printed Name of Notary 

 

Personally Known ______ OR Produced Identification _______ 

 

Type of Identification Produced ______________________________ 

 

238



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: April 4, 2018 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       Resolution No. 2018-06 

  X  OTHER: Business 
  

 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION NO. 2018-06 GRANTING A NON-EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE FOR 

ROLL-OFF CONTAINER COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL OF WASTE IN THE 

CITY OF APOPKA TO RANDY SUGGS, INC. 

 

REQUEST: ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2018-06 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

Chapter 66, Article III, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Apopka, provides for private refuse 

collection service through the granting of a non-exclusive franchise for roll-off container collection in the 

City.  The minimum amount the City is to receive is $960.00 per year for this agreement. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Adopt Resolution No. 2018-06. 
  
 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

239



RESOLUTION NO. 2018-06 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

APOPKA, FLORIDA, GRANTING A NON-EXCLUSIVE 

FRANCHISE TO RANDY SUGGS, INC., TO PROVIDE 

"ROLL-OFF" CONTAINER COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL 

OF WASTE IN THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, 

PURSUANT TO CITY OF APOPKA, CODE OF ORDINANCES, 

CHAPTER 66, ARTICLE III; PROVIDING FOR THE TERM 

OF YEARS FOR THE FRANCHISE; PROVIDING FOR 

FRANCHISE FEE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 

WHEREAS, Chapter 66, Article III, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, provides for private refuse collection service through the granting of non-exclusive 

franchise(s) for roll-off containers, and is hereinafter referred to as Chapter 66, Article III; and 

  

WHEREAS, Chapter 66, Article III grants the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, the power, right and authority to contract by resolution with persons thereby granting 

non-exclusive franchise(s) to provide "roll-off" container collection and disposal of waste within 

the City of Apopka, Florida; and 

 

WHEREAS, Chapter 66, Article III provides for City requirements, outlining Franchisee's 

duties, providing the terms and conditions under which such franchise shall operate. 

 

WHEREAS, Chapter 66, Article III enables the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, to enter into a contract with persons desiring a franchise to provide roll-off container 

collection and disposal of waste within the City of Apopka; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, that: 

 

SECTION I.  GRANT AND TERM. 
 

That the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, extends a non-exclusive franchise to: 

 

RANDY SUGGS, INC. 

 

a Florida corporation whose business address is:  

 

3403 Rock Springs Road 

Apopka, FL 32712 

 

Hereinafter referred to as Grantee, to provide roll-off container collection and disposal of waste 

within the corporate limits of the City of Apopka, Florida, under the terms set out in Chapter 66, 

Article III. 

 

The term of this franchise will begin on April 4, 2018 and end on April 3, 2020 (The term may be 

extended for an additional two (2) years, at the sole option of the City, by written notice to the 

franchisee not less than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the current term.) 
240



 

SECTION II.  COMPLIANCE WITH ORDINANCE AND RESOLUTION.  
 

That the City of Apopka, Florida, and the Grantee of the franchise shall comply with all of 

the terms and conditions as set forth in Chapter 66, Article III, and this Resolution. A failure by the 

Grantee to comply with the terms and conditions of Chapter 66, Article III and/or all ordinances 

and resolutions of the City of Apopka, and/or the laws of the State of Florida or the United States, 

shall be grounds for the immediate revocation of the Franchise. 

 

Payment of Franchise Fees shall be made payable to the City of Apopka, and mailed to  

 

City of Apopka 

Attention: Accounts Payable 

120 E Main St 

Apopka, Florida, 32703 

 

The fee for administrative and inspection costs and expenses shall be credited against the 

charges. 

 

SECTION III.  ENFORCEMENT.  

 

The Mayor or his designee is hereby authorized to enforce the non-exclusive franchise 

granted by this Resolution for the City of Apopka. 

 

SECTION IV.  EFFECTIVE DATE  
 

This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption, and the non-exclusive 

franchise granted by this Resolution shall be binding immediately on the City and the Grantee 

upon the date those proper officers or authorities of each have duly executed this Resolution. 

 

 

APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, and this 1st day of April 

2018. 

 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 

 

 

ATTEST: 

                                                     

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

 

 

                                     

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 
241



ACCEPTANCE BY FRANCHISEE 
 

 

 

The foregoing RESOLUTION NO. 2018-06 and the NON-EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE 

provided for therein, and all the terms and conditions thereof, are hereby accepted, approved, and 

agreed to this _______day of April, 2018 

 

 

 

RANDY SUGGS, INC. 

 

______________________________________ 

Signature 

 

______________________________________ 

Printed Name 

 

______________________________________ 

Title 

 

 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF ORANGE 

 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this _____ day of April 2018, by 

____________________________. 

 

 

_______________________________  

      Notary Public, State of Florida 

 

_______________________________ 

Printed Name of Notary 

 

Personally Known ______ OR Produced Identification _______ 

 

Type of Identification Produced ______________________________ 

 

242


	Top
	1. 04-04-18 - CC - APPROVAL OF MINUTES  1/26/18
	01-26-18 WS Draft.docx

	2. 04-04-18 - CC - APPROVAL OF MINUTES - 2/21/18 (placeholder)
	02-21-18 Draft.docx

	3. 04-04-18 - CC - APPROVAL OF MINUTES 3/7/18 (placeholder)
	03-07-18 Draft.docx

	1. 04-04-18 - CC - Proclamation -  PS Water Proclamation
	Water Conservation Proclamation - 2018.docx

	1. 04-04-18 - CC - Consent Agenda - Public Services - Bradshaw Rd Lift Station 77 Emergency Generator Replacement
	Bradshaw Lift Station Generator Staff Report.docx

	2. 04-04-18 - CC - Consent Agenda - Public Services - Purchase of a Bypass Pump for Lift Station 17
	Lift Station 17 Bypass Pump Staff Report.docx

	3. 04-04-18 - CC - Consent Agenda - Public Services - Streets Resurfacing
	2018 Streets Resurfacing Project.docx
	2018 Streets Resurfacing Project Proposal &amp; Exhibit A.pdf

	4. 04-04-18 - CC - Consent Agenda - Public Services - Wastewater Residuals Transport and Disposal Contract Extension
	Wastewater Residuals Transport Contract Extension Staff Report.docx

	1. 04-04-18 - CC - Business (Action) - Final Development Plan - Self Help Credit Union
	1 Self Help Federal Credit Union FDP CC 04 04 18.pdf
	2 Site Plan.pdf
	3 Landscape Plan.pdf
	4 Building Renderings.pdf
	5 Self Help Credit Union FULL FDP.pdf

	2. 04-04-18 - CC - Business (Action) - Final Development Plan/Plat - Zarabrooke Subdivision
	1 Zarabrooke Subdivision FDP PLAT - CC 04 04 18.pdf
	2 Zarabrooke - Subdivision Plan.pdf
	3 Zarabrooke - Landscape Plan.pdf
	4 Zarabrooke FULL FDP.pdf

	1. 04-04-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2635 - 2nd Rd - Comp Plan Small Scale FLUM - McAllister
	1 McAllister Small Scale FLU CC 4-4-18 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2635 - McAllister Small Scale FLU.pdf

	2. 04-04-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2636 - 2nd Rd - Change of Zoning - McAllister
	1 McAllister RZ CC 04-04-18 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2636 - McAllister - ZON.pdf

	3. 04-04-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2637 - 2nd Rd - Change of Zoning PUD Master Plan - Lake Marshall Subdivision
	1 Lake Marshall PUD - ZON - CC 04 04 18.pdf
	2 Ord  2637 - Lake Marshall PUD.pdf
	3 Exhibit A Phase 1 Master Plan.pdf
	4 Exhibit B Lake Marshall Phase 1 Master Plan Development Standards.pdf
	5 Exhibit C Phase 1 Landscape_recreation plan.pdf
	6 Exhibt D Phase 2 Master Plan.pdf
	7 Exhibit E Lake Marshall Phase 2 Master Plan Development Standards.pdf
	8 Exhibit F Phase 2 Landscape plan.pdf

	4. 04-04-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2639 - 1st Rd - Change of Zoning - PUD Master Plan - Oak Pointe
	1 Oak Pointe PUD Amend  PUD - ZON -CC 04 04 18.pdf
	2 Ord  2639 - Oak Pointe PUD Amendment.pdf
	3 Exh B Ord 2639 Oak Pointe PUD Amended Master Plan.pdf
	4 Oak Pointe Master Site Plan -Revelle Parcel Addition.pdf

	5. 04-04-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2640 - 1st Rd - Annexation - Edmondson
	1 Edmondson - Annexation Staff Report 1st Reading CC 04 04 18.pdf
	2 Ord 2640 - Edmondson.pdf

	6. 04-04-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2641 - 1st Rd - Annexation - Fontaine
	1 Fontaine- Annexation Staff Report 1st Reading CC 04 04 18.pdf
	2 Ord 2641 - Fontaine.pdf

	7. 04-04-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2642 - 1st Rd - Annexation - SunTrust Bank
	1 Suntrust - Annexation Staff Report 1st Reading CC 04 04 18.pdf
	2 Ord 2642 - Suntrust.pdf

	8. 04-04-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2643 - 1st Rd - Annexation ROW - King St/Peterson Road east &amp; west of SR 429
	1 King St Peterson Rd E Peterson Rd W  ROW Annexation Staff Report 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ordinance No 2643 E  and W Peterson Road andKing Street Roadway ROW Annexation 4-4-18.pdf
	3 King St.pdf
	4 Peterson Rd East rev.pdf
	5 Peterson Rd West rev.pdf

	9. 04-04-18 - CC - Resolution 2018-04 - PS Rolloff Container Rental Company
	Resolution 2018-04 Staff Report.docx
	Rolloff Container Rental Company Reso 2018-04.docx

	10. 04-04-18 - CC - Resolution 2018-05 - PS Rolloff Waste Pro USA, Inc.
	Resolution 2018-05 Staff Report.docx
	Rolloff WASTE PRO USA, INC. Reso 2018-05.docx

	11. 04-04-18 - CC - Resolution 2018-06 -  PS Rolloff Randy Suggs, Inc.
	Resolution 2018-06 Staff Report.docx
	Rolloff Randy Suggs, Inc. Reso 2018-06.docx

	Bottom

